Southwest Power Pool
BOARD OF DIRECTORS/MEMBERS COMMITTEE MEETING
Doubletree at Warren Place – Tulsa, OK
July 26, 2005

- Summary of Action Items 1. Approved minutes of the April 26 and June 10, 2005 Board of Director/Members Committee meetings.
2. Approved the Human Resources Committee’s recommendation of funding of the SPP Retirement Plan at
$979,000 and the SPP Post-retirement Benefits Plan at $471.200 but amended the amounts to
$1,075,791 and $504,000 respectively.
3. Approved the Human Resources Committee’s recommendation to provide a supplemental executive
retirement plan (SERP) compliant with section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.
4. Approved the Markets and Operations Policy Committee recommendation to implement the Energy
Imbalance Service Market May 1, 2006.
5. Approved an amended Markets and Operations Policy Committee’s regional transmission definition:
All existing non-radial power lines, substations, and associated facilities, operated at 60 kV or
above, plus all radial lines and associated facilities operated at or above 60 kV that serve two or
more eligible customers not Affiliates of each other. All facilities operated at 60 kV and above
constructed in the future would be included.
6. Approved Markets and Operations Policy Committee’s recommendation for Tariff modifications to:
Schedule 1, Attachment L, and Attachment AA necessary to specify an “unpancaked” scheduling charge
and provide for the distribution of revenue between multiple entities owning transmission facilities in a
single zone.
7. Approved the Strategic Planning Committee’s recommendation to adopt the Strategic Plan 2005 and
authorize the delegation of responsibilities to SPP organizational groups under the coordination oversight
of the Strategic Planning Committee and the Markets and Operations Committee to carry out the plan.
9. Approved the Strategic Planning Committee’s recommendation to approve the necessary SPP Bylaws and
Membership Agreement amendments to waive the withdrawal obligation related to long-term commitments
and future interest for large retail customer Members, small retail customer Members, and alternative
power/public interest Members so long as the entity is not a market participant
10. Approved the Entergy ICT Business Plan Proposal and granted the authority to execute the documents
necessary to develop this project.
11. Approved the Corporate Governance Committee’s nomination of Larry Altenbaumer to replace Bob
Schoenberger on the Finance Committee.
12. Approved the Finance Committee’s recommendation increasing the 2005 capital budget to $18.3M from
the previously approved level of $12.8M.

MINUTES NO. 100
Southwest Power Pool
BOARD OF DIRECTORS/MEMBERS COMMITTEE MEETING
Doubletree at Warren Place, Tulsa, OK
July 26, 2005
Agenda Item 1 - Administrative Items
SPP Chair Mr. Jim Eckelberger called the meeting to order immediately following a Special Meeting of Members
(Agenda – Attachment 1). The following Board of Directors/Members Committee members were in attendance, via
teleconference, or represented by proxy:
Mr. Larry Altenbaumer, director
Ms. Phyllis Bernard, director
Mr. Nick Brown, Southwest Power Pool
Mr. David Christiano, City Utilities of Springfield, MO
Mr. Harry Dawson, Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority
Mr. Michael Desselle, American Electric Power
Mr. Jim Eckelberger, director
Mr. Kevin Easley, Grand River Dam Authority
Ms. Trudy Harper, Tenaska Power Services Company
Mr. Doug Henry, Westar
Mr. Quentin Jackson, director
Mr. Joshua Martin, director
Mr. Mike Palmer, Empire District Electric Company
Mr. Steve Parr, Kansas Electric Power Cooperative
Mr. Gary Roulet, Western Farmers Electric Cooperative
Mr. Harry Skilton, director
Mr. Richard Spring, Kansas City Power & Light
Mr. Jim Stanton, Calpine
Mr. David Brian, for Mr. Rick Tyler, Northeast Texas Electric Cooperative
Mr. Gary Voigt, Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corporation
Mr. Bill Jett, for Mr. Walt Yeager, Cinergy Corporation
There were 47 persons in attendance representing 26 members (Attendance List - Attachment 2). Mr. Brown
reported proxies and a quorum was declared (Proxies - Attachment 3). Mr. Eckelberger asked for a round of
introductions.
Mr. Eckelberger referred to draft minutes of the April 26 and June 10, 2005 meetings and the asked for corrections
or a motion for approval (4/26/05, 6/10/05 Meeting Minutes - Attachment 4). Ms. Bernard moved that the minutes
be approved as presented. Mr. Skilton seconded the motion, which passed.
Agenda Item 2 – President’s Report
Mr. Nick Brown presented the President’s Report (Quarterly Report – Attachment 5). Mr. Brown highlighted
several items in the Quarterly Report including the rise in TLR events over last year. He stated that the number of
TLRs is being evaluated to see what is influenced by the market implementation. Ms. Harper requested that
information be sent via email regarding how many TLRs were called by Southwest Power Pool versus other
reliability coordinators. In addition to the Quarterly Report, Mr. Brown provided updates on administration,
regulatory, operations and interregional issues (President’s Report to BOD – Attachment 6). The administration
items noted were:
•

SPP Staff currently includes 145 full time employees, 1 intern and one part-time employee. Additional
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•
•
•

year-to-date statistics were given.
Architectural drawings for the new operations center were on display for review. It is expected to be
operational prior to summer 2006.
Energy imbalance service market training is organized into four training tracks including Markets for IT,
Operations/Trading, Scheduling, and Settlements. The training department has conducted market training
classes for approximately 350 people since January of 2005.
Mr. Brown announced that with the Board’s encouragement he applied and has been accepted to Harvard
Business School’s Advanced Management Program. The program runs September 11 - November 4,
2005. Carl Monroe and the SPP officers will be responsible for SPP during that time.

Regulatory items reviewed:
• Commissioner Joseph Kelliher was appointed chairman of FERC replacing Pat Wood. Chairman Kelliher
appointed Dan Larcamp as Commission Chief of Staff and Shelton Canon to head the Office of Markets
Tariffs and Rates.
• Comments and protests to SPP’s energy imbalance market tariff filing were due July 15th. It is hopeful an
order will come in early September.
Operations items:
• Implementation of the MISO JOA is proceeding on schedule for an October 1, 2005 implementation of
coordination on flowgates.
• The SPP Reliability Coordinator had a Readiness Audit conducted by NERC.
• The transmission facilities of Aquila’s three operating companies, Missouri Public Service Co., St. Joseph
Light & Power and West Plains Energy, were added to the SPP regional tariff July 1.
• Staff is working on the first ever Aggregate System Impact Study. They are on tract for achieving a study
publication in the first week of August.
Interregional Issues:
• COMPETE, a national coalition promoting the public interest benefits of competitive electricity markets,
released a new study last week showing considerable consumer savings from 1999 – 2003 stemming
from wholesale electric market competition.
• The ISO/RTO Council is nearing completion of a white paper detailing the benefits of regional
transmission organizations.
Agenda Item 3 – Regional State Committee Report
RSC President, Denise Bode presented the Regional State Committee (RSC) report via phone. Commissioner
Bode stated that the RSC has filed comments on the long-term transmission rights signed by all states with the
exception of Texas. There was an RSC conference call on July 7 at which Mike Proctor reviewed the transmission
definition. The consensus of the RSC was that of support. Ms. Bode added that the RSC would discuss the
following items at their meeting July 27: large generation interconnection agreements; status of the cost benefit
study; the energy imbalance market; a presentation on confidentiality and its issues and impacts on the RSC; the
RSC budget; and the RSC audit arranged for by Commissioner Sandy Hochstetter.
Commissioner Bode requested that in the future, hard copies of the Board of Director’s background material be
distributed to the RSC.
Agenda Item 4 – Finance Committee Report
Mr. Harry Skilton presented the Finance Committee report. Mr. Skilton stated that the next Finance Committee
meeting is to be held on August 11 in Dallas. The agenda will include the directors and officers insurance and a
discussion of, the SAS70 Audit with Price Waterhouse. The committee is resolved to file the credit policy with the
October filing.
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Mr. Skilton reported that the Credit Task Force is gathering credit profiles from the members and customers.
Every
member and customer will be scored. It is the goal to have all scoring completed and the results communicated to
all profiled by August 31, 2005. The results will be posted on the OASIS site. Ms. Harper requested that filing of
the Credit Policy be held off as long as possible. Mr. Tom Dunn stated that the Credit Policy will be filed in
October with the EIS Market Tariff changes.
Agenda Item 5 – Human Resources Committee Report
Mr. Quentin Jackson provided a Human Resources Committee (HRC) report. Mr. Jackson stated that the
committee met on Monday, July 25. Discussion included a review of the SPP benefit plan and the employee
compensation plan. The committee decided that a 4% cost of living raise would be applied to SPP employees in
2006. The committee also is outlining an incentive compensation plan in which all employees may participate.
Details of this plan will be presented at the October Board of Directors meeting.
Mr. Jackson provided background on the SPP Retirement Plan and the SPP Post-Retirement Plan (Retirement
Plan Recommendation – Attachment 7). Mr. Jackson moved that the Board of Directors:
Approve 2005 funding of the SPP Retirement Plan at $979,000.
Approve 2005 funding of the SPP Post-retirement Benefits Plan at $471,200.
Mr. Altenbaumer seconded the motion. Mr. Skilton moved to amend the recommendation to contribute the
maximum level of $1,075,791 and $504,000 while possible. Ms. Bernard seconded the amendment. The
Members were unanimous in favor. The motion passed. A vote was called for the amended motion. The
Members were unanimous in favor. The motion passed.
Mr. Jackson provided background on the supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP Recommendation and
Plan Document – Attachment 8). The HRC developed a draft SERP compliant with section 457(b) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Mr. Jackson moved to approve the following recommendation:
The Human Resources Committee recommends SPP establish a supplemental executive retirement plan
in substantially the form discussed above and detailed in the attached plan document.
Ms. Bernard seconded the motion. The Members were unanimous in favor. The motion passed.
Agenda Item 6 – Markets and Operations Policy Committee Report
Mr. Mel Perkins presented the Markets & Operations Policy Committee Report (MOPC Presentation – Attachment
9). Mr. Perkins provided an update on MOPC activities. Mr. Richard Ross then presented the Market Working
Group (MWG) report (MWG Report – Attachment 10). Mr. Ross reviewed background for the market
implementation and presented the following recommendation for Board approval:
The MOPC supports the recommendation of the MWG to implement the EIS Market by May 1, 2006.
Mr. Skilton moved to approve the May 1 date for market implementation. Ms. Bernard seconded the motion. The
Members were unanimous in favor. The motion passed. Mr. Eckelberger stressed the need to make the May 1,
2006 deadline.
Mr. Dennis Reed reviewed MOPC recommendations coming from the Regional Tariff Working Group including:
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1. Mr. Reed provided background for the transmission definition (Transmission Definition Recommendation –
Attachment 11). The MOPC approved an amended transmission definition modifying Attachment AI,
section II, paragraph 1 at their July 12 – 13 meeting to read:
All non-radial power lines, substations, and associated facilities, operated at 60 kV or above, plus all radial
lines and associated facilities operated at or above 60 kV that serve two or more eligible customers not
Affiliates of each other.
Mr. Harry Dawson presented background and reasons for an amended definition omitting the last phrase:
All non-radial power lines, substations, and associated facilities, operated at 60 kV or above, plus all radial
lines and associated facilities operated at or above 60 kV.
Mr. Skilton moved to approve the transmission definition as presented by MOPC with the modifications to
Attachment AI, section II, paragraph 1. Mr. Jackson seconded the motion. During considerable
discussion a third option was drafted with the following additions:
All existing non-radial power lines, substations, and associated facilities, operated at 60 kV or
above, plus all radial lines and associated facilities operated at or above 60 kV that serve two or
more eligible customers not Affiliates of each other. All facilities operated at 60kV and above
constructed in the future would be included.
Mr. Eckelberger asked for a straw vote from the Members on each of the three drafts. The first draft as
presented by MOPC received a vote of 5 for, 7 against, and 2 abstentions. The second draft from OMPA
received a vote of 8 for, 4 against, and 2 abstentions. The third draft received a vote of 7 for, 6 against,
and 1 abstention. Mr. Skilton and Mr. Jackson withdrew the original motion. Mr. Brown moved to approve
draft number three stating that it was a good compromise of the first two drafts. Ms. Bernard seconded
the motion. Mr. Eckelberger called for another Members vote on the third draft to see if any opinions had
changed during discussion. A second Members vote for the third draft received 8 for and 6 against. The
directors voted and the motion passed.
2. Mr. Reed provided background for Tariff modifications to: a) Schedule 1 and Attachment L implementing
the removal of pancaked scheduling fees; b) Attachment L reflecting allocation of money between
Transmission Owners in the same zone; and c) continuation of the experimental Transmission Service
Prepayment option for an additional year (Tariff Modifications – Attachment 12). Mr. Skilton moved to
approve the Tariff modifications as presented. Mr. Altenbaumer seconded the motion. The Members
were unanimous in favor. The motion passed
Agenda Item 7 – Compliance Committee Report
Mr. Josh Martin presented the Compliance Committee Report (CC Report – Attachment 13). Mr. Martin stated that
the committee met June 3. Committee activities included a review of the State of the Market Report filed at FERC;
extension of the Boston Pacific’s contract through the end of 2005, which falls within the approved budget; and a
NERC compliance update. Regarding NERC compliance, two member companies were cited for violations
relating to a lack of NERC-certified operators. One company has resolved this matter and the other company
expects to resolve this violation through attrition later this year. NERC has published the results of an SPP
Readiness Audit performed in April 2005. Southwest Power Pool did well with positive observations. The next
Compliance Committee meeting is September 28 in Chicago.
Mr. Craig Roach provided an Independent Market Monitor report (IMM Report – Attachment 14). Mr. Roach stated
that the 2004 State of the Market Report was filed May 31, 2005. Two testimonies were filed in support of the SPP
EIS Market Tariff revisions on June 15, 2005. There were few protests with an overall constructive tone. The MOKN-OK Agreement comments are at FERC.
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Agenda Item 8 – Strategic Planning Committee Report
Mr. Richard Spring presented the Strategic Planning Committee Report (SPC Report– Attachment 15). Mr. Spring
stated that the SPC held a planning retreat May 12-13, which was well attended with representatives from the
RSC, FERC, DOE, and SPP independent board members. Another SPC meeting was held on July 14 discussing:
fee waiver, Strategic Plan 2005, Entergy ICT, North Carolina LSE, regulatory updates, and organization
effectiveness.
Mr. Spring explained that two years ago the SPC developed a Strategic Plan, which was expected to take 5 years
to implement. Approximately 95% of that plan has been achieved. The Strategic Plan 2005 has been drafted for 1
to 3 years into the future with a long-term plan to follow (Strategic Plan – Attachment 16). The Strategic Plan 2005
addresses: market development, transmission expansion, administrative processes, retention and addition of
members, and enhanced regional planning. Mr. Spring made the following recommendation (Strategic Plan
Recommendation – Attachment 17):
The Strategic Planning Committee recommends that the SPP Board of Directors adopt the proposed
Strategic Plan included in this report, and authorize the delegation of responsibilities to SPP organizational
groups also contained herein under the coordination oversight of the SPC and MOPC.
Mr. Skilton moved to approve the Strategic Plan 2005. Mr. Brown seconded the motion. The Members were
unanimous in favor. The motion passed.
Mr. Spring provided background on the fee waiver process as directed by FERC and presented the following SPC
recommendation (Fee Waiver Recommendation – Attachment 18):
Approval of the Bylaws and Membership Agreement amendments as presented to waive those portions of
the withdrawal obligation related to long-term commitments and future interest for large retail customer
Members, small retail customer Members, and alternative power/public interest Members so long as the
entity is not a market participant, effective July 26.
Affirmation that the membership of entities with affiliate relationships as defined in the SPP Bylaws will be
considered separate for purposes of eligibility for the fee waiver.
Mr. Altenbaumer moved to approve the fee waiver recommendation. Mr. Skilton seconded the motion. The
Members were unanimous in favor. The motion passed.
Agenda Item 9 – Entergy ICT Proposal
Mr. Bruce Rew provided a report on the Entergy ICT Proposal (Entergy ICT Proposal- Attachment 19). In a FERC
ICT declaratory order, it was assumed that SPP would be selected as the ICT for Entergy as SPP complies with
the independence requirement. The primary functions would be:
•
•
•
•
•

Reliability Coordinator
Tariff Administrator
Calculation of ARCs
Transmission Planning
Weekly Procurement Process

Mr. Rew presented an Entergy ICT Buisness Plan (Entergy ICT Business Plan – Attachment 21) and the following
recommendation:
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Staff recommends that the Entergy ICT Business Plan Proposal be approved in substantially the form
presented, and that the officers of SPP be granted the authority to execute the documents necessary to
develop this project.
Mr. Brown moved to approve the Entergy ICT Business Plan Proposal as presented. Ms. Bernard seconded the
motion. The Members were unanimous in favor. The motion passed.
Other Business
Mr. Nick Brown reported that the Corporate Governance Committee is required to nominate a replacement for any
committee vacancies reporting to the Board. The committee recommends that Larry Altenbaumer replace Bob
Schoenberger on the Finance Committee. Mr. Brown moved for Board approval and Mr. Skilton seconded. Mr.
Eckelberger asked for any objections. Hearing none, Mr. Larry Altenbaumer will serve as a member of the
Finance Committee.
Mr. Harry Skilton reported that the system enhancements required to implement the EIS market will necessitate
amending SPP’s 2005 capital expenditures budget. SPP’s existing capital budget of $12.8M is insufficient to fully
fund the new incremental capital costs associated with the system enhancements. Mr. Skilton moved to increase
the approved 2005 capital budget to $18.3M. Mr. Brown seconded the motion. The Members were unanimous in
favor. The motion passed.
Agenda Item 10 – Future Meetings
Mr. Nick Brown called attention to the future meeting schedule for 2006 and 2007 (Future Meetings – Attachment
21). He noted that the June meeting in 2006 would be changed to June 12-13. Also noted, there will be two
additional meetings each year: one in June for educational purposes and one in December for administrative or
organizational purposes. The meeting locations will remain the same each year.
Adjournment
With no further business, Mr. Eckelberger thanked everyone for participating and adjourned the meeting at
3:25 p.m.
Stacy Duckett, Corporate Secretary
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS/MEMBERS COMMITTEE MEETING
and SPECIAL MEETING OF MEMBERS
July 26, 2005
Doubletree at Warren Place – Tulsa, OK
•

AGENDA

•

9:00 a.m. – 3:00 p.m. CDT
Special Meeting of Members
1. Administrative Items.................................................................................. Mr. Jim Eckelberger
2. Corporate Governance Committee Report .......................................................Mr. Nick Brown
a. Election of Director
b. Board of Directors Evaluation Results
3. Human Resources Committee Report ..................................................... Mr. Quentin Jackson
Adjourn for Board of Directors/Members Committee Meeting

Board of Directors/Members Committee Meeting
1. Administrative Items................................................................................. Mr. Jim Eckelberger
2. President’s Report.............................................................................................Mr. Nick Brown
3. Regional State Committee Report .................................................................Ms. Denise Bode
4. Finance Committee Report ............................................................................ Mr. Harry Skilton
5. Human Resources Committee Report ..................................................... Mr. Quentin Jackson
6. Markets and Operations Policy Committee Report .......................................... Mr. Mel Perkins
7. Compliance Committee Report ........................................................................ Mr. Josh Martin
a. Independent Market Monitor Report..............................................Mr. Craig Roach
8. Strategic Planning Committee Report......................................................... Mr. Richard Spring
a. Fee Waiver
b. Strategic Plan
9. Entergy ICT Proposal........................................................................................ Mr. Bruce Rew
10. Future Meetings ...............................................................................................Mr. Nick Brown
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Cheryl Robertson
Subject:

BOD Proxy

-----Original Message----From: Yeager, Walt [mailto:Walt.Yeager@Cinergy.COM]
Sent: Tuesday, July 19, 2005 4:02 PM
To: Cheryl Robertson
Cc: Bill Jett (T18984)
Subject: Yeager-proxy 7/26/05
Cheryl,
I will not be able to attend the meeting next week due to scheduling
conflicts. Bill Jett, from our group, will have my proxy at the
Member's Committee meeting.
Thanks,
Walt Yeager
Managing Director, Market Development
Cinergy Services, Inc.
(513) 419-5711
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Cheryl Robertson
Subject: Proxy

From: Rick Tyler [mailto:ricktyler@ntec.cc]
Sent: Friday, July 22, 2005 12:02 PM
To: 'nbrown@spp.org'
Cc: 'cmonroe@spp.org'; David M Brian
Subject: Proxy for July 26 meeting
Nick, as I will unable to attend the July 26 SPP Board and Members Committee meetings, please allow David Brian of
GDS to have my proxy for the Members Committee meeting. Thanks.
Rick Tyler
Northeast Texas Electric Coop.

7/22/2005

Southwest Power Pool
BOARD OF DIRECTORS/MEMBERS COMMITTEE MEETING
Crowne Plaza Austin – Austin, TX
April 26, 2005

- Summary of Action Items 1. Approved minutes of the January 25, 2005 meeting.
2. Approved the Finance Committee’s recommendation to accept the 2004 Audit Report and findings of
BKD, LLC.
3. Approved the Finance Committee’s recommendation to adopt the revised SPP Credit Policy.
4. Approved the Finance Committee’s recommendation for revisions to the Membership Agreement
regarding withdrawal/termination.
5. Approved the SPP RTO Expansion Plan Phase 1 Report as presented by the Markets and Operations
Policy Committee.
6. Approved SPP Criteria modifications to Criteria 5.2.1 and 14 regarding treatment of System Operating
Limits (SOLS).
7. Approved additional funding of $922,000 for costs to be incurred in 2005 necessary to implement the
reciprocal coordination of flowgates and market flow calculations required of SPP per the SPP-MISO
JOA.
8. Approved the Energy Imbalance System Market implementation and directed the Markets and
Operations Committee to:
•
•
•
•

File Tariff language based on current EIS market rules no later than June 15, 2005
Identify elements of system testing that can feasibly commence on June 1, 2005
Develop a complete implementation schedule and additional funding requirements no later than
June 30, 2005
The EIS Market implementation date shall be no later than March 1, 2006.

9. Approved the Strategic Planning Committee’s recommendation to approve the necessary Bylaws
revisions to reflect that the NERC Compliance function reports to the Board of Directors to assure
independence.
10. Approved the formation of a task force to develop a proposed process for considering requests for
waiver of fees associated with the membership in SPP as well as approval to seek an additional
extension for a compliance filing at the Commission.

MINUTES NO. 98
Southwest Power Pool
BOARD OF DIRECTORS/MEMBERS COMMITTEE MEETING
Crowne Plaza Austin – Austin, TX
April 26, 2005
Agenda Item 1 - Administrative Items
SPP Chair Mr. Jim Eckelberger called the meeting to order at 8:01 a.m. and thanked everyone present and
participating by phone for attending. Mr. Eckelberger referred to the agenda (Agenda – Attachment 1) and invited
the Members Committee to attend the executive session immediately following the Board of Directors meeting.
The following Board of Directors/Members Committee members were in attendance or represented by proxy:
Ms. Phyllis Bernard, director
Mr. Nick Brown, Southwest Power Pool
Mr. David Christiano, City Utilities of Springfield, MO
Mr. Harry Dawson, Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority
Mr. Michael Desselle, American Electric Power
Mr. Jim Eckelberger, director
Mr. Kevin Easley, Grand River Dam Authority
Ms. Trudy Harper, Tenaska Power Services Company
Mr. Doug Henry, Westar
Mr. Quentin Jackson, director
Mr. Joshua Martin, director
Mr. Mike Palmer, Empire District Electric Company
Mr. Alan Derichsweiler, for Mr. Gary Roulet, Western Farmers Electric Cooperative
Mr. Harry Skilton, director
Mr. Richard Spring, Kansas City Power & Light
Mr. Jim Stanton, Calpine
Mr. Rick Tyler, Northeast Texas Electric Cooperative
Mr. Ricky Bittle, for Mr. Gary Voigt, Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corporation
Mr. Walt Yeager, Cinergy Corporation
There were 64 persons in attendance representing 23 members and 14 regulators (Attendance List - Attachment
2). Mr. Brown reported proxies and a quorum was declared (Proxies - Attachment 3). Mr. Eckelberger asked for
a round of introductions. He especially welcomed FERC Chairman Pat Wood and commended him for his
attendance at others meetings and his work with SPP.
Mr. Eckelberger referred to draft minutes of the January 25 meeting and asked for corrections or a motion for
approval (1/25/05 Meeting Minutes - Attachment 4). Mr. Martin moved that the minutes be approved as
presented. Mr. Jackson seconded the motion, which passed.
Agenda Item 2 – President’s Report
Mr. Nick Brown presented the President’s Report (President’s Report – Attachment 5). In addition to the Quarterly
Report, Mr. Brown provided updates on administration, regulatory, operations and corporate governance. The
administration items noted were:
•

The SAS70 audits are to be performed by Price Waterhouse Coopers as chosen by the Finance
Committee. The audit team held a planning session in Little Rock March 30-31. The readiness review will
commence June 13 and the SAS70 Type 1 audit will commence in October with the effective date being
October 31.

•

Staff is currently at 130 full-time employees, one intern and advertising/interviewing for 21 positions. The
budget is approved for 166 employees by the end of the year.
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•
•

Due diligence reviews on the property selected for the new coordination center in Maumelle, AR have
been completed. We will close on the property May 2.
A Strategic Planning Committee retreat is scheduled for May 12-13 in Hot Spring, AR. The Board of
Directors as well as the Regional State Committee have been invited and encouraged to participate.

Regulatory items reviewed:
• The Arkansas Public Service Commission will host the Mid-America Regulatory Conference (MARC)
annual meeting in Little Rock June 18-22. Mr. Brown will speak on an RTO related panel and SPP will
sponsor entertainment for the conference banquet Monday evening, June 20.
• FERC issued a declaratory order accepting Entergy’s Independent Coordinator of Transmission (ICT)
proposal for a two-year trial period. Current estimates would add 30 staff members to perform this
function.
Operations items:
• During the week of April 18, a NERC audit team did an on site readiness audit of the SPP Reliability
Coordinator functions. The audit team presented the report to representatives of SPP’s management
team. NERC is expected to publicly post a final report in July 2005.
• There were no firm TLR’s year to date.
• The market IT systems have completed factory acceptance testing and have been shipped to SPP.
Installation/configuration is proceeding with the next milestone being the completion of Site Acceptance
Testing.
• KEPCO’s Board approved placing their load under the SPP network service tariff June 1.
Corporate Governance Committee:
• Russell Reynolds Associates has been selected to search for Bob Schoenberger’s replacement. Rather
than fill the position on an interim basis, it was decided to present the recommendation directly to the
membership at a special meeting of members preceding the July 26 Board of Directors meeting in Tulsa.
• Mr. Eckelberger was appointed to the Finance Committee on an interim basis until a new director is
elected.
• The committee will meet immediately following the Board meeting to discuss review of director
compensation based on a study performed by Towers Perrin last year, and the annual review of the Board
of Director effectiveness required by Section 6.6(f) of the Bylaws.
Mr. Brown reviewed the Strategic Plan and what we have achieved in the past two years in the following areas
(Strategic Plan: Two Years Later – Attachment 6):
•
•
•
•
•

Active State Involvement
Order 200 Compliance
Regional Transmission Service Tariff
Administrative Processes
Regional Reliability Council Status

SPP has achieved 95-98% of its Strategic Plan initiatives.
Agenda Item 3 – Regional State Committee Report
Oklahoma State Commission Chairman and RSC President, Denise Bode was asked to give the Regional State
Committee (RSC) report. Chairman Bode stated that the final report on the cost benefit study from Charles River
Associates (CRA) was presented and discussed at their meeting April 25. Ms. Bode introduced the CRA
representatives and noted that this report is available on the website. This study represents a significant benefit
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for the imbalance market with approximately $1.2 billion in benefits to the eastern interconnect over a 10 year
horizon. It also showed the benefit of economics of joining an RTO.
Richard Ross presented a discussion on the EIS progress and issues at the RSC meeting. Ms. Bode stated that
the RSC needed a timeline to address the EIS as soon as possible.
The RSC received a status report on the Independent Coordinator of Transmission (ICT) with Entergy.
The RSC will not be part of the SPP meetings in July due to a conflict with the NARUC meetings in Austin. Their
meeting will be in Austin and they will present a report to the SPP Board via teleconference.
Agenda Item 4 – Finance Committee Report
Mr. Harry Skilton presented the Finance Committee report. Mr. Skilton referred to the SAS70 Audit and stated that
the Finance Committee would meet with the team to stay current. Mr. Skilton then presented the BKD
Accountants’ Report and Financial Statements (BKD Report – Attachment 7). The committee met with BKD on
March 29 to review the financial statements. He referred to page 9 of the report, which explains reclassifications.
Mr. Skilton moved to approve the Finance Committee recommendation to accept in its entirety the 2004 audit
report and findings of BKD, LLC. Ms. Bernard seconded the motion. The members were in unanimous favor.
The motion passed.
Mr. Skilton then presented the SPP Credit Policy commending the Credit Task Force for work well done (Credit
Policy – Attachment 8). Mr. Skilton moved to accept the SPP Credit Policy. Mr. Martin seconded the motion. In
discussion, Mr. Tom Dunn stated that members agreed that although not perfect it was a vast improvement. Many
members cannot get unsecured credit and this will change for some and hopefully be an evolving process. Ms.
Harper raised concern that the Markets and Operations Policy Committee had recommended a delay in filing until
the EIS market is implemented. It was clarified that the MOPC suggested implementing the policy as soon as
possible but to delay the filing until the future. Mr. Skilton retracted his motion and made the following revised
motion:
The Finance Committee recommends the SPP Board of Directors adopt the revised credit policy. Further, the
Finance Committee recommends implementation of the revised credit policy as soon as practicable, but no
later than with filing of the energy imbalance market rules. The Markets and Operations Policy Committee
further recommends the following:
•
•
•
•

Approve the proposed Credit Policy
Direct Staff to calculate scores and exposures for all members
Direct SPP to implement the Credit Policy as soon as practical
Delay filing the Credit Policy as part of the OATT until no later than when the EIS tariff is filed unless
required by FERC.

Mr. Martin seconded the motion. The members were in unanimous favor. The motion passed.
Mr. Skilton presented proposed revisions to the Membership Agreement regarding withdrawal/termination
provisions (SPP Membership Agreement Modifications – Attachment 9). This was presented at the Board meeting
in January and due to the 30 days notice requirement, the vote was delayed until the April meeting. Mr. Skilton
moved to approve:
The Finance Committee recommends that the SPP Board of Directors incorporate the attached language
into the SPP Membership Agreement detailing the financial obligations and commitments of members
upon withdrawal from Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Mr. Brown seconded the motion. The members were in unanimous favor. The motion passed. Mr. Walt Yeagar
4
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raised the question of how withdrawal fees are applied and encouraged the group to look at these issues at the
Strategic Planning Retreat.
Agenda Item 5 – Human Resources Committee Report
Mr. Quentin Jackson provided a Human Resources Committee (HR) report. Mr. Jackson stated that the
committee met on Monday, April 25, with Attorney Craig Westbrook (benefits counsel) in attendance. Benefit
plans were reviewed and performance seems to be in line with expectations. These plans include a benefit
pension plan, retiree healthcare fund and 401K funds. Education on 401K plans has been provided to the Staff.
Administrative changes have been made that remove liability from the HR Committee and the Board of Directors.
At this point there is not a Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan (SERP). The HR Committee decided on
Monday to include a SERP in a benefit package to be submitted to the Board for approval at their July meeting.
Agenda Item 6 – Markets and Operations Policy Committee Report
Mr. Mel Perkins presented the Markets & Operations Policy Committee Report (MOPC Presentation – Attachment
10). Mr. Perkins stated that Mr. Richard Ross would give a Market Working Group (MWG) report followed by a
regional transmission expansion update, action items and conclude with informational items. Mr. Ross stated that
Market Protocols were approved by the MWG on January 5, 2005. On January 20, the MOPC Chair requested
that each working group review the protocols focusing on their group’s responsibilities. Having reviewed group
issues, specifically from the Operating Reliability Working Group (ORWG) the MOPC made the following
recommendation (EIS Market Implementation – Attachment 11):
(1) Direct that market trials not be started as currently scheduled on May 9 and direct MWG to develop an

updated market trials and implementation schedule based on the changes that will be necessary to
resolve the issues described below for presentation by no later than the July 2005 MOPC meeting.
•

•

Delay of the market trials and market implementation is necessary due to the fact that the
solutions to some of the reliability issues raised by ORWG will require system changes that
cannot be accomplished within the current schedule. Specifically the issues identified by
ORWG include:
o the treatment of self dispatch in the market solution and
o the interaction of the market solution with the IDC and
o the interaction of the market solution with the ARS
o the interaction of the market solution with regulation adequacy and compensation
In order to facilitate compliance with NERC Reliability Standards, solutions to these issues
identified to date will require a change to the dispatch interval, a change to the treatment of
self dispatch resources in the market solution and the development of an IDC like system for
use internal to the RTO footprint, all of which will cause a delay in market implementation.

(2) Direct MWG to develop a comprehensive list of all of the issues identified by other working groups and

identify a timeline/process to be used to develop solutions to the MOPC by April 20th (1 week after the
MOPC meeting).
(3) Direct the formation of a special Task Force that will completely define solutions to the reliability
issues and provide proposed protocol revisions to the MWG by no later than May 30. This Task Force
should be populated with appropriate participation from MWG, ORWG, SPP staff and other working
groups as appropriate.
(4) The MOPC should provide direction to the MWG and the Task Force to be formed regarding whether
or not consolidation of the control areas could be considered as part of the solution. Such guidance is
necessary since a decision to consolidate the Control Areas will potentially impact the solutions
developed to the issues raised by the other working groups.
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(5) Direct MWG to develop an updated market trials and implementation schedule based on the changes

that will be necessary to resolve the issues for presentation by no later than the July 2005 MOPC
meeting.
Following much discussion, Mr. Brown suggested a small group convene outside to develop alternative language
to bring back to the group for consideration and action.
Mr. Carl Monroe presented the SPP Expansion Plan starting with the regional plan objectives:
•
•
•

st

nd

Focus on reliability needs 1 , commercial market needs 2
Create an effective long-range expansion plan with a comprehensive assessment of mitigation plans to
maintain planning standards
Evaluate alternatives from all stakeholders

Mr. Monroe summarized Phase I of the SPP Expansion Plan, the Reliability Assessment (SPP RTO Expansion
Plan – Phase 1 Report and recommendation – Attachment 12). Mr. Monroe then asked the Board to approve the
SPP RTO Expansion Plan Phase 1 Report. Mr. Skilton moved to approve the report as presented. Ms. Bernard
seconded the motion. The members were in unanimous favor. The motion passed.
Mr. Monroe then outlined Phase II of the SPP Expansion Plan, the Economic Planning.
Mr. Perkins reviewed SPP Criteria modifications to Criteria 5.2.1 and 14 regarding treatment of System Operating
Limits (SOLS) (Criteria recommendations – Attachment 13). Mr. Martin moved to approve Criteria modifications.
Mr. Jackson seconded the motion. The members were in unanimous favor. The motion passed.
Mr. Perkins reviewed seams efforts particularly the three phase JOA with Midwest ISO (SPP-MISO JOA
Recommendation – Attachment 14). He then offered the following recommendation for approval:
Approve the requested funds totaling $922,000 of costs to be incurred in 2005 necessary to implement the
reciprocal coordination of flowgates and market flow calculations required of SPP per the SPP-MISO JOA
It was pointed out that these costs can be implemented without changing the SPP Budget. Mr. Jackson moved to
approve the additional funding. Mr. Skilton seconded the motion. The members were in unanimous favor. The
motion passed.
Mr. Perkins completed his report with informational items as listed in his presentation.
Following a break for lunch, Mr. Brown announced language as crafted by the small group for the Energy
Imbalance System (EIS) Market implementation as the following:
Board directs and authorizes the MOPC to finalize the Tariff language changes, based on the current EIS
market rules, and file them at FERC no later than June 15, 2005.
Board also directs the MOPC and the SPP Staff to identify and implement the elements of system testing
that can feasibly commence on June 1, 2005.
Board also directs the MOPC develop a complete implementation schedule and additional funding
requirements, including but not limited to NERC reliability plan approvals and additional FERC filings, no
later than June 30, 2005.
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Board directs that the EIS Market implementation date shall be no later than March 1, 2006.
Mr. Brown moved and Mr. Skilton seconded approval of the EIS recommendation. The members were in
unanimous favor. The motion passed.
Mr. Eckelberger made a presentation to FERC Chairman Pat Wood as a token of “heartfelt appreciation” for all the
hard work and support he offered in SPP achieving RTO status. He then presented Chairman Wood a trophy that
was designed to commemorate SPP being awarded RTO recognition on October 1, 2004.
Ms. Ellen Wolfe (Charles River Associates) presented an SPP Cost-Benefit Analysis Report overview (Cost
Benefit Overview – Attachment 15). Mr. Eckelberger thanked the RSC for their management in this process
especially the efforts of Mr. Sam Loudenslager (APSC) and Mr. Richard Spring.
Agenda Item 7 – Strategic Planning Committee Report
Mr. Richard Spring presented the Strategic Planning Committee Report (SPC Report & Recommendations –
Attachment 16). Mr. Spring reviewed agenda items from the April 14 SPC meeting including:
•
•
•
•
•

Non Disclosure Agreement
RTO-RRC-ERO Debate
Market Implementation
Cost Benefit Study
Regulatory Filings

Mr. Spring then presented an SPP Bylaws revision to address the reporting of the NERC Compliance function in
SPP. SPP is the only Regional Reliability Council (RRC) to operate as a Federal Energy Regulatory Commission
(FERC) approved Regional Transmission Organization (RTO) including the responsibilities as a NERC Reliability
Coordinator. As stated in SPP’s Strategic Plan, SPP has chosen to move forward with an RTO and maintain SPP
as the RRC. To avoid the perception of a conflict of interest the SPC recommends the following:
The Strategic Planning Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve the necessary
Bylaws revisions to reflect that the NERC Compliance function reports to the Board of Directors to assure
independence of the function within SPP.
Mr. Brown moved and Mr. Martin seconded approval of the recommendation as presented. The members were in
unanimous favor. The motion passed.
Mr. Spring presented a recommendation regarding fee waivers for certain membership categories:
The Strategic Planning Committee has appointed a task force (chairman – Michael Desselle) to develop a
proposed process for considering requests for waiver of fees associated with membership in SPP. A final
recommendation is expected to be made to the Board of Directors for consideration at its July meeting.
The SPC seeks the Board of Directors’ concurrence with this approach, as well as approval to seek an
additional extension for a compliance filing at the Commission.
Mr. Brown moved and Mr. Martin seconded approval of the recommendation as presented. The members were in
unanimous favor. The motion passed.
Mr. Spring reminded the Board that an SPC Planning Retreat is scheduled for May 12 and 13 in Hot Springs,
Arkansas.
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Agenda Item 8 – Compliance Committee Report
Mr. Josh Martin presented the Compliance Committee report. The Compliance Committee will begin meeting
quarterly with the SPP’s NERC compliance staff. The committee will also hear from the Independent Market
Monitor (IMM) and the Market Monitoring Unit (MMU) prior to each SPP Board meeting. Meetings are currently
planned for June and September.

Mr. Craig Roach (Boston Pacific) presented a report addressing (Roach Report – Attachment 17):
•
•
•

Market Power Mitigation Measures Testimony
Market Monitoring Plan Testimony
Preliminary Research Results and Outline for the 2004 State of the Market Report

Mr. Eckelberger asked if Chairman Wood would like to address the Board. Chairman Wood stated that of all the
Board meetings he attends, SPP has the most refreshing form of governance. He said he appreciated the 5 value
propositions and had seen all in action today. The RSC/BOD offers a good model and one he has shown around
the country. Chairman Wood commended Mr. Eckelberger for his good leadership and wished SPP all the best.
He concluded that it was a pleasure to close out his term with SPP and stated that what SPP does is a “critical
thing to the economic development of our country”.
Adjournment
With no further business, Mr. Eckelberger thanked everyone for participating and adjourned the meeting at
1:50. He reminded the BOD/Members Committee of the executive session to follow.
Stacy Duckett, Corporate Secretary
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MINUTES NO. 99
Southwest Power Pool
BOARD OF DIRECTORS/MEMBERS COMMITTEE SPECIAL MEETING
Teleconference
June 10, 2005
Agenda Item 1 – Administrative Items
SPP Chair Mr. Jim Eckelberger called the meeting to order at 8:03 a.m. and thanked everyone for attending. The
following Board of Directors/Members Committee members were in attendance or represented by proxy:
Ms. Phyllis Bernard, director
Mr. Nick Brown, Southwest Power Pool
Mr. David Christiano, City Utilities of Springfield, MO
Mr. Gene Anderson, for Mr. Harry Dawson, Oklahoma Municipal Power Authority
Mr. Michael Desselle, American Electric Power
Mr. Jim Eckelberger, director
Mr. Kevin Easley, Grand River Dam Authority
Mr. Doug Henry, Westar
Mr. Joshua Martin, director
Mr. Mike Palmer, Empire District Electric Company
Mr. Gary Roulet, Western Farmers Electric Cooperative
Mr. Harry Skilton, director
Mr. Jim Stanton, Calpine
Mr. Gary Voigt, Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corporation
Others in attendance were: Bary Warren (Empire); Mel Perkins and Bill Wylie (OG+E); Gerry Burrows (KCPL);
Tom Stuchlik (Westar); Craig Roach (Boston Pacific); Carl Huslig (Aquila); Denise Bode and Joyce Davidson
(OCC); Tracy Hannon (SWPA); Tony Ingram and John Rogers (FERC); Ron Gary (City of Lafayette); Mike Small
(Wright & Talisman); and Terry Lane (Ameren). SPP Staff in attendance included Les Dillahunty, Pat Bourne, and
Stacy Duckett.
Agenda Item 2 – Tariff Filing Options
Mr. Mel Perkins provided an update regarding the Markets and Operations Policy Committee (MOPC) acceptance
of tariff language for market implementation that must be filed by June 15. There was discussion regarding the
type of filing to be made: informational, request for declaratory order, or a 205 filing. The SPP Staff planned to
make a 205 filing. Some were concerned about the costs, primarily for the members, if a 205 filing is made, which
could be substantial. In the alternative, there was concern that FERC may not give the filing due attention if it is
not a 205 filing. The MOPC amended their recommendation to request an informational filing. This amendment
received 61% support falling short of the 66% needed to pass. Following additional discussion, the MOPC voted
to send this issue concerning the type of filing to the Board of Directors with one no vote.
Mr. Pat Bourne provided an overview of the filing options, and why Staff planned to pursue a 205 filing. This type
of filing is more efficient, will receive a more immediate response from the commission, and the tariff language will
ultimately have to be filed pursuant to Section 205. Mr. Nick Brown provided additional background. Mr. Mike
Small and Mr. Tony Ingram also provided opinion/additional background. Following discussion, Ms. Phyllis
Bernard moved and Mr. Harry Skilton seconded to direct the Staff to file the tariff revisions under Section 205 of
the Federal Power Act, noting issues still pending. The Members Committee endorsed the motion with one no
vote. The Board of Directors was asked to vote via email to Ms. Stacy Duckett. Ms. Duckett is to report the
outcome. The motion passed (Attachment).
Adjournment
With no further business, Mr. Eckelberger thanked everyone for participating and adjourned the meeting at
8:35 a.m.
Stacy Duckett, Corporate Secretary
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SUMMARY
2Q 2005

1Q 2005

4Q 2004

3Q 2004

2Q 2004

$24.7M (YTD)

$11.7M

$40.3M

$31.0M

$20.8M

$21.1M (YTD)

$11.1M

$28.4M

$20.8M

$14.1M

$1.8M (YTD)

$477K

$18.7M

$3.5M

$8.4M

$39.0M (06/30/05)

$40.1M

$47.6M

$42.1M

$41.2M

TLR Events

111

31

105

128

55

Tags (daily average)
Transmission Service
Requests
Transmission Service Study
Queue
Generation Interconnection
Queue
Stakeholder Meetings
FERC/State Commissions
Dockets Pending
Legal Matters Pending

456

472

416

440

520

43,979

42,720

61,504

65,099

32,901

195 requests/
97 studies

184/95

172/74

136/63

132/61

33 requests

34
requests

35
requests

37
requests

40
requests

41

52

55

55

40

21

20

15

13

7

3

3

0

0

0

Executive Industry Activities

56

38

27

26

17

Number of Members

45

45

43

48

48

7 (2005)
1 (2006)

8 (2005)

8 (2005)

15 (2004)
2 (2005)

16 (2004)

144

137

131

131

128

Tariff Administration
Service, Fees &Assessments
Operating Expenses
Operating Cash Flow
Cash on Hand

Withdrawal Notices
Staff
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Balance Sheet
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

Cash balances declined by $1.0 million from the 1st quarter. This decline resulted primarily
from $2.0 million in capital expenditures in the 2nd quarter partially offset by positive cash
from operations of $1.0 million.
Accounts receivable and accounts payable resulting from tariff activities are now reported on
a net basis as a result of accounting rule interpretation. This effectively leaves only SPP’s
administrative fee remaining in accounts receivable.
Overall increase in A/R of $0.3 million is attributable mainly to normal activity within the
A/R tariff account
Other current assets increased $2.9 million primarily due to the cumulative adjustment made
in June to record the FERC assessment charge from March 05 – June 05 ($0.6 million /
month).
Net fixed assets increased $1.3 million as SPP booked nearly $2.0 million in gross purchases
during the 2nd quarter. Over $0.9 million of the purchases were related to the software in
development associated with the imbalance energy markets. Remainder of the increase is
primarily attributable to software purchases of $0.3 million and land costs associated with the
new operations center of $0.3 million.
Total current liabilities increased $0.4 million from the 1st quarter primarily due to the 2nd
quarter addition to the FERC assessment liability of $0.6 million. Miscellaneous activity
contributed the remaining $0.2M variance.
Members’ equity increased by $3.1 million as a result of retention of earnings.

Income Statement
•
•
•

•

Revenues from fees and assessments were below budget by $1.1 million primarily due to
SPP’s budget assumption of recovering the FERC assessment effective January 2005 when it
actually did not commence until March 2005 ($0.6 million/ month).
Μiscellaneous income exceeded budget by nearly $1.4 million primarily due to the 2nd
quarter catch up on revenue recognized for impact studies.
Operating expenses fell $6.7 million short of budget primarily due to project timing/schedule
changes, specifically with the shift in market implementation from March 2005 to March
2006. The expenses are still expected to be incurred. The most notable variance is the salary
and benefits line item, which results from a greater number of new headcount being assumed
in the budget than was actually added 2005 year to date. Additionally, the cash basis budget
will cause some variance in comparison to the accrual based financial statements primarily as
it relates to leases, maintenance, and insurance costs.
Νet other income/expense was favorable to budget by $0.8 million largely due to earnings on
deposits being greater than what was assumed in the budget ($0.3 million) and budgeted bad
debt expense not being recognized to date (0.3 million).
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Cash Flow
•

SPP recorded a net decrease in cash of $8.6 million through the 2nd quarter (year to date).
This is primarily the result of the $5.0 million principal payment on the 7.5% note due in
2008. Additionally, SPP made $5.4 million in capital expenditures through the 2nd quarter.
These outflows were partially offset by the positive cash flow from operations of
approximately $1.8 million.

Southwest Power Pool
Balance Sheet
As of June 30, 2005

($000)

June 30, 2005

Mar. 31, 2005

Variance

24,942
14,062
4,067
4,285
47,356
23,456
497

25,268
14,780
3,754
1,403
45,205
22,112
517

(326)
(718)
313
2,882
2,151
1,344
(20)

71,309

67,834

3,475

1,980
13,926
5,000
3,363
24,269

1,422
14,644
5,000
2,820
23,886

10,000
25,000
35,000
59,269
12,040

10,000
25,000
35,000
58,886
8,948

0
0
0
383
3,092

71,309

67,834

3,475

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash & Equivalents
Restricted Cash Deposits
Accounts Receivable (net)
Other Current Assets
Total Current Assets
Total Fixed Assets
Total Other Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable (net)
Customer Deposits
Current Maturities of LT Debt
Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities
Long Term Liabilities
7.50% Senior Notes - 2008
4.78% Senior Notes - 2011
Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities
Total Members' Equity
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY

558
(718)
0
543
383

Southwest Power Pool
Statement of Income and Members' Equity
For the Six Months Ending June 30, 2005

($000)
Ordinary Income/Expense
Income
Tariff Administration Service
Fees & Assessments
Miscellaneous Income
Total Income
Expense
Salary & Benefits
Employee Travel
Administrative
Assessments & Fees
Meetings
Communications
Leases & Maintenance
Services
Regional State Committee
Depreciation & Amortization
Total Expense
Net Ordinary Income
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Fixed Asset
Withdrawal Obligation Income
Interest Income
Total Other Income
Other Expense
Interest Expense
Bad Debt Expense
Total Other Expense
Net Other Income (Expense)
Net Income

Actual
Jan - Jun 05

Budget
Jan - Jun 05

Variance
to Budget

Actual
Jan - Jun 05

Actual
Jan - Jun 04

Variance

20,685
4,000
1,916
26,601

20,195
5,055
480
25,730

490
(1,055)
1,436
871

20,685
4,000
1,916
26,601

19,293
1,617
805
21,715

1,392
2,383
1,111
4,886

8,152
329
797
2,931
201
801
1,020
4,780
785
1,290
21,086

9,883
382
1,411
3,955
208
1,686
2,924
4,752
117
2,441
27,759

(1,731)
(53)
(614)
(1,024)
(7)
(885)
(1,904)
28
668
(1,151)
(6,673)

8,152
329
797
2,931
201
801
1,020
4,780
785
1,290
21,086

7,113
250
535
503
130
593
1,620
3,351
0
2,238
16,333

1,039
79
262
2,428
71
208
(600)
1,429
785
(948)
4,753

5,515

(2,029)

7,544

5,515

5,382

133

0
0
346
346

0
0
406
406

2
489
28
519

(2)
(489)
378
(113)

1,176
0
1,176

898
49
947

278
(49)
229

(428)

(342)

0
0
406
406

0
0
60
60

1,176
0
1,176

1,344
250
1,594

(168)
(250)
(418)

(1,534)

764

(3,563)

8,308

(770)
4,745

(770)
4,745

4,954

(209)

Southwest Power Pool
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2005

($000)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss)
to net cash provided by operations:
Depreciation
Amortization
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Accrued revenue
Prepaid expenses
Accounts payable
Other current liabilities
Customer deposits
Net cash provided by operating activities

Jan - Jun 05

4,745

1,250
40
128
(2,454)
(1,543)
322
1,780
(2,504)
1,765

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Net cash used by investing activities

(5,412)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment on 7.5% Senior Notes - 2008
Net cash used by financing activities

(5,000)

Net cash decrease for period
Cash at beginning of period
Cash at end of period

(5,412)

(5,000)
(8,647)
47,651
39,004

Southwest Power Pool
Capital Expenditures
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2005

($000)
Jan - Jun 05

Budget

Variance to Budget

Imbalance Market
Primary Operations Center
Maintenance - Software
Maintenance - Hardware

3,269
319
916
908

3,896
1,892
1,650
2,136

(627)
(1,573)
(734)
(1,228)

Total Capital Expenditures

5,412

9,574

(4,162)
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RELIABILITY COORDINATION
TLR Events per Quarter
140

# of Events

120
100
80
60
40
20
0
SPP

2Q-05

1Q-05

4Q-04

3Q-04

2Q-04

111

31

105

128

55

2Q05 v. 2Q04 shows more than double number of events.

SCHEDULING
Daily Average Tags Processed
600

Number of Tags

500

400

300

200

100

0

SPP

2Q-05

1Q-05

4Q-04

3Q-04

2Q-04

456

473

416

440

520

2Q05 v. 2Q04 shows decrease in the number of tags processed.
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TARIFF ADMINISTRATION
Total Requests Subm itted
70000
60000
50000
40000
30000
20000
10000
0
SPP

2Q-05

1Q-05

4Q-04

3Q-04

2Q-04

43979

42720

61504

65099

32901

2Q05 v. 2Q04 shows strong increase in total transmission service requests.
% of Total Requests that are Confirm ed
70%
60%
50%
40%
30%
20%
10%
0%
SPP

2Q-05

1Q-05

4Q-04

3Q-04

2Q-04

36%

56%

32%

29%

63%

2Q05 v. 2Q04 shows strong decrease in percentage of transmission service requests granted.
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QUEUE STATUS REPORT
Transmission Service Request Queue
Number of requests/studies = 195/97, representing 16,279 MW
Number of non-DC Tie requests/studies = 109/66, representing 7,723 MW
There are 86 requests/31 studies for DC Tie requests representing 8,556 MW that cannot be
processed due to impending DC Tie competition.
During the same period last year, there were 130 requests/58 studies in process, representing
8,471 MW. There were 47 requests/16 studies for DC Tie requests representing 2,082 MW that
could not be processed due to impending DC Tie competition.

Generation Interconnection Queue
Number of requests = 33, representing 6,790 MW
•
Number of wind requests = 23, representing 3,531 MW
•
Number of fossil fuel requests = 9, representing 3,009 MW
Number of requests with Interconnection Agreement pending = 10
Interconnection Agreements signed during 2005 = 2
During the same period last year, there are 38 requests in process (26 wind; 12 fossil fuel)
representing 9,785 MW (5,029MW wind; 4,756 MW fossil fuel). There were 11 Interconnection
Agreements pending.
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SPP DOCKETS AT FERC/STATE COMMISSIONS
DOCKET
NUMBER

CASE NAME

RT04-01 and
ER04-48

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

RM05-5-000

Standards For Business
Practices And
Communications Protocols
For Public Utilities

ER05-666

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

DESCRIPTION
SPP filed a proposal for recognition as an RTO. By order
issued February 10, the Commission accepted SPP’s
proposal for recognition as an RTO subject to conditions
and compliance filing requirements. On October 1, 2004
FERC issued an Order on SPP’s August 2, 2004
compliance filing. The order recognized SPP as an RTO
and required several additional compliance steps by
November 1. FERC then issued a February 11, 2005
Order addressing SPP’s compliance filings and directing
SPP to make additional filings.
The FERC issued a NOPR with regard to a proposal to
include in its regulations by reference certain Standards
for Business Practices and Communication Protocols for
Public Utilities. These standards would be those
promulgated by the North American Energy Standards
Board’s (“NAESB”) Wholesale Electric Quadrant
(“WEQ”).

SPP made an omnibus filing to revise portions of its
tariff and add a schedule 4-A. This includes changes to
Generation Imbalance Service, Limitation of Liability,
Monthly Demand Charge & Zone Transmission Load,
etc.

CURRENT STATUS

SPP made the necessary
compliance filings within 90
days from FERC’s 2/11/05
Orders. On May 13, 2005, SPP
filed the IMM contract with
FERC.

On July 1, 2005, SPP joined
comments filed by the ISO/RTO
Council encouraging FERC to
accept some standards while
allowing review of others.
Interventions and Protests have
been filed and SPP filed an
answer to the protests on April 6,
2005. On April 22, 2005 FERC
issued a deficiency letter
regarding the limitation of
liability issue and SPP has
responded with an answer and a
supplement to that letter. No
further action has been taken on
this docket.
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DOCKET
NUMBER
ER05-576

ER05-990

ER05-1072

ER05-652

CASE NAME

DESCRIPTION

On February 11, 2005, Southwest Power Pool, Inc
submitted an Agreement for Wholesale Distribution
Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Services Charges between Kansas Electric Power
Cooperative, Inc and the Empire District Electric Co.
In a May 2 Filing, Westar proposed to (a) update
Westar's rates to recover the costs of providing
transmission and ancillary service; and (b) adopt a
Southwest Power Pool, Inc formula rate approach to determining and keeping the
transmission service rates current. SPP submitted this
filing to merely track the proposed rates for transmission
service applicable to the Westar pricing zone.

CURRENT STATUS
On April 16, 2005 FERC
accepted the filing with an
effective date of April 16, 2005.

No FERC action has been taken
on this docket.

American Electric Power
Co.

AEP-PSO submitted a notice of cancellation of an
amended interchange agreement known as the Mo-KanOk agreement.

SPP intervened in this docket on
June 24, 2005. No FERC action
has been taken at this time.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc

On February 28, 2005, SPP submitted a filing to revise
its Tariff to implement a regional transmission cost
allocation proposal with regard to new transmission
upgrades. This proposal was developed by the Regional
State Committee.

FERC accepted SPP’s filing of
the proposal to become effective
on May 5, 2005. FERC then
granted rehearing on June 22,
2005. No final decision has
been made in this docket.
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DOCKET
NUMBER

ER05562

ER05156

ER041232

CASE NAME

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

DESCRIPTION

On February 8, 2005, SPP filed a revision to its open
access transmission tariff to add Schedule 12 in order to
recover SPP's payments to FERC's Annual Charges.

SPP filed Attachment AD on November 1, 2004 to
provide an interim agreement between SPP and
Southwestern Power Administration until a permanent
agreement can be executed.

Filing of an amendment to the SPP OATT to implement
a rate change proposed by Excel for Southwestern Public
Service in Docket ER04-1174-000

CURRENT STATUS
Interventions and Protests have
been filed and SPP filed an
answer to the protests on April 4,
2005. On April 8, 2005 FERC
accepted the filing and
suspended it, subject to the
outcome of Settlement and
Hearing Proceedings. After a
settlement conference, FERC
accepted the filing and clarified
it on June 3, 2005.
On February 8, 2005, SPP filed a
supplement to Attachment AD
and a revised agreement. On
March 31, 2005, FERC accepted
Attachment AD and the revised
agreement. The SPA
coordination agreement was
filed on May 18, 2005.
FERC accepted the revisions,
suspended them for five months,
to become effective May 20,
2005, subject to refund, and
established hearing and
settlement judge procedures. On
February 14, 2005, FERC
granted rehearing to allow
additional time to consider the
issues.
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DOCKET
NUMBER

ER99-4392

ER05-1118

ER03-765

CASE NAME

DESCRIPTION

CURRENT STATUS

East Texas Electric
Cooperatives, Inc. v. FERC

SPP filed revisions to its tariff in order to implement
network integration transmission service. FERC granted a
rehearing request in accordance with a Court decision to
remand the case to FERC.

On February 11, 2005, FERC
accepted SPP’s past compliance
filing and directed SPP to make
a new compliance filing. SPP
filed on March 14, 2005. On
June 3, 2005 FERC issued an
order and clarification affirming
that redispatch is not required to
sustain non-firm service.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc

On June 15, 2005, Southwest Power Pool, Inc submitted
proposed revisions to its Open Access Transmission
Tariff to incorporate Energy Imbalance Market and
Market Monitoring Plan, effective 3/1/06.

No action has been taken in this
docket.

Calpine Oneta filed a rate schedule intended to allow it to
provide Reactive Power Service to SPP and charge SPP
based on an annual revenue requirement of $2.7M. SPP
intervened asserting that Calpine Oneta had not made an
adequate showing that it is entitled to compensation for
Reactive Power Service, and that SPP only acts as a
conduit to collect Reactive Power Service charges and
pass the revenues through to the provider of the service.

The procedural schedule for
resolution of Calpine’s issue has
been reinstated and is scheduled
to have an initial decision by the
ALJ on November 3, 2005. SPP
filed testimony on April 26,
2005 and filed in opposition to
Calpine’s motion to strike and/or
summary disposition on June 28,
2005.

Calpine Oneta Power, L.P
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DOCKET
NUMBER

CASE NAME

EC03-131

Oklahoma Gas & Electric
Company and NRG
McLain

ER05-1087

Southwest Power Pool, Inc

ER05-799

Southwest Power Pool, Inc

ER04-699000; ER051065

Entergy Services, Inc.

DESCRIPTION

CURRENT STATUS

OG&E and NRG filed an application for OG&E to acquire
NRG’s ownership interest in the McLain generating
facility. FERC stated that the proposed transaction could
have an adverse effect on competition and established
hearing procedures. One of the issues set for hearing was
whether a third-party should perform the disputed tariff
functions until SPP is determined to be a fully independent
system operator or regional transmission organization
(“RTO”).
SPP made revisions to its Tariff in order to incorporate
Aquila Networks-L&P ("L&P'), Aquila Networks-MPS
("MPS"), and Aquila Networks-WPK ("WPK") as
Transmission Owners participating in the SPP Tariff.

In its July 2 Order, FERC
approved the settlement proposal
set forth by OG&E. On August
2, 2004 Intergen requested
rehearing of the FERC Order.
FERC issued a tolling order on
September 1, 2004. FERC
denied the rehearing request on
April 18, 2005.

SPP filed an unexecuted Network Integration
Transmission Service Agreement between SPPOG&E-OMPA to rollover grandfathered transmission
from the OG&E tariff to the SPP Tariff

Federal Energy Regulatory Commission proceedings
concerning Entergy’s ICT proposal.

FERC accepted the filing on
June 30, 2005.
FERC accepted the filing on
May 18, 2005 and set the docket
for hearing and settlement. A
settlement conference was held
on May 19, 2005 and other
conferences are planned.
Entergy filed its enhanced ICT
proposal on January 3, 2005. On
March 11, 2005 FERC
conditionally accepted Entergy’s
filing. SPP intervened on June 7,
2005 and has filed testimony in
this docket.
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DOCKET
NUMBER

CASE NAME

DESCRIPTION

CURRENT STATUS
On October 13, 2004, SPP made
a CCN Filing with APSC for
recognition as a public utility
and asked for disclaimer of
regulation. SPP filed testimony
and the Cost/Benefit Study on
June 17, 2005. The APSC has
submitted a data request and SPP
is compiling the information.
SPP filed an intervention on
September 13, 2004. Entergy
filed its enhanced ICT proposal
on January 6, 2005.

Arkansas
04-137-U

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.

SPP’s CCN Filing with APSC for recognition as a public
utility.

Louisiana
U-28155

Entergy Services, Inc.

Louisiana Public Service Commission proceedings
concerning Entergy’s ICT proposal

Entergy Services, Inc.

An Investigation regarding Entergy Arkansas, Inc.’s
participation in an Entergy-only independent
transmission system administrator structure as compared
to its participation in the Southwest Power Pool Regional
Transmission Organization.

SPP has filed initial and reply
comments in the proceeding.

Aquila filed to join the MISO, and MISO has committed
to complete a study of the costs and benefits of Aquila as
part of MISO and Aquila as part of SPP.

SPP filed an intervention on
February 25, 2005 and a
technical conference was held on
April 11, 2005 in Kansas City,
Missouri. On May 12, 2005, the
MPSC dismissed the case and
terminated the docket.

Arkansas
04-050-U

In The Matter Of Aquila,
Inc. D/B/A Aquila
Networks – MPS and
Missouri
Aquila Networks – L&P’s
EO-2003-0566
Application to Join the
Midwest Independent
Transmission System
Operator, Inc.
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LEGAL MATTERS PENDING

Party/Description

Issue

Reliant Energy

Disputed withdrawal fee.

City of Jonesboro

Demand letter sent for repayment of membership
overpayment.

EEOC Charge

Former SPP employee filed EEOC charge.
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EXECUTIVE INDUSTRY ACTIVITIES
Executive

Event

Nick Brown

Meeting: MPSC & KCC (April 4)
EPRI Board, Charlotte, NC (April 5-6)
Accenture IUEC, Barcelona, Spain (April 11-15)
NERC Audit (April 19)
APSC Meeting (April 20)
ICT Discussions: Entergy (May 5)
KMEA Conference, Wichita, KS (May 18-19)
ISO/RTO Council, Idaho (May 23)
Altenbaumer Meeting, Decatur, IL (June 2
Member Meeting: GRDA (June 7)
Prudential, New York City, NY (June 8-9)
New Orleans City Council Meeting, New Orleans, LA (June 14)
Mid-America Regulatory Conference, Little Rock, AR (June 20-22)
Entergy ICT Technical Conference, New Orleans, LA (June 29-30)

Les Dillahunty

Meeting: MPSC & KCC (April 4)
ICT Discussions: Entergy (April 11)
Member Meeting: TexLa (April 19)
LA Tech Mechanical Engineering Advisory Council (May 6-7)
Member Meeting: GRDA (June 7)
Member CCN Prefiling Meeting @ MOPC (June 15)
CCN Prefiling Meeting @ APSC (June 16)
Mid-America Regulatory Conference, Little Rock, AR (June 20-22)

Tom Dunn

Member Meeting: KEPCo, Topeka, KS (May 3)
Altenbaumer Meeting, Decatur, IL (June 2
Member Meeting: GRDA (June 7)
Prudential, New York City, NY (June 8-9)

Stacy Duckett

NERC Meeting (May 2-3)
Energy Trading Law Seminar (June 1-2)
Mid-America Regulatory Conference, Little Rock, AR (June 20-22)

Carl Monroe

ICT Discussions: APSC (April 4)
ICT Discussions: Entergy (April 11, April 27 & May 5)
Mid-Continent Energy Marketers Association Annual Meeting & Spring
Conference, Dallas, TX (April 18-20)
Southeastern Electric Exchange Meeting (April 20)
Meeting: SWPA (April 22)
Member Meeting: GRDA (April 22)
SPP Regional Power Operator Conference (May 2-4)
Member Meeting: KEPCO (May 3)
MISO JOA (May 16)
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CMPC Meeting (May 23)
Meeting: OCC & Wind Power (May 24)
New Mexico Public Service Commission Meeting (May 24-26?)
Member Meeting: OMPA (May 24)
SPP Planning Summit IV, Dallas, TX (June 1-2)
New Orleans City Council Meeting, New Orleans, LA (June 14)
Entergy ITC Technical Conference, New Orleans, LA (June 29-30)
Charles Yeung

NAESB Energy Day (April 6)
NERC FMWG (San Antonio) (April 7-8)
NERC NAESB TLR Subcommittee (April 11, April 29, May 9, June 1)
SRC (April 28)
NERC Board of Trustees (May 2)
NERC FMWG, Denver, CO (May 16-17)
NERC Communications, Montreal (June 7)
Electric Reliability Organization Workshop, Toronto, Canada (June 22)
US-Canada Bilateral Electric Reliability Oversight Group, Toronto, ON
(June 22)
NAESB JISWG, Houston, TX (June 23-24)
ISO/RTO Council – RLC (June 24)
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WITHDRAWAL LETTERS
MEMBERS

EFFECTIVE DATES

Cleco Corporation

10/31/06

Grand River Dam Authority

10/31/05

Louisiana Energy & Power Authority

10/31/05

City of Lafayette Utilities System

10/31/05

Midwest Energy

10/31/05

Oklahoma Municipal Power

10/31/05

The Empire District Electric Company

10/31/05

Westar Energy

10/31/05
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STAFFING REPORT
SPP Employee count as of January 1, 2005:
1Q New hires:
2Q New hires:
YTD Terminations:
0 – Retiree
5 – Voluntary termination
1 – Involuntary termination
0 – Interns (part time/seasonal)

131
8
11
6

SPP Employee count as of June 30, 2005:

144

SPP Employee count as of March 31, 2005:

137

There are 167 full time employees in the 2005 budget.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Report from the President
To the Board of Directors
July 2005
ADMINISTRATION
SPP currently has 145 full time employees, 1 intern and one part-time employee. Year to date, the
HR Department has processed approximately 900 resumes (600 in IT alone), 110 interviews, 23
new hires and 7 terminations. Five staff additions will occur within the next month. We are
advertising and interviewing for the following 13 positions: Market Engineers (3 positions);
Technical Lead, IT, Oracle DBA; IT Specialist II, Applications Support; IT Specialist III,
Infrastructure; IT Specialist, Security; Technical Lead, IT, CISCO Management; IT Specialist, DBA
Support; Operations Trainer; Engineer III; Planning, EMS Engineers (2 positions).
We have architectural drawings for the new operations center on display at the Board meeting.
Obviously groundbreaking did not occur in July as I had originally hoped, but new contractor
thinking appears to have provided for a larger structure at the same cost. We still expect to be
operational prior to next summer.
Energy imbalance service market training is organized into four training tracks including Markets
for IT, Operations/Trading, Scheduling, and Settlements. The training department has conducted
market training classes for approximately 350 people since January of 2005. These people represent
19 market participants. A gap/reliability training program is being designed to provide training for
people who participated in market training earlier in the year, but need information regarding
market design and reliability changes that have occurred since their training. In addition, market
training version 2.0 will be conducted in October/November and will include a complete suite of
training courses in all four tracks for people who were unable to attend the training sessions offered
earlier in the year. This series will be repeated during the January/February 2006 timeframe.
With the Board’s encouragement I have applied and been accepted to Harvard Business School’s
Advanced Management Program this fall. The program runs September 11 - November 4. The
officer team will handle my responsibilities during this period. The officers and the directors have
agreed to the particulars of this transition. I’m honored and excited about this opportunity and look
forward to applying what I learn during the experience.

REGULATORY
Commissioner Joseph Kelliher was appointed chairman of FERC following Pat Wood’s departure.
The energy bill, RTO cost reform and open access transmission tariff reforms were listed as top
priorities on his agenda. I believe and am in the process of confirming that the RTO cost reform
initiative includes modification of FERC’s cost assessment to RTOs. SPP began billing Schedule 12
July 1 to collect these fees. Chairman Kelliher appointed Dan Larcamp as Commission Chief of
Staff and Shelton Canon to head the Office of Markets Tariffs and Rates. We have a great long-term
relationship with both men.
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Comments and protests to SPP’s energy imbalance market tariff filing were due July 15th. The
comments and a summary of the comments have been distributed via email and posted on SPP’s
website. While the comments and protests are significant, overall I’m pleased with the tone and
limited magnitude in comparison with other regional market filings. Though FERC is under no
obligation to accept reply comments, Staff is working hard on a response. We are hopeful for an
order in early September.
The Senate passed the comprehensive energy bill two weeks ago by a vote of 85-12. The bill must
now go to conference committee; the President has said that he wants the bill on his desk by August
1. Many are optimistic that this is the year despite a few significant differences between the House
and Senate bills that will have to be reconciled by the conference committee. I’m hopeful but not
holding my breath.

OPERATIONS
Implementation of the JOA with MISO is proceeding on schedule for an October 1, 2005
implementation of coordination on flowgates. Staff is working with MISO, PJM, TVA, and MAPP
on incrementally improving the congestion management process and pushing for changing the
forward allocation of flowgate capacity. Staff is also working with Entergy and TVA for reliability
coordinator seams agreements.
Our Reliability Coordinator was assessed by NERC for readiness to perform its functions. The
NERC Team praised a number of SPP processes and systems as examples of excellence. They also
gave an opinion that SPP was capable of performing all the functions of a reliability coordinator.
Staff is implementing or assessing the need for recommendations from the NERC team that go
beyond the minimum requirements.
Staff is evaluating the slow rise in TLRs in the second quarter of this year, and assessing if the
MISO market startup has any impact on SPP operations.
The transmission facilities of Aquila’s three operating companies, Missouri Public Service Co., St.
Joseph Light & Power and West Plains Energy, were added to the SPP regional tariff July 1. With
combined revenue requirements of $26.7 million, this represents a 6.6 percent increase in
transmission infrastructure to the regional tariff. While no new transaction paths were added with
their addition, interface capacities were increased, particularly with Ameren. We are still working
on the addition of Sunflower Electric Power Corporation’s facilities to the tariff, which will
represent another large increase in footprint.
Working on our first ever Aggregate System Impact Study, Staff reduced an immense set of
overloads and undervoltages into eighteen sets of data requests - 15 for SPP transmission owners
and 3 for first-tier neighbors and non-OATT participants. Staff emailed these requests July 8th
seeking a response July 15th. I’m pleased to report that fifteen of the eighteen responded to our
request for upgrade solutions by the 15th with the remaining three providing the information only a
few days later. Success for the overall study depends heavily on transmission owner response to
staff inquiries. Thanks to their noteworthy efforts, staff is well on the way to achieving a study
publication in the first week of August.
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INTERREGIONAL ISSUES
COMPETE, a national coalition promoting the public interest benefits of competitive electricity
markets, released a new study last week quantifying over $15 billion in consumer savings from
1999-2003 stemming from wholesale electric market competition, compared to what they would
have realized under the traditional regulated utility environment without competition. The study,
"Putting Competitive Power Markets to the Test," authored by independent consulting firm Global
Energy Decisions, Inc., also credits competition for improved electric utility operations and
efficiencies and significant production cost savings for Eastern United States wholesale power
customers due to the formation and expansion of Regional Transmission Organizations.
The ISO/RTO Council is nearing completion of a white paper detailing the benefits of regional
transmission organizations. This effort is in direct response to national criticism that infrastructure
costs of ISOs and RTOs are too high and not justified. While SPP specifically has not come under
this attack, it is important to participate in the development and publication of this information to
provide national policy makers with factual information on which to base their decisions.
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Report to the Board of Directors
July 26, 2005

Organizational Roster
The following members represent the Human Resources Committee:
Quentin Jackson
Phyllis Bernard
Harry Dawson
Trudy Harper
Mike Palmer
Richard Spring
Tom Dunn

Director
Director
OMPA
Tenaska
Empire
KCPL
SPP

Background
The SPP Human Resources Committee (“HRC”) is charged to review and recommend to the SPP Board
of Directors the annual SPP Retirement Plan and Retiree Medical Coverage expense.
Analysis
SPP engaged Osborn, Carreiro & Associates (“the Actuary”) to perform an actuarial valuation report of
the SPP Retirement Plan as of January 1, 2005. The report identifies 2005 accounting expense for the
plan as well as minimum and maximum contributions for the plan. The Actuary determined 2005’s
minimum contribution level to be $893,017 and maximum level to be $1,075,791. SPP’s 2005 budget
allowed for contributions to the pension plan of $1,116,000; through July 31, 2005 SPP will have
contributed $546,000 ($78,000/mo) to the pension plan in the current fiscal year. In order to meet the
minimum contribution level SPP would need to contribute $347,017 ($69,403/mo) during the remainder of
the year. To meet the maximum funding level SPP must contribute $529,791 ($105,958/mo) through the
remainder of 2005. To match the 2005 SPP budget, the required contribution would total $570,000
($114,000/mo).
The schedule below illustrates the historical funding of the SPP Retirement Plan:

Maximum
Minimum
Actual

2001
$614,944
$337,671
$500,000

2002
$918,840
$637,022
$637,022

2003
$948,884
$836,662
$836,662

2004
$1,001,365
$881,234
$936,000

SPP Retirement Plan Fund Status as of December 31, 2004
The fund had total assets of $4.8 million as compared to the Plan’s Accumulated Benefit Obligation of
$3.8 million and the Projected Benefit Obligation of $6.8 million. The Actuary estimates participants will
accrue $979,000 in benefits during fiscal year 2005.
SPP Post-retirement Benefits Plan
In 1995, the Board of Directors approved retiree medical coverage for the SPP employees who retire at
their Normal Retirement Date as defined in the SPP Retirement Plan. The benefit covers all SPP
employees who retired at their normal retirement age. The Board also approved those employees of
record on January 1, 1996 could retire between the ages of 55 - 65 and be eligible for postretirement
medical benefits.

The Actuary estimated 2005 net periodic post retirement benefit cost to be $471,200. This computation is
based on a 7% discount rate, and a 7% investment return on plan assets, and retirement at age 65. The
health care cost trend was assumed to increase an average of 8% for 5 years and 5% thereafter. SPP’s
2005 budget approved $504,000 in funding for post retirement benefits. Through July 2005, SPP has
contributed $247,919 ($35,417/mo) to the post retirement benefits fund. In order to meet the Actuary
recommended funding SPP would need to contribute $223,281 ($44,656/mo) through the remainder of
2005. To meet the budgeted amount, SPP would need to contribute $256,081 ($51,216/mo) through the
rest of the fiscal year.

Recommendation
Approve 2005 funding of the SPP Retirement Plan at $979,000.
Approve 2005 funding of the SPP Post-retirement Benefits Plan at $471,200
Approved:

Human Resources Committee

Action Requested:

Approve Recommendation

April 25, 2005

Southwest Power Pool
HUMAN RESOURCES COMMITTEE
Recommendation to Board of Directors
July 26, 2005
Establish Supplemental Executive Retirement Plan
Organizational Roster
The following members represent the Human Resources Committee:
Quentin Jackson
Phyllis Bernard
Harry Dawson
Trudy Harper
Mike Palmer
Richard Spring
Tom Dunn

Director
Director
OMPA
Tenaska
Empire
KCPL
SPP

Background
The HR Committee (“HRC”) engaged Towers Perrin to perform a survey of industry salary and
benefit practices and recommend improvements to SPP’s plans. Towers Perrin recommended
implementation of a supplemental executive retirement plan (“SERP”) to bring SPP’s practices in
line with its peers and remain competitive when seeking executive talent.
Analysis
The HRC desired to develop a SERP that brought equity to the retirement planning of select
senior level employees. These employees have been limited in their ability to enjoy the full SPP
match for contributions to the SPP 401(k) plan and are also limited in their ability to defer
compensation substantial compensation to a plan prior to taxation.
The HRC developed a draft SERP compliant with section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.
This section of the tax code addresses supplemental retirement plans for not-for-profit entities.
Significant attributes of the plan are as follows:
• The plan is “non qualified”; meaning it is not subject to the provisions of ERISA
• All assets in the plan are subject to the claims of SPP’s creditors
• Only officers of SPP and select department director level employees will be eligible to
participate in the plan
• SPP will match employee contributions at a rate of 75¢ per $1.00 employee contribution
to the extent that an employee is not eligible to receive the full SPP match within the SPP
401(k) plan. In no instance will the combined matching contribution to the 401(k) and
SERP exceed 4.5% of an employee’s compensation
• The total of an employee’s deferral plus SPP match may not exceed the IRS limit
(currently $14,000/year)
• Withdrawals may only be made upon termination of employment with SPP or in extreme
unforeseen circumstances
• Participants will maintain investment discretion and will have available investment options
exactly equal to those available within the SPP 401(k) plan
• Administrative costs for the plan are estimated at $2,500 - $3,000 / year, expected
matching contributions totaling $4,000 are included within the 2005 budget

Recommendation
The Human Resources Committee recommends SPP establish a supplemental executive
retirement plan in substantially the form discussed above and detailed in the attached plan
document.
Approved
Human Resources Committee

April 25, 2005

Board of Directors
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SOUTHWEST POWER POOL, INC.
457(B) PLAN

INTRODUCTION

Southwest Power Pool, Inc. hereby establishes this Southwest Power Pool, Inc. 457(b)
Plan, effective January 1, 2005. The Plan is intended to be an eligible deferred compensation
plan pursuant to Section 457(b) of the Internal Revenue Code.
This Plan is an unfunded plan maintained by a tax-exempt organization primarily for the
purpose of providing deferred compensation for a select group of management or highly
compensated employees, and therefore, is intended to be exempt from the participation, vesting,
funding and fiduciary requirements of Title I of ERISA.
ARTICLE 1
DEFINITIONS

The following definitions apply to this Plan unless the context plainly requires otherwise.
Any variation shall have the meaning ascribed to the defined term.
Section 1.01. Account means the bookkeeping account maintained for each Participant
that represents such Participant’s entire hypothetical interest in the Plan, to which is credited
Deferred Compensation Amounts pursuant to Section 3.02 and the investment experience
thereon, and to which is also charged with allocable administrative expenses, if any.
Section 1.02. Beneficiary means any person who is designated, pursuant to Section 5.02,
to receive the benefits payable with respect to a Participant’s Account under this Plan upon the
death of the Participant.
Section 1.03. Benefit Commencement Date means the date which is 30 days after the
Participant’s Severance from Employment.
Section 1.04. Compensation means all remuneration (including Deferred Compensation)
paid to a Participant by the Sponsor for services rendered.
Section 1.05. Deferred Compensation means the amount of Compensation deferred by a
Participant under this Plan pursuant to a Deferred Compensation Agreement.
Section 1.06. Deferred Compensation Agreement means the written agreement between
a Participant and the Sponsor pursuant to which the Participant agrees to accept a reduction in
Compensation and the Sponsor agrees to credit the amount of such reduction to the Participant’s
Account under this Plan.

Section 1.07. Eligible Employee means each management or highly compensated
employee of the Sponsor who in the sole discretion of the Sponsor has been determined by the
Sponsor to be eligible to participate in this Plan. Any individual who is an Eligible Employee for
a Plan Year shall remain an Eligible Employee for subsequent Plan Years while still employed
by the Sponsor unless the Sponsor, in its sole discretion determines otherwise.
Section 1.08. Includible Compensation means compensation for services performed for
the Sponsor as defined in IRC Section 415(c)(3).
Section 1.09. IRC means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended and in effect
from time to time.
Section 1.10. Investment Options means the various investment options which
Participants may select as the investment vehicle(s) for their hypothetical Account balances, as
may be approved by the Plan Administrator from time to time.
Section 1.11. Normal Retirement Age means age 65.
Section 1.12. Participant means any Eligible Employee who has been admitted to
participate in this Plan pursuant to the provisions of Article 2. An individual shall remain a
Participant, regardless of whether such individual is an Eligible Employee of the Sponsor, if
there remains any amounts credited to his or her Account.
Section 1.13. Plan means the arrangement set forth herein, the title of which is set forth
in the Introduction, as it may be amended from time to time.
Section 1.14. Plan Administrator means the person or persons designated by the Sponsor
pursuant to Section 10.01 to administer the Plan.
Section 1.15. Plan Year means the twelve (12) month period ending on each
December 31.
Section 1.16. Severance from Employment means a voluntary or involuntary termination
of employment with the Sponsor for any reason including death or disability, or for no reason;
provided, however, that an approved leave of absence shall not constitute a Severance from
Employment.
Section 1.17. Sponsor means Southwest Power Pool, Inc. which is an “eligible
employer” as is defined in IRC Section 457(e)(1)(B).

Section 1.18. State Law means any statutes, court decisions, executive orders,
administrative rulings, regulations or other proclamations having the force of law in the State of
Arkansas, to the extent not preempted by ERISA.
Section 1.19. Trust means the funding vehicle, if any, established by the Sponsor and the
Trustee to hold the assets of the Plan. The Sponsor may, but is not required to, establish a Trust,
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and any such Trust shall be a grantor “rabbi” trust.
Section 1.20. Trust Agreement means the agreement by and between the Sponsor and the
Trustee which governs the operation of the Trust, if any.
Section 1.21. . Trustee means the individual(s) or entity designated by the Sponsor and
set forth in the Trust Agreement.
Section 1.22. Unforeseeable Emergency shall have the same meaning as set forth under
Treas. Reg. section 1.457-6(c) and shall include the following:
(a)
Sudden and unexpected illness or accident of the Participant, the Participant’s
spouse or dependents;
(b)

Loss of the Participant’s property due to casualty; or

(c)
Other similar extraordinary and unforeseeable circumstances arising as a result of
acts beyond the control of the Participant.
The need to send a Participant’s dependent to college or other post-secondary
educational institution or the desire to purchase a residence shall not be considered an
Unforeseeable Emergency.
Section 1.23. Valuation Date means each December 31 and each other interim date
during the Plan Year on which a valuation of assets held under the Plan is made.
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ARTICLE 2
ELIGIBILITY AND PARTICIPATION

Section 2.01. Employer Contributions. The Employer may make employer contributions
in the sole discretion of the Employer on behalf of any Eligible Employee, subject to the
limitations of this Plan. In any event, the Employer’s contribution shall not exceed the difference
between (1) and (2) where (1) is the amount of Employer contribution which would be made
pursuant to the Employer’s 401(k) plan based on the matching formula in such plan based on
Elective Contributions to this Plan and elective contributions to the 401(k) plan, but without the
limitations of section 401(a)(17), 402(g) or the discrimination requirements of 401(k) or 401(m)
and where (2) is the employer contributions to the Employer’s 401(k) plan.
Section 2.02. Elective Contributions. Subject to the limitations of the Plan, an Eligible
Employee may also make Elective contributions by completing a Deferred Compensation
Agreement authorizing the Sponsor to reduce his or her Compensation by a specific amount. An
Eligible Employee shall become a Participant as of the first day of the calendar month next
following the acceptance and approval of such individual’s properly completed Deferred
Compensation Agreement by the Plan Administrator.
By becoming a Participant, such Eligible Employee shall for all purposes be deemed to
have assented to the terms and provisions of this Plan and to all amendments hereto.
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ARTICLE 3
DEFERRED COMPENSATION CONTRIBUTIONS

Section 3.01. Elective Deferred Compensation Agreement.
(a)
General. Each Eligible Employee electing to make elective contributions under
this Plan shall complete a Deferred Compensation Agreement which authorizes the Sponsor to
reduce his or her Compensation by the Deferred Compensation subject to the limitations and
conditions of Section 3.02. A Deferred Compensation Agreement shall not be binding upon the
Sponsor until accepted and approved by the Plan Administrator.
(b)

Revisions to Deferred Compensation Agreement.

(1)
Factual Entries. A Participant may change factual information (such as
name, address, date of birth, etc.) by filing a revised Deferred Compensation Agreement
(“Revised Deferred Compensation Agreement”) with the Plan Administrator at any time.
(2)
Elective Entries. A Participant may change the designated Deferred
Compensation at any time by completing a Revised Deferred Compensation Agreement and
filing the Revised Deferred Compensation Agreement with the Plan Administrator in the manner
prescribed by the Plan Administrator. No Revised Deferred Compensation Agreement shall
become effective with respect to any calendar month unless it is entered into by the Participant
and accepted and approved by the Plan Administrator prior to the first day of such calendar
month.
(c)
Cancellation and Reinstatement of Deferred Compensation Agreements. A
Deferred Compensation Agreement may be canceled or suspended by a Participant at any time
by delivery by the Participant of written notice to the Plan Administrator in the manner
prescribed by the Plan Administrator. A Participant who has canceled or suspended a Deferred
Compensation Agreement may reinstate such Agreement by filing a Revised Deferred
Compensation Agreement with the Plan Administrator, as provided in this Article 3, provided
such individual is still an Eligible Employee at such time.
Section 3.02. Maximum Contributions
(a)
General Limitation. In no event shall the total Deferred Compensation Amount
made with respect to any Participant (whether Employer contributions or Elective contributions)
during any taxable year exceed the lesser of: (1) the applicable dollar amount set forth in IRC
Section 457(e)(15), or (2) 100% of such Participant’s Includible Compensation.
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(b)
457(b) Catch-up Limitations. Notwithstanding any provision in Section 3.02(a) to
the contrary, with respect to any one or more of the three (3) taxable years ending before the date
of the Participant’s Normal Retirement Age, a Participant may elect to have Deferred
Compensation contributed to the Plan in an amount not to exceed the lesser of:
(1)

Twice the dollar amount in effect for such taxable year under IRC Section
457(e)(15), or

(2)

The amount of the “Underutilized Limitation” for the Participant’s taxable
year.

For purposes of this paragraph, the Underutilized Limitation with respect to a
Participant shall be equal to the sum of:
(A)
the Participant’s contribution limitation as set forth in section 3.02(a) for
such taxable year, and
(B)
the plan ceiling established under section 3.02(a) for any prior taxable
year or years in which the Participant was an Eligible Employee under this Plan,
less the amount of annual deferrals under the plan for such prior taxable year or
years.
A Participant may not elect to apply the 457(b) catch-up limitation described above more
than once, regardless of whether the full amount of the limitation is utilized or whether the
limitation utilized for all three years.
Section 3.03. Transfers from Eligible Deferred Compensation Plans. If permitted by the
Sponsor, a transfer of deferred compensation from another non-governmental eligible deferred
compensation plan (as defined in IRC Section 457(b)) shall be accepted and allocated to a
Participant’s Account under this Plan provided that such transfers are in cash or other property
acceptable to the Plan Administrator and the Trustee. The Plan Administrator may request proof
that the plan from which amounts are to be transferred is an eligible deferred compensation plan
under Section 457(b) of the IRC. Transferred amounts shall not be subject to the limitations of
Section 3.02, provided, however, that the actual amount deferred during the calendar year under
both plans shall be taken into account in calculating the deferral limitations for that year.
Section 3.04. Timing of Contributions. All Elective contributions shall be credited to
Participants’ Accounts no later than fifteen (15) business days after the end of the month in
which such Deferred Compensation otherwise would have been paid to the Participant absent
participation in this Plan.
Section 3.05. Vesting of Contributions. All Participants shall be fully vested in the funds
credited to his or her Account at all times.
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ARTICLE 4
BENEFITS UPON SEVERANCE FROM EMPLOYMENT

Section 4.01. Eligibility to Receive Benefits. Each Participant shall be entitled to receive
the benefits as defined in this Article 4 of the Plan, only upon or after Severance from
Employment.
Section 4.02. Form and Timing of Benefits. Within sixty (60) days of Severance from
Employment, a Participant must designate the date on which distributions shall commence,
which election shall be irrevocable, except as set forth herein. At any time before the designated
date, the Participant may make a one-time election to defer commencement to a later date
designated by the Participant. Only one election to defer may be made. The form of distribution
shall be as designated by the Participant prior to the commencement date, from among a lump
sum or installments not to exceed the period allowed under Section 401(a)(9) of the Code and
regulations thereunder. If no designation of a distribution date is made, distribution shall be
ninety (90) days after Severance from Employment. If no election form of distribution is made,
distribution shall be in a lump sum.
Section 4.03. Transfers to Plan of New Employer. If a Participant has a Severance from
Employment for any reason and accepts employment with another tax-exempt employer which
maintains an eligible deferred compensation plan (as defined in IRC Section 457(b)), if so
permitted by the Plan Administrator, the Participant may elect, by written notice to the Plan
Administrator and with the prior written approval of the new employer, to have any amount
transferred to the plan maintained by the new employer.
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ARTICLE 5
DEATH BENEFITS
Section 5.01. Form and Amount of Death Benefits. If a Participant’s death occurs before
he or she receives full payment from the Plan as described in Article 4, the Participant’s Account
shall be payable to his or her Beneficiary as soon as practicable following the 30th day after the
Participant’s death.
Section 5.02. Beneficiary Designation.
(a)
In General. The Participant shall file with the Plan Administrator a written
designation of primary and contingent Beneficiary which shall indicate the person or persons
who shall receive benefits payable under this Plan upon the Participant’s death. The Participant
accepts and acknowledges the burden for executing and filing a proper Beneficiary designation
with the Plan Administrator.
(b)
Change in Beneficiary Designation, Any change in Beneficiary designation shall
become effective only upon receipt of the form by the Plan Administrator whether or not the
Participant is living at the time of such receipt. Any change of Beneficiary designation filed in
proper form with the Plan Administrator shall revoke all prior Beneficiary designations.
(c)
Adequacy of Beneficiary Designation. The Plan Administrator shall determine the
acceptability of a Beneficiary designation or change of Beneficiary designation. The Plan
Administrator shall notify the Participant if the Beneficiary designation is not acceptable and
inform the Participant of the method of correction. A corrected Beneficiary designation shall be
effective as of the date on which the Participant first attempts to designate such individual.
(d)
Death Without Beneficiary Designation. If a Participant dies without having
designated a beneficiary or if every designated beneficiary has predeceased the Participant, the
benefit payment under this Plan shall be made to the properly appointed fiduciary of the
Participant’s estate provided that if a fiduciary has not been appointed and qualified within 120
days after the death, the payment shall be made in accordance with State Law.
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ARTICLE 6
UNFORESEEABLE EMERGENCY WITHDRAWALS
Section 6.01. Unforeseeable Emergency Withdrawals.
(a)
General. A Participant may request a withdrawal of a portion of his or her
Account as necessary to satisfy an immediate and heavy financial need in the event of an
Unforeseeable Emergency. Determination as to the existence of an Unforeseeable Emergency
and the manner of withdrawal shall be made by the Plan Administrator in accordance with the
IRC and regulations thereunder.
(b)
Exhaustion of Resources. A withdrawal shall not be deemed to be necessary to
satisfy an immediate and heavy financial need of the Participant if the need is or may be relieved
(1) through reimbursement or compensation by insurance or otherwise; (2) by liquidation of the
Participant’s assets (to the extent the liquidation of such assets would not itself cause severe
financial hardship), or (3) by cessation of Deferred Compensation under the Plan.
(c)
Payment. Withdrawals made pursuant to this Section 6.01 shall commence within
thirty (30) days after the date on which the Plan Administrator approves the Participant’s request
for withdrawal.
(d)
Suspension of Deferral Privileges. Notwithstanding any other provision in this
Plan to the contrary, the Sponsor may impose a period of suspension during which a Participant
requesting a withdrawal under this Section 6.01 may not authorize Deferred Compensation.
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ARTICLE 7
ESTABLISHMENT AND MAINTENANCE OF ACCOUNTS

Section 7.01. Establishment of Accounts. A bookkeeping Account shall be established in
the name of each Participant and maintained by the Plan Administrator as a recording of the
aggregate amounts credited and debited to such Participant’s Account under the Plan and any
other information deemed necessary to administer such Account. Such Account shall become the
basis for determining benefits under the Plan.
Section 7.02. Reporting of Accounts. A report of the status of a Participant’s Account
and any Account activity shall be furnished by the Plan Administrator to Participants at intervals
as determined by the Sponsor, provided, however that such report shall be no less than annual.
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ARTICLE 8
INVESTMENT OF DEFERRED COMPENSATION

Section 8.01. General. The Plan Administrator shall, after deducting any applicable
administrative expense charges, allocate the Deferred Compensation as directed by the
Participant among the Investment Option(s) selected pursuant to this Article. The market value
or cash value of the Participant’s Account shall be dependent upon the investment return
experience of the Participant’s elected Investment Option(s).
Section 8.02. Investment Direction by Participants.
(a)
Rights of Participants and Beneficiaries. A Participant shall direct the Plan
Administrator as to the Investment Option(s) which shall be the standard by which value of the
Participant’s Account shall be measured. Beneficiaries shall also direct the investment of their
Accounts. In such a case, the provisions of this Section 8.02 shall also apply to investment by
such Beneficiaries. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Plan Administrator shall retain the right
to accept or not accept such directions regarding the investment of any Account under the Plan.
(b)
Available Investment Options. The Plan Administrator may offer such Investment
Options as it determines in the exercise of its sole and absolute discretion. The Plan
Administrator may offer additional Investment Options or eliminate Investment Options as it
determines in the exercise of its sole and absolute discretion.
(c)
Transmission of Investment Directions. Investment directions must be (1)
communicated in writing to the Plan Administrator or through another medium approved by the
Plan Administrator and the Trustee, (2) effective prospectively only, and only as to Investment
Options available for investment after the direction is transmitted to the Trustee and (3) effective
as promptly as practicable after receipt by the Trustee. Until an investment direction becomes
effective, the Plan Administrator, Sponsor and the Trustee shall be fully protected in following
the previous investment direction which is to be superseded by the new investment direction.
(d)
Default Investment Direction. In the event that a Participant declines or fails to
provide investment directions with respect to his or her Account, the Plan Administrator shall
determine the appropriate manner in which such assets are to be invested, and the Plan
Administrator, the Sponsor and the Trustee shall be fully protected with regard to such action.
Section 8.03. Losses Under the Plan. The Plan Administrator, the Sponsor and the
Trustee shall not be accountable or liable for any investment losses to a Participant’s Account
incurred by virtue of implementing the directions of the Participant with respect to the
investment of the Account or due to any reasonable administrative delay in implementing such
directions.
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ARTICLE 9
ESTABLISHMENT OF TRUST

Section 9.01. Trust Agreement and Trustee. The Sponsor may establish a Trust to fund
its obligations under the Plan. The benefits under this Plan shall be paid from the Employer’s
general assets, unless paid from such Trust. The Trustee shall have the powers set forth in the
Trust Agreement.
Section 9.02. Rights of Participants and Beneficiaries to Trust Assets. No Participant or
Beneficiary shall have any interest in any specific assets of the Sponsor or assets held in any
Trust. All amounts deferred under the Plan, all property and rights purchased with such
amounts, and all income attributable to such amounts, property or rights will remain (until made
available to the Participant or Beneficiary) at all times subject to the claims of the Sponsor’s
general creditors.
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ARTICLE 10
PLAN ADMINISTRATION

Section 10.01. Appointment and Tenure. The Sponsor shall appoint the Plan
Administrator. In absence of such appointment, the Sponsor shall serve as the Plan
Administrator.
Section 10.02. Delegation. The Plan Administrator may delegate to any person or
persons the authority to sign any documents on its behalf or to perform any act(s) within its
authority as set forth in Section 10.03 below.
Section 10.03. Authority of Plan Administrator, The Plan Administrator shall have the
full discretionary authority to administer the Plan in all its details, to perform the duties assigned
to it by the Sponsor and/or required by ERISA, and to perform any act(s) necessary to carry out
such duties including, but not limited to, the following:
(a)
To maintain and preserve records relating to Participants, former Participants and
Beneficiaries;
(b)
To prepare and furnish to Participants all information required under applicable
law or the provisions of this Plan;
(c)
To maintain sufficient Eligible Employee data, maintain separate Accounts for
Participants and make required payments of benefits;
(d)
To prepare and file or publish with all appropriate government officials all
reports, filings and other information required under law to be so filed or published~
(e)
To engage consultants, including legal, investment and actuarial advisors, and
rely on recommendations therefrom;
(f)
To determine all claims for benefits under the Plan, and to provide procedures for
determination of claims for benefits. In so doing, the Plan Administrator shall have the complete
discretion and authority to make, amend, interpret and enforce all appropriate rules and
regulations for the administration of the Plan and to decide or resolve any and all questions,
including interpretations of the Plan, as may arise in such administration; and
(g)
To retain records on elections and waivers by Participants and their Beneficiaries,
as further set forth herein,
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Section 10.04. Construction of the Plan. The Plan Administrator shall resolve all
questions arising in the administration, interpretation and application of the Plan. The Plan
Administrator shall correct any defect, reconcile any inconsistency, or supply any omission with
respect to the Plan. All decisions or actions of the Plan Administrator in respect to any question
arising out of the administration, interpretation and application of the Plan and the rules and
regulations promulgated hereunder shall be final and conclusive and binding upon all persons
having any interest in the Plan.
Section 10.05. Plan Expenses. All expenses incurred by the Sponsor and the Plan
Administrator in connection with the establishment and operation of the Plan shall be expenses
of the Sponsor.
Section 10.06. Reporting and Disclosure. The Plan Administrator shall keep all
individual and group records relating to Participants and Beneficiaries and all other records
necessary for the proper operation of the Plan and Administration of Participant Accounts,
including but not limited to investment reports, audits and quarterly reports.
Section 10.07. Right To Suspend Benefits And Correct Errors. The Plan Administrator
shall take such steps as are considered necessary and appropriate to remedy any inequity that
results from incorrect information received or communicated in good faith or as the consequence
of an administrative error. The Plan Administrator may suspend the payment until satisfied as to
the correctness of the payment or the person to receive the payment or to allow filing in any
court of competent jurisdiction of a suit in such form as the Plan Administrator considers
appropriate for a legal determination of the benefits to be paid and the persons to receive them.
The Plan Administrator specifically reserves the right to correct errors of every sort, and the
Participant hereby agrees as Participant or on behalf of any Beneficiary or Beneficiaries to any
method of error correction as the Plan Administrator shall specify. The objective of any such
method of error correction shall be. to the extent reasonably possible, to adjust the Account of
the Participant by reversing transactions or taking other actions to approach the situation that
would have existed if the error had not been made. The Plan Administrator shall also be
authorized to recover any payment made in error including the right to make deductions from
future benefits,
Section 10.08. Claims Procedure.
(a)
Claim. Any person claiming a benefit, or requesting an interpretation or ruling
under the Plan, or requesting information under the Plan shall present his or her request in
writing to the Plan Administrator.
(b)
Denial of Claim. Whenever a request for benefits under the Plan is wholly or
partially denied, the Plan Administrator shall notify the person claiming such benefits of its
decision in writing. Such notification shall contain (1) specific reasons for the denial of the
claim, (2) specific reference to pertinent Plan provisions, (3) a description of any additional
material or information necessary for such person to perfect such claim and an explanation of
why such material or information is necessary, and (4) information as to the steps to be taken if
14

the person wishes to submit a request for review. Such notification shall be given within 90 days
after the claim is received by the Plan Administrator (or within 180 days, if special
circumstances require an extension of time for processing the claim, and if written notice of such
extension and circumstances is given to such person within the initial 90-day period). If such
notification is not given within such period, the claim shall be considered denied as of the last
day of such period and such person may request a review of his claim.
(c)
Review Procedure. Within 60 days after the date on which a person receives a
written notice of a denied claim (or, if applicable, within 60 days after the date on which such
denial is considered to have occurred), such person (or his duly authorized representative) may
(1) file a written request with the Plan Administrator for a review of his denied claim and of
pertinent documents and (2) submit written issues and comments to the Plan Administrator. The
Plan Administrator shall notify such person of its decision in writing. Such notification shall be
written in a manner calculated to be understood by such person and shall contain specific reasons
for the decision as well as specific references to pertinent Plan provisions. The decision on
review shall be made within 60 days after the request for review is received by the Plan
Administrator (or within 120 days, if special circumstances require an extension of time for
processing the request, such as an election by the Plan Administrator to hold a hearing, and if
written notice of such extension and circumstances is given to such person within the initial 60day period). If the decision on review is not made within such period, the claim shall be
considered denied.
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ARTICLE 11
AMENDMENT, TERMINATION AND SUSPENSION

Section 11.01. Amendment. The Sponsor may, by action of its chief executive or its
governing body as appropriate, amend this Plan. No amendment shall increase the duties or
liabilities of the Plan Administrator or the Trustee without the consent of such party. No
amendment shall deprive any Participant or Beneficiary of any right or benefit to which the
Participant or Beneficiary is entitled under this Plan immediately prior to the effective date of
such amendment.
Section 11.02. Suspension of Contributions. The Plan Administrator may temporarily
suspend the acceptance of Deferred Compensation as necessary to facilitate appropriate
administration of this Plan or to comply with any Federal, state or local law. Written notice of
such suspension shall be provided to all Participants and may accompany the distribution of
payroll check. No such suspension shall deprive a Participant or Beneficiary of any right or
benefit to which the Participant or Beneficiary is entitled under this Plan immediately prior to the
effective date of such amendment or suspension.
Section 11.03. Termination. The Sponsor may, by appropriate action of its chief
executive or governing body as appropriate, terminate this Plan. No such termination shall
deprive a Participant or Beneficiary of any benefits to which the Participant or Beneficiary is
entitled under this Plan immediately prior to the effective date of such termination. Following
such termination, a Participant shall be entitled to immediate distribution of his or her Account.
Upon receipt of such distribution, the Sponsor, the Plan Administrator, the Trustee and any
agents, delegates and employees thereof shall be relieved of any obligation with respect to such
Participant under this Plan.
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ARTICLE 12
MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
Section 12.01. Nonalienation of Benefits - Attachment. No Participant or Beneficiary
shall have the right to alienate, anticipate, commute, pledge, encumber or assign any of the
benefits or payments under this Plan, except the right to designate a Beneficiary or Beneficiaries
as hereinabove provided. The rights of the Participant under this Plan shall not be subject to the
rights of creditors of the Participant and shall be exempt from execution, attachment, prior
assignment, or any other judicial relief or order for the benefit of any creditors or other third
persons having claims against the Participant.
Section 12.02. No Contract of Employment. Neither the establishment of the Plan, nor
the participation in the Plan, shall be construed as giving any Participant or Eligible Employee
the right to be retained in the service of the Sponsor.
Section 12.03. Severability of Provisions. If any provision of this Plan shall be held
invalid or unenforceable, such invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect any other provisions
hereof, and this Plan shall be construed and enforced as if such provisions had not been included.
Section 12.04. Heirs. Assigns and Personal Representatives. This Plan shall be binding
upon the heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns of the parties, including each
Participant and Beneficiary, present and future (except that no successor to the Sponsor shall be
considered a Plan sponsor unless that successor adopts this Plan).
Section 12.05. Headings and Captions. The headings and captions herein are provided
for reference and convenience only, shall not be considered part of the Plan, and shall not be
employed in the construction of the Plan.
Section 12.06. Controlling Law. This Plan shall be construed and enforced according to
State Law and applicable local law, to the extent not preempted by and the IRC, and the Plan
shall be interpreted in a manner consistent with the maintenance of its status as an “eligible
deferred compensation plan” as defined in Section 457(b) of the IRC. Reference to any section of
the IRC shall be deemed to incorporate any required amendment of such section as necessary to
maintain the status of this Plan as an eligible deferred compensation plan.
Section 12.07. Payments to Minors. Etc. Any benefit payable to or for the benefit of a
minor, an incompetent person or other person incapable of receipting therefore shall be deemed
paid when paid to such person’s guardian or to the party providing or reasonably appearing to
provide for the care of such person, and such payment shall fully discharge the Plan
Administrator, the Sponsor, the Trustee and all other parties with respect thereto.
Section 12.08. Reliance on Data and Consents. The Sponsor, the Plan Administrator, the
Trustee and all other persons or entities associated with the operation of the Plan, the
administration or management of its assets, and the provision of benefits thereunder, may
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reasonably rely on the truth, accuracy and completeness of all data provided by a Participant,
and/or Beneficiary, including, without limitation, data with respect to age, health and marital
status. Furthermore, the Sponsor, the Plan Administrator and the Trustee and all persons
identified above may reasonably rely on all consents, elections and designations filed with the
Plan or those associated with the administration operation of the Plan by any Participant or
Beneficiary, or the representatives of such persons without duty to inquire into the genuineness
of any such consent, election or designation. None of the aforementioned persons or entities
associated with the administration operation of the Plan, its assets and the benefits provided
under the Plan shall have any duty to inquire into any such data, and all may rely on such data
being current to the date of reference. It shall be the duty of the Participant or Beneficiary to
advise the appropriate parties of any change in such data. The Plan Administrator shall not be
liable for the consequences of such change in data.
Section 12.09. Tax Consequences. Subject to the provisions of Section 12.11, the
Sponsor does not represent or guarantee that any particular Federal or State income, estate,
payroll, personal property or other tax consequences shall occur because of the Participant’s or
Beneficiary’s participation in this Plan, The Participant shall be responsible to obtain appropriate
advice regarding all questions to Federal, State or local income, estate, payroll, personal property
or other tax consequences arising from participation in this Plan.
Section 12.10. Withholding: Payroll Taxes. The Sponsor shall withhold from payments
or benefits hereunder any taxes required to be withheld from such payments under local, state or
federal law.
Section 12.11. QDROs. To the extent required under a “qualified domestic relations
order” as defined in IRC Section 414(p), any portion of a Participant’s benefits may be paid to
(or a portion of a Participant’s Account may be set aside for the benefit of) the Participant’s
spouse, former spouse or other alternate payee.
Section 12.12. Entire Agreement. This Plan, the Trust Agreement (if any), properly
adopted amendments to the Plan and Trust Agreement (if any) and proper actions of the
governing body or chief executive of the Sponsor shall govern the provision of deferred
compensation benefits pursuant to IRC Section 457(b). No other instrument, communication
statement of any sort shall modify this Plan in any way or be relief upon the parties to this
Agreement.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Sponsor has caused this Plan to be executed by its duly
authorized officer, this _____ day of _________________, 2005.
SOUTHWEST POWER POOL, INC.

By_______________________________________
_________________________________________
Title
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Market and
Operations
Policy
Committee

Mel Perkins, OG&E
Chairman
July 26, 2005

1

Agenda
c

Action Items
♦ Market Working Group Report
♦ Transmission Facilities Definition
♦ Schedule 1 and Attachment L
♦ Multi-Owner Compensation
♦ Attachment AA

c

Informational
♦ Reactive Compensation

2

1

Board Directive to MOPC
c

File Tariff language based on current EIS
market rules no later than June 15, 2005

c

Identify elements of system testing that
can be feasibly commence on June 1, 2005

c

Develop a complete implementation
schedule and additional funding
requirements no later than June 30, 2005

c

The EIS Market implementation date shall
be no later than March 1, 2006
3

Filing of Tariff Language
c MOPC

met on June 2 and
approved Tariff language
necessary for Energy Imbalance
Market implementation

c SPP

filed Tariff language with
FERC on June 15: Docket ER051118

4

2

Market Testing Readiness
c

Key areas of the market system
available for testing by June 1
♦ Electronic communications between
market participants and SPP
♦ Key inputs to the real-time market
process
\

Resource plans, ancillary service plans and
resource offer curves

♦ Market settlement statements available
for download
c
c

These systems were available a few
weeks prior to June 1
Participants began testing on May 17
5

Develop Implementation
Schedule
c Market

implementation working
draft schedule and funding was
included in the BOD background
material

c Schedule

based on MWG
recommended implementation
schedule
6

3

Market
Working Group
Report

Richard Ross
Chairman, MWG

7

RTF and MWG Update
c

Reliability Task Force Update

c

Implementation Schedule

c

Implementation Costs

c

Market Protocols

8

4

Implementation Schedule
c

RTF met regularly in April and May to
develop implementation plan

c

SPP and vendor discussions were
held throughout the month of June

c

Two implementation/schedule
approaches have been presented to
the RTF, ORWG and MWG for
consideration
9

Implementation Schedule
c

Alternative One
♦ EIS implementation May 1, 2006
♦ Includes all RTF solutions except
manual recalculation of the
dispatch
♦ Includes MWG requested ability
to update AS plan consistent
with the Resource Plan
10

5

Implementation Schedule
c

Alternative Two
♦ EIS implementation March 1, 2006
consistent with SPP Board Motion
♦ Includes only Market Flow
Calculator
♦ All other RTF solutions would be
deferred until no earlier than the
Fall of 2006
11

Implementation Costs
c

Cost incurred to date
♦ 2001 implementation cost $22.1 million
♦ Post merger cost $7.3 million

c

Incremental Project Cost
♦ Alternative One costs are estimated at
$7.7 million (including $830,700 ongoing
O&M)
♦ Alternative Two are expected to be
higher due to the multiple releases and
testing of the system

c

Personnel
12

6

RTF, MWG, ORWG Discussion
c

Scope of March 1 schedule is unacceptable

c

Scope of May 1 schedule is acceptable

c

The May 1 schedule is aggressive and
there are risks any one of which could
cause delay in the schedule

c

More details are needed in the
schedule/project plan to allow a more
complete review and facilitate ongoing
monitoring and risk mitigation of the
project implementation
13

May 1 Schedule Risks
c

Schedule provides no time for
contingencies

c

Business requirements and interfaces are
not finalized

c

Additional details are needed for market
participant to evaluate feasibility of
proposed technical testing

14

7

MOPC Motion
1.

The MOPC only supports a market
implementation that includes all the
reliability solutions proposed by the
RTF. Based on the information
provided by the SPP Staff and
vendors, this can be accomplished by
May 1, 2006. The MOPC accepts that
the implementation of a manual
recalculation may occur subsequent
to the initial market implementation.
(Passed unopposed)
15

Market Protocols
c

More than 25 Protocol Revision
Requests have been approved to
provide clarification within the
document, comply solutions to the
reliability issues, and/or recommend
enhancements to the market
implementation

c

Every proposed change to the market
protocols follows this process

c

MOPC will vote on additional required
protocols by the end of August
16

8

Regional
Tariff Working
Group
Dennis Reed

17

Background
c

The MOPC has approved three
primary Tariff modifications and
recommends them to the Board of
Directors for approval and filing with
FERC
♦ A new definition for Transmission
Facilities
♦ A redesign of Schedule 1 - Scheduling,
System Control And Dispatch Service
♦ Modifications to Attachment L to permit
revenue allocation to multiple
Transmission Owners in a single Zone
18

9

Background
c

cont.

These Tariff modifications are
designed to respond to issues that
arose during SPP’s RTO recognition
process
♦ Some of the changes arise as a response
to Commission orders
♦ Others are follow-up on SPP’s
commitment to conclude specific efforts
that have been in process

c

SPP has made a commitment to FERC
to conclude action on these
modifications during the July, 2005
approval cycle
19

Transmission Facilities
Definition
c

Modifications made to definitions
section of the Tariff

c

New Tariff Attachment AI sets out the
new definition
♦ Facilities inclusion criteria
♦ Facilities exclusion criteria
♦ Schedule for implementation

20

10

Transmission Facilities
Definition cont.
c

Facilities inclusion criteria:
♦ All non-radial power lines, substations,
and associated facilities, operated at 60 kV
or above, plus all radial lines operated at
or above 60 kV, and associated facilities,
that serve two or more eligible customers
not Affiliates of each other.
♦ All facilities that are utilized for
interconnecting the various internal zones
to each other as well as those facilities
that interconnect SPP with other
surrounding entities.
♦ Control equipment and facilities necessary
to control and protect facilities qualifying
as Transmission Facilities.
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Transmission Facilities
Definition cont.
c

Facilities inclusion criteria:
♦ For substations connected to power lines
qualifying as Transmission facilities, where
power is transformed from a voltage higher
than 60 kV to a voltage lower than 60 kV,
facilities on the high voltage side of the
transformer will be included with the
exception of transformer isolation
equipment.
♦ The portion of the direct-current
interconnections with areas outside of the
SPP region (DC ties) that are owned by a
Transmission Owner in the SPP region,
including those portions of the DC tie that
operate at a voltage lower than 60 kV.
22
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Transmission Facilities
Definition cont.
c

Facilities inclusion criteria:
♦ All facilities operated below 60 kV that
have been determined to be transmission
pursuant to the seven (7) factor test set
forth in FERC Order No. 888, 61 Fed Reg.
21,540, 21,620 (1996), or any applicable
successor test.
♦ Any facility determined by the
Transmission Provider to be a Base Plan
Upgrade, pursuant to Section III of
Attachment J to the Tariff.
23

Transmission Facilities
Definition cont.
c

Facilities exclusion criteria:
♦ Generator step-up transformers and
generator leads;
♦ Radial lines from a generating station to a
single substation or switching station on
the Transmission System; and
♦ Direct Assignment Facilities.

24

12

Transmission Facilities
Definition cont.
c

Implementation:
♦ Within three years after FERC
acceptance of these Tariff
modifications:
\

TOs can file a Seven Factor to
include additional facilities

\

Must file adjusted Transmission
rates based on this definition
25

Transmission Facilities
Definition cont.
c

RTWG Action
♦ Approved June 9, 2005 (eight for, three
opposed, no abstentions)

c

Opposition Rationale
♦ Direct assignment of radials is an
inequitable cost burden
♦ Definition should be generally inclusive
and should include all radials
♦ Exclusion of radials from zonal revenue
requirements will have negative impact
on revenue recovery for some owners
26
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MOPC Motion
2.

The MOPC requests the
Board of Directors approve
the proposed Transmission
Definition
(MOPC approved with 1
opposed)

27

Schedule 1 Compliance
Requirement
In an October 1, 2004 Order on Rehearing
of its February 10, 2004 Order on SPP’s
October 15, 2003 RTO application, FERC
required that SPP submit, within 90 days a
timetable detailing the timeframe required
by SPP to remove pancaking from
Schedule 1. On December 30, 2004 SPP
made a compliance filing of a timetable
committing that a proposal for resolution
of the Schedule 1 pancaking issue would
be submitted to the SPP MOPC and Board
at their July, 2005 meetings.

28
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Schedule 1 Unpancaking
c

Schedule 1 modified to set out
the new rate design

c

Attachment L Section IV. 4. and 5.
modified to specify the allocation
of revenue by transaction type

29

Attachment L Modifications
c

The Scheduling Charge for Through
and out transactions is based on the
total Schedule 1 revenue requirements
of all SPP TO’s and allocated back to
the TO’s in proportion to their revenue
requirements

c

Into and within Point-To-Point Service;
and Network Service are charged the
Sink Zones approved Schedule 1 fee
and given to the Sink Zone

30
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MOPC Motion
3.

The MOPC requests the
Board of Directors approve
the revisions to Schedule 1
and Attachment L
implementing the removal of
pancaked scheduling fees.
(MOPC approved with 2
opposed and 1 abstention)
31

Multi-Owner Revenue Allocation
Compliance Requirement
c

In FERC’s February 10, 2004 Order on SPP’s
October 15, 2003 RTO application and again in
FERC’s July 2, 2004 Order on SPP’s May 3, 2004
compliance filing, SPP was directed to submit a
timetable for resolving inclusion of more than one
TO’s facilities under SPP’s control within a single
transmission-pricing zone, as well as distribution of
revenues by SPP to such TOs. In an August 2, 2004
compliance filing SPP reported that it had
“constituted a task force to examine this issue and
develop an appropriate proposal. The task force is
expected to complete its work and provide a
proposal to the Board of Directors in early 2005.
The Board of Directors expects to take final action
by July 31, 2005.”
32
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Multi-Owner
Revenue Allocation
c

Modifications made to Attachment L
to specify the allocation of revenues
to multiple facilities owners in a zone

c

Primary modifications in Section II,
with minor modifications elsewhere

c

An alternative method is specified for
the AEP zone because of AEP’s use of
a stated rate for Network Service
33

Allocation of Revenues
c

The tariff currently has provisions
allowing the inclusion of new
Transmission Owners in existing
Zones

c

The total cost and allocation of
revenue collected by SPP for NITS
service would be based on the
Revenue Requirements in
Attachment H

c

The issue was that the money
collected by SPP may not be
allocated properly due to GFAs
34

17

GFAs between TOs
c

There was also language
included to handle multiple
TOs in the same zone that
have GFAs between them

c

The language was modeled on
the City of Lafayette and
CLECO situation

35

MOPC Motion
4.

The MOPC requests the
Board of Directors approve
the proposed language
approving the changes in
Attachment L reflecting
allocation of money between
Transmission Owners in the
same Zone.
(MOPC approved unopposed)
36
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Attachment AA
Transmission Service Prepayment
Renewal
c

By order dated October 5, 2004, FERC
approved Attachment AA as a one- year
experiment and required a report 60 days prior
to the end of its term

c

The program has been greeted positively by
SPP Transmission Customers

c

12 network upgrades, costing $930,000 have
been funded

c

It is unclear at this time how this program fits
in the overall transmission funding scheme
37

Attachment AA
Transmission Service Prepayment
Renewal
c

At its July 7, 2005 meeting, the RTWG voted
unanimously to recommend to the MOPC that
the effective term of Tariff Attachment AA
provisions be extended for an additional oneyear period

c

This will help the RTWG evaluate whether or
not to continue the program

c

SPP staff is preparing a report to FERC
regarding the experiment to be submitted in
August
38
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MOPC Motion
5.

The MOPC requests the
Board of Directors approve
the continuation of the
Experimental Transmission
Service Prepayment Option
(Attachment AA) for an
additional year.
(MOPC approved unopposed)
39

Informational
Item

Reactive
Compensation
Task Force

40
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Why was the RCTF formed?
c

To establish rules on how all owners
of generators make their generators
available for reactive supply and
voltage control under Schedule 2 of
the OATT and how those owners
would be compensated

c

After several WG looked at the issue,
the MOPC appointed a task force to
study reactive compensation
41

The Charge of the RCTF
1)

Develop eligibility requirements for
a generator to receive
compensation for reactive power
supply

2)

Determine the necessary changes
in the SPP OATT, Criteria, and
Business Practices to reflect these
requirements and provide
appropriate mechanisms for
compensation to eligible generators
42
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Work to Date
c

The Task Force has met multiple
times and developed a matrix of
options

c

Key issues revolved around:
♦ Whether or not to utilize the “deadband”
♦ What qualifies a Facility to participate?
\
\

Installed equipment
Ability to run/estimated number of hours of
operation

♦ How do you compensate a provider
(VARS produced-actual vs capacitycapability)
43

Requirements/Goals
c

Order 2003 LGIA requires that all
new generators be able to produce
95% Leading/Lagging Power Factor,
excluding wind farms

c

Goals
♦ All generators that support the system
should receive similar compensation
♦ Only units that are qualified by SPP
should be compensated
44
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Areas of Agreement
c

Before a generation plant receives
compensation it must pass a
qualification test
♦ Must be able to produce VARS outside the
“deadband”
♦ Must pass periodic unit testing
♦ Must be able to respond to dispatch
instructions
♦ Must run at least 100 hours/month (Capacity
Option only)
45

Milestones
c

Continue to work on defining the
issues
♦
♦
♦
♦

Rate design
Specific test requirements
Tariff changes
Identify other SPP document changes

c

Present a plan for MOPC approval in
October

c

Have all the necessary changes
completed and back for MOPC and
Board of Directors approval by the
end of 2005
46
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MOPC Discussion
c

What type of compensation do we
want?
♦ Production payment ($/VAR)
♦ Capacity payment (FERC approved
revenue requirement)

c

MOPC voted on each method with
no agreement; RCTF will continue
to develop both sides until some
decision is reached
47

Questions/Comments?

48

24

Background
Material

49

Impacts of GFAs
c

TO1: RR= $10; GFA= $8; amount collected
by SPP is $10-$8 or $2

c

TO2: RR= $5; GFA=$0; amount collected by
SPP is 5-0 or $5

c

Total amount collected by SPP in the zone
is $2 + $5 = $7

c

If you do a straight allocation based on RR:
♦ TO1 = $10/(10+5) * $7 = $4.67
♦ TO2 = $5/(10+5) * $7 = $2.33

50
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Impacts of GFAs
c

cont.

Proposed Attachment L takes into account
the GFA dollars:
♦ TO1 = (10-8)/[(10-8)+(5-0)] * $7 = $2.00
♦ TO2 = (5-0)/[(10-8)+(5-0)] * $7 = $5.00

c

For Zone 1 (the AEP Zone)
♦ Each TO has the option of designating
either a Stated Rate or Pro-rata share
method
♦ Each TO’s charge will be calculated
separately and billed
51

26

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
MARKETS AND OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors/Members Committee
July 26, 2005

Organizational Roster
The following members represent the Market Working Group:
Richard Ross, AEP
Gene Anderson, OMPA
Wes Berger, Xcel Energy
Rick McCord, EDE
Tom Saitta, Aquila
John Stephens, City of Springfield
David Toole, Cargill
Keith Sugg, AECC

Doug Base, Western Farmers
Burton Crawford, KCPL
Tambra Offield, ETEC
Jim Stanton, Calpine
Tom Stuchlik, Westar
Bill Wylie, OGE
Richard Dillon, SPP

The stakeholders participating in group discussions are attached.
Background
The Market Working Group has met on a monthly basis in person, and conducted reviews of the market
protocols and other design issues through conference calls. The Market Implementation Task Force and
Settlement Data and Metering Standards Task Force have also met frequently.
Following the April meeting of the MOPC, a Reliability Task Force was formed from attendees of the
MWG and the ORWG. The task force met during the month of May and developed recommendations to
address the concerns from the ORWG presented to the MOPC and Board of Directors. The ORWG
reviewed the recommendations and agreed with the solution approach per the final edited document (see
attached). During June, the SPP staff and vendors met and developed a schedule (see attachment) for
the recommendations. The schedule was presented to the RTF, ORWG, MWG and MITF.
Analysis
The schedule presented reflects an implementation date of May 1, 2006, incorporating the
recommendations of the RTF. This schedule, although a reasonable estimate, does not have any
contingency time incorporated. The major items identified at this time that may result in further delay are
a lack of readiness by Transmission Customers, continuing changes in the design, and failure of the
systems during testing. The Market Implementation Task Force is still reviewing the schedule to identify
risk areas from a market participant’s system development standpoint. Mitigation of the first two by the
SPP staff are through continuous emphasis that Transmission Customers must be ready and participating
at each milestone on the schedule, and that no further design changes can be accommodated prior to
implementation.
Recommendation
The MWG only supports a market implementation that includes all the reliability solutions proposed by the
RTF. Based on the information provided by the SPP Staff and vendors, this can be accomplished by May
1, 2006. The MWG accepts that the implementation of a manual recalculation may occur subsequent to
the initial market implementation.

Approved:

Market Working Group
Passed, Unopposed

7/6/05

The MOPC supports the recommendation of the MWG to implement the EIS Market by May 1, 2006.

Markets and Operations Policy Committee
Passed, Unopposed

Action Requested:

Approve Recommendation

7/12/05

Market Working Group

Full Name

Company

Richard Ross (Chair)

AEP

Gene Anderson
Doug Base
Wes Berger
Burton Crawford
Richard Dillon
Rick McCord
Tambra Offield
Tom Saitta
Jim Stanton
John Stephens
Tom Stuchlik
Keith Sugg (Vice Chair)
David Toole
Bill Wylie
Farrokh Albuyeh
Celso Alonso
John Bastian
Bill Bateman
Keith Berry
Steve Beuning
Kary Bigbie
Lisa Blackwood
Marshall Boyken
Mike Boughner
Shanna Boyes
Jeff Brown
Seth Brown
Shari Brown
Michael Brown
Philip Bruich
John Chiles
Bill Clarke
Gary Clear
Brian Coatney
Keith Comeaux
Justin Cook
Daryl Cote
Phil Cox
Jay Crawford
Mike Crosby
Vikki Cuddy
Scott Danley
Emily Davis
Michael Denny
Patty Denny
Alan Derichsweiler
Sean Donoghue
Wendell Drost
Anthony Due
Katie Duncan
Sam Ellis
Edwin Farrar
Dave Felzien
Laurence Ferry
Karen Forbes
Ricardo Galarza
Al Galiunes
Terri Gallup
Greg Geisler
Tammy Gordon
Sheila Gropp
John Gunesch
Larry Gurley
Bill Hanley
Tracey Hannon
JP Harper
Brant Hebert
Heidi Henderson
Mike Hill
Walter Hobbs
Shah Hossain
Leon Howell
Robert Janssen
Jim Jacoby
Frank Joiner

OMPA
WFEC
Xcel Energy
KCPL
SPP
EDE
ETEC
Aquila
Calpine
SPRM
Westar
AECC
Cargill
OG&E
Alstom Esca
Enogex
New Energy Assoc.
GDS Associates
APSC
Xcel Energy
AEP
The Structure Group
SWPA
Xcel Energy
EDE
Coral
GDS Associates
SPP
Exelon
SPP
GDS Associates
TEA
OG&E
Celeritas
CLECO
PCI
The Structure Group
AEP
PCI
SPP
The Structure Group
Empire
SPP
SPA
KCPL
WFEC
Structure Consulting
Alstom Esca
GRDA
SPP
SPP
OCC
ABB
Areva

KEMA
AEP
Tenaska
Xcel Energy
Westar
OG&E
Tenaska
Areva
SWPA
Fortegra
Calpine
APX
PCI
Westar
OG&E
Boston Pacific Company, Inc.
AEP
Alstom Esca

Matt Kahal
Patti Kelly
Hank Koegel
Jim Krajecki
Jason Kram
Paul Lampe
Terry Lane
David Lemmons
James Liao
Doug Logan
Sam Loudenslager
Mark MacDonald
Lynne Mackey
Steve Madden
Don Madsen
Paul Mahlberg
Partha Malvadkar
Orlando Martinez
Stan Mason
Steve Massey
Gina Maynard
Brian McAdams
Jim McAvoy
Alan McQueen
Carl Monroe
Thad Ness
Lanny Nickell
Kevin Noblet
Shane O'Quinn
Brock Ondayko
Connie Osterman
Roberto Paliza
Tom Payton
Kevin Perry
Todd Pilcher
David Potts
Rick Pozorski
Rob Prentice
Mike Proctor
Andy Punch
Scott Quin
Raj Rana
Jasyn Randazzo
Dennis Reed
Elizabeth Reid
Craig Roach
Carlos A. Romero
Randy Root
Rick Running
Heather Sanders
James Sanderson
Ray Schwertner
Suzie Shin
Steve Shull
Walt Shumate
William Simpson
Phil Smith
Richard Smith
Tim Soles
Mike Stafford
Jerry Stone
Barbara Sugg
Jim Sullivan
David Sun
Kristy Tackett
Ryan Taggert
Bob Tallman
Mike Templin
Frankie Thomas
Tim Thorpe
Tom Tramutola
Roy True
Ken Vormwald
Senjay Wankhade
Bary Warren
Quentin Wendt
Darrell Wilson
Jeff Winkler
Rick Wolfinger
Stuart Wright
Charles Wu
Charles Yeung

APSC
SPP
KCPL
The Structure Group
PCI
Ameren
Xcel Energy
WFEC
PCI
APSC
CLECO
InterGen
Occidental Energy Ventures Corp.
City of Independence Power & Light
City of Independence Power & Light
FERC
InterGen
SWPA
Westar
SPP
Accenture
OG&E
SPP
SPP
SPP
Global Energy Decisions
AEP
Paliza Consulting
Oxy
SPP
Aces Power Marketing (APM)
The Structure Group
SPP
SMU
MoPSC
Empire
The Structure Group
AEP
City of Independence Power & Light
Westar
APX
Boston Pacific Company, Inc.
Global Energy Decisions
GRDA
SPP
APX
KCC
Vision Energy
Boston Pacific Company, Inc.
EDE
OG&E
Tenaska
ABB
Weyerhauser
Occidental Energy Ventures Corp.
GRDA
SPP
SPP
Boston Pacific Company, Inc.
Alstom Esca
Empire District
Westar
LG&E
Accenture
Celeritas
New Energy Assoc.
Nexant
Empire District
Fortegra
OGE
Calpine
Constellation Energy Commodities
ACI
Arkansas Tech University
SPP

Working DRAFT Schedule - Subject to Revision

Activities

May
05/6

05/13

June

05/20

05/27

06/3

06/10

06/17

July
06/24

07/1

07/8

07/15

August
07/22

07/29

08/5

08/12

08/19

September
08/26

09/2

09/9

09/16

09/23

October
09/30

10/7

10/14

November

December

January

February

March

April

May

10/21 10/28 11/4 11/11 11/18 11/25 12/2 12/9 12/16 12/23 12/30 01/6 01/13 01/20 01/27 02/3 02/10 02/17 02/24 03/3 03/10 03/17 03/24 03/31 04/7 04/14 04/21 04/28 05/5 05/12 05/19 05/26 06/2

June
06/9

06/16 06/23 06/30

1.0 Release 2 Scope
1.1 - Modify Approach

Conceptual Design & Approach

Estimates & BOD Packet

1.2 - Scope Frozen
1.3 - Detailed Test Requirements

SPP CAT

SPP Market Release 2

2.0 AREVA (MOS / EMS)
2.1 - SPP Market Release 1

Support - SPP Market Release 1

2.2 - SPP Market Release 2

Requirements, Design & Build

Factory Test

Ship, Config

Support - SPP Market Release 2

Production Support

2.3 - Systems Delivered
3.0 OATI (Scheduling / ARS)
3.1 - SPP Market Release 2

Design and Build for SPP CAT, ARS, NLS and Interface Changes

SPP Stand-alone Testing

Support - SPP Market Release 2

Production Support

SPP Stand-alone Testing

Support - SPP Market Release 2

Production Support

3.2 - Systems Delivered
4.0 Accenture (COS)
3.1 - SPP Market Release 2

Support - SPP Market Release 1

Design, Build & Test - SPP Market Release 2 (URD)

3.2 - Systems Delivered
5.0 Interfaces
5.1 - SPP Market Release 2

Facilitate Design - SPP Market Release 2

6.0 Infrastructure
6.1 - Hardware Assessment
6.2 - Backup & Restore

Design & Implement

Test

7.0 Integration Testing
7.1 - Interfaces
7.2 - Business Processes

Integration Test - SPP Market Release 1

Integration Test - SPP Market Release 2

Release QA Testing Support

7.3 - Exception
7.4 - Systems Ready for Day in the
Life Enhanced
8.0 Technical Testing
8.1 - 5 Minute Dispatch

Technical Test High Risk Items - SPP
Market
Release 2

8.2 - Volume
8.3 - 24x7

Technical Test Low Risk
Items - SPP Market
Release 2

8.4 - SPP CAT
9.0 Data / Conversion
9.1 - MOS Model Mtn Tool

Design

Build & Test

9.2 - Cont'd Model Synchronization

Maintain Models

9.3 - Model Build / Update

Prepare Release 2, Market Trials and Technical Test Models

9.4 - Registration Frozen for Day in the
Life
9.5 - Registration Frozen for Day in the
Life Enhanced
9.6 - Registration Frozen for Parallel
Operations
10.0 Participant Training
10.1 - Uninstructed Deviation
10.2 - Scheduling

Training Conduct

10.3 - Hands-On Training

Training Conduct

10.4 - Reliability
11.0 Market Trials
11.1 - Participant Readiness

Participant Readiness Testing 1

11.2 - Day in the Life

Mandatory Participant Readiness Testing
NSI Control and Unit Reponse - Mandatory

Day in the Life (thru RPV)

11.3 - Day in the Life Enhanced

Day in the Life Enhanced

11.4 - Unstructured Testing

Unstructured Tst

11.5 - Parallel Operations

Parallel
Operations

11.6 - Market & Systems Ready to Go
Live
11.7 - Final Trials

Final Trials

12.0 Market Transition
12.1 - Transition

Market Transition

12.2 - Markets Live
13.0 Comm. & Coordination
13.1 - MOPC, MITF, MWG, …
13.2 - Contracts
13.3 - Metrics Gathering

Ongoing

13.4 - NERC Approvals
13.5 - Management

MarketScheduleV009_062705
Confidential and proprietary to Southwest Power Pool, 2005

7/5/2005

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
SPP STAFF
Market Incremental Cost Analysis
Report to the Markets and Operations Policy Committee
July 12, 2005

Background
During the period from December 2004 through March 2005, SPP development of the energy market was
impacted through the requirement to participate in a Joint Operating Agreement from MISO, NERC
Interchange Distribution Calculator (IDC) Working Group directive to handle non-physical schedules in a
different manner than planned, and the ORWG review of market design with resulting change requests.
The MOPC established the Reliability Task Force, composed of ORWG and MWG participants, to design
the changes during May 2005 and SPP staff and vendors to develop a schedule and estimated cost of
the changes during June 2005.

Analysis
The Joint Operating Agreement resulted in a significant change in the Market Flow Calculator (MFC)
method of calculating and allocating unscheduled flows into Priority buckets. The NERC IDC Working
Group directive has resulted in development of an internal IDC (called the Curtailment/Adjustment Tool or
CAT) to deal with the equitable treatment of schedules related to generation that is also participating in
the energy market. The ORWG concern over whether the energy market could guarantee a response to
a NERC TLR within thirty minutes resulted in a reevaluation of the dispatch interval and development of
the systems necessary to support dispatch instructions every 5 minutes (rather than 15 minutes).
Additional concerns from the ORWG resulted in changes to the handling of self-dispatch resources (SD)
to set dispatch instructions for this resource equal to their scheduled amounts, design of a charge for
Uninstructed Deviation (UD). The MWG also requested a change to the ability to change reserve
designations for resources (A/S Plan) on an hourly basis. Due to the tight timeline and the interaction of
many vendors, these changes have also resulted in SPP needing to support Market Trials on the current
delivered system, develop additional Market Trial approaches and programs for the changes, and
develop additional training to be operated and taught during the testing of the new systems. Testing,
documentation, and coordination of all these efforts require a significant effort that, due to its intermittent
nature over the long-term, is accomplished with consulting support. Additionally, the increased duties and
frequency of work to support these changes has resulted in a need to increase the staffing in the 24/7
operations of SPP. The incremental market staffing is included in the estimate being presented below.
Additional reliability staffing is included (along with the market staffing) on the attached document.
The systems have six major components cutting across all our vendors and requiring SPP programming
support. The interaction of development, along with the working group requesting the component, is in
the following table.

Staff Analysis
Systems Added or Modified
System Development Responsibilities
Requesting
Group
ORWG
ORWG
ORWG
ORWG
ORWG
MWG

Major Systems

Accenture

Self-Dispatch
5 Minute Dispatch
CAT
MFC
UDC
A/S Plan Changes

Areva

OATI

x
x
x
x
x
x

x

x

SPP

x
x
x

x

The costs associated with the system changes, by year and including staffing changes is in the following
table.
Staff Analysis
Systems Added or Modified
Costs

System Costs
Market Trials & Part. Train
Personnel Costs
Total
Personnel Headcount

Recurring
Costs

2005

2006

Total

$ 5,385,872
$ 863,438
$
83,300
$ 6,332,610

$ 706,450
$ 687,400
$ 1,393,850

$ 5,385,872
$ 1,569,888
$ 770,700
$ 7,726,460

5

4

9

$ 60,000
$ 770,700
$ 830,700

Justification for Increased Headcount
Headcount Additions
Project/Function
JOA
Existing Reliability
Market

TOTAL

2005
2 Coordinator I
2 Coordinator I
2 Shift Engineer I
1 Shift Engineer II
5 Total
7

2006
1 Engineer III
2 Coordinator I
1 Day Scheduler
1 Engineer II
2 Shift Engineer II
4 Total
7

Total
1
4

9
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Personnel Costs
Project/Function
JOA
Existing Reliability
Market
TOTAL

2005

2006
$0
$69,300
$83,300
$152,600

$110,600
$415,800
$687,400
$1,213,800

Justification
Additional Operations Engineers
SPP is developing the following applications/tools to support the Reliability function.
•
•
•
•

Curtailment/Adjustment Tool (CAT)
Reciprocal Flowgate Coordination Process
Market Flow Calculator
Constraint Manager Tools

The Reciprocal Flowgate Coordination Process is needed to calculate allocations of
flowgate capacity pursuant to the SPP-MISO JOA. SPP has an obligation to implement
this process as part of its current operations. SPP’s current implementation plan is to
complete this effort by October, 2005.
The CAT, Market Flow Calculator, and the Constraint Manager Tools are needed to
support the SPP reliability function when the SPP Market is implemented. The Market
Flow Calculator is needed to fulfill SPP’s obligations under the SPP-MISO JOA to
calculate and submit its market flow impacts on coordinated flowgates to the NERC IDC
after the SPP Market is implemented. The CAT is a tool identified by the Reliability
Task Force as a necessary solution to one of the ORWG reliability issues. The Constraint
Manager Tools are needed to assist the SPP Reliability Coordinator in managing

congestion by utilizing TLR in conjunction with the Security Constrained Economic
Dispatch provided by the SPP Market System.
These 4 processes/tools require additional Operations Engineering support during the
development, testing, implementation, and integration of the tools. To ensure timely
completion and implementation 3 FTE’s are required during July 2005 – February 2006
and after that 2 FTE’s (Operation Engineers/Subject matter experts) are required for
ongoing support. SPP will use 2 existing resources and consulting help to fulfill that
requirement during July 2005 – February 2006 but will need to create 2 new positions in
2006 for the ongoing support. One of the positions for 2006 is expected to be an
Engineer III while the other one is expected to be an Engineer II. The total estimated cost
for these positions in 2006 is $145,000. The Engineer II should be attributed to market
startup and the Engineer III to unanticipated JOA support.
Additional Shift Engineers
With the advent of the SPP EIS Market, additional Operational Engineering Support will
be required for a variety of functions that include both real-time and forward operations
engineering support. The Shift Engineers essential functions would include, but not be
limited to the following:
•

Ensuring robust state estimator solutions – The market, as well as reliability
functions, require a high availability of robust state estimator solutions. The shift
engineers would be the primary defense against failure of the EMS SE solutions.
Current staffing levels only allow for this support during regular business hours
and on an on-call basis. However, with a 5-minute dispatch interval, full 24x7
coverage in the operations center is required.

•

Engineering Analysis – There are several engineering studies that must be
performed on a routine basis that require engineering expertise.
o Reliability Analyses – Performing the current NERC required reliability
analyses has recently been moved from the reliability coordinators job
function to that of the operations engineering department. These studies
must be run seven (7) days per week, 365 days per year. In the past, the
RC would run the studies and let an engineer or the Manager of Reliability
Coordination review the results; however, in an effort to allow the RC to
focus on more real-time related issues, the Operations Engineering group
has taken over full responsibility of this function. These analyses are best
left with engineers who are also focusing on real-time situations as the
studies offer a starting point for being pro-active in regards to preparing
for potential situations on the system.
o Forced/Emergency Outage Analysis – Often times, there are situations on
the bulk electric system in which a piece of equipment must be taken out
of service in a short amount of time or is unexpectedly forced out of
service. With the addition of Shift Engineers, the ability to respond to
these situations will be greatly enhanced.

o Real-Time Contingency Analysis (RTCA) and Study Contingency
Analysis (STCA) – These real-time and near real-time analytical tools
provide necessary functionality to operate the bulk electric system in a
reliable manner. The Shift Engineer would provide additional analysis
and information regarding constraints to the RC and the Market Operator
based upon results of these studies
o System and Alarm monitoring – When system conditions warrant, the
Shift Engineer would be responsible for monitoring certain system
conditions and alarm categories.
o Market Analytical Functions (MAF) – In regards to Market analysis, SPD
(Scheduling, Pricing, and Dispatch) and SFT (Simultaneous Feasibility
Tool) studies will be run every 5 minutes. These tools are critical to
ensuring the market viability prior to real-time operations. If solutions are
not achieved, the engineer would be the primary person to make the
determination of the lack of solution was due to bad data, an infeasible
market, or other modeling or actual system conditions.
•

Data Checking - The amount of data needed to achieve a good market solution
requires that someone be able to analytically review the study results and
determine if data errors are present and, if so, to what degree. Detailed
knowledge with the market system databases and analytical tools and how all the
data interacts within these is paramount.

•

Market Flow Calculator (MFC) and Curtailment and Allocation Tool (CAT)
support - As a secondary function, the shift engineers would also be responsible
for providing real-time support of the MFC and CAT tools being developed for
SPP. During regular business hours, this support would be provide by a non-shift
Operations Engineer, but the shift engineer would more than likely be the first to
notice problems and begin to analyze prior to reporting issues to the Operations
Engineer.

It is recommended that a mix of levels for the shift engineers be utilized. Three (3)
Engineer II or Engineer Associate III and two (2) Engineer I or Engineer Associate II
positions should be budgeted. In order to properly train the personnel and implement a
shift prior to market startup, the following schedule for the additional personnel is
recommended: October 2005 add two (2) FTEs at Engineer I or Engineer Associate II
levels; November 2005 add one (1) FTE at an Engineer II or Engineer Associate III level;
January 2006 add two (2) FTEs at Engineer II or Engineer Associate III levels. This is a
total of five (5) FTEs in order to cover 24x7 operations. A shift premium should be
included for budgeting purposes that would account for approximately 10% of the Shift
Engineer’s salary.

The costs for 2005 are estimated to be $43,000. The costs for 2006 are estimated to be
$332,000. These costs should all be attributed to the market startup.

Additional “Floating” Coordinators
SPP Operations sees the need for additional personnel to help with the growing workload
in all areas. The number of transmission service requests processed by the Tariff
Administrators has increased over the last year (60,745 in 1st half of 2004, 84,965 in 1st
half of 2005) and is expected to continue to increase as new transmission owners are
added to the SPP OATT and as SPP performs additional services under the “non-rate
terms and conditions” of the OATT. The competition for the Ercot market has increased
to the point of requiring approximately 75% of the Tariff Administrator’s time to ensure
that service requests for the DC ties are processed correctly and in a timely manner.
Closely correlated to the increase in transmission service requests, the scheduling
workload has increased dramatically as well and is expected to continue to increase partly
due to existing commitments and partly due to additional scheduling duties to be assumed
when the SPP Market starts.
The heavily constrained SPP system requires close monitoring and immediate action to
be taken when needed. The implementation of the SPP Market will only increase the
demand put on the already burdened Reliability Coordinators as they will be required to
work closely with the Market Operators to manage constraints. Additional tools will
need to be used in conjunction with the tools used today by the RC’s to manage
constraints in coordination with the Market.
The Market Operators time will be heavily consumed by monitoring the 5-minute
dispatch solutions produced by the Market System and interfacing with the market
participants. Their workload is expected to be higher than originally anticipated due to
the higher frequency of solutions versus the 15-minute solution periodicity previously
considered in the market protocols.
In addition to the expected increase in workload for all areas SPP is also concerned about
the expected retirement of several operators that are currently on staff. Two (2) of the
current operators have informed management that they plan to retire in the next 1 to 2
years. Several more have indicated they will retire within the next 5 years. SPP
operations management sees the need to be prepared for the planned replacement of these
employees. SPP expects its shift personnel, particularly those in reliability functions, to
be very experienced and it will take time to train their replacements.
Six (6) additional operators are required to provide support for the four functioning desks
and to eventually fill in for departing operators. These new positions will be considered
“floating” operators. They must be available around the clock to provide assistance to any
of the desks that require assistance. It is proposed that these positions be filled with entry
level reliability coordinator personnel. In order to be prepared to assist by the time the
market is implemented, 2 of these should be hired in September of 2005, 2 in November

of 2005 and the final 2 in January of 2006. The total costs for 2005 are expected to be
$66,000. The total costs for 2006 are expected to be $396,000. 25% of these costs
should be attributed to market startup while the other 75% should be attributed to existing
reliability operations.
Additional Scheduling Help
Scheduling is now a full time job for 2 people during the day. This is filled with the 12hour “D” shift person and the 8-hour “W” person. Most relief shifts are used for vacation,
since this is the only time coordinators can take vacation, so if they are needed for
additional workload they are not available without giving up vacation time. This
currently leaves SPP with little or no opportunity for training because the 8-hour “W”
person is necessary to carry regular workload. The workload on weekends and nights
shifts is increasing as well. At times SPP has already experienced a need for an extra
person on the Weekend days and from later afternoon until Midnight for checkout.
Checkout processes will become more in depth with the implementation of the market.
The hours between midnight and 6:00 a.m. still only need one person at this time.
SPP was able to provide WR and KCPL scheduling agent services without additional
staff but with a much-increased workload. MPS and WPEK have stated a desire to begin
using similar services from SPP in August. SPP is getting perilously close to not being
able to provide scheduling agent services to additional members without additional staff.
A new responsibility that SPP will have to take on when the market is implemented is the
Market Inadvertent Management (MIM) process. Another new scheduling process that
will be implemented with market startup is Native Load Scheduling (NLS). This
additional functionality to RTOSS will add a large number of schedules. These schedules
will need to be tracked and monitored. There will be validation procedures that will need
to be completed in day ahead and real time. The responsibilities associated with MIM and
NLS cannot be added to the Scheduling function without the addition of a day-ahead
scheduler or an additional Checkout person in January of 2006. This position should be
budgeted at a Scheduler II level with an estimated cost for 2006 of $66,000. This cost
should be attributed to market startup.
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MARKETS AND OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors/Members Committee
July 26, 2005

Organizational Roster
The following members represent the Regional Tariff Working Group (RTWG):
Mr. Dennis Bethel
Mr. Ricky Bittle
Mr. James Stanton
Mr. David Toole
Mr. Jeff Brown
Mr. David Brian
Mr. Bary Warren
Mr. Charles Locke
Mr. Robert Bowser
Mr. Bill Dowling
Mr. Mike Proctor
Mr. Tim Soles
Mr. John Gunesch Jr.
Mr. Gene Anderson
Mr. Pat Bourne
Mr. Bernard Liu
Mr. Mark Foreman
Mr. Dennis Reed
Mr. Mitchell Williams
Mr. Pat Bourne

AEP-West
Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corp.
Calpine Energy Services
Cargill - Alliant, LLC
Coral Power Trading
East Texas Electric Cooperative
Empire District Electric Co.
Kansas City Power & Light
Kansas Electric Power Cooperative
Midwest Energy
Missouri Public Service Commission
Occidental Energy Ventures
OG+E Electric Services
Oklahoma Municipal Power
Southwest Power Pool
Southwestern Public Service Co.
Tenaska Power Services Co.
Westar Energy
Western Farmers Electric
Southwest Power Pool

The following stakeholders participated in group discussions:
Mr. Dennis Bethel
Mr. Ricky Bittle
Ms. Pat Mosier
Mr. James Stanton
Mr. David Brian
Ms. Christine Ryan
Mr. Bary Warren
Mr. Charles Locke
Mr. Tom DeBaun
Mr. Robert Bowser
Mr. Ron Gary
Mr. Gary Newell
Mr. Bill Dowling
Mr. Mike Proctor
Mr. Tim Soles
Mr. John Gunesch Jr.
Mr. Gene Anderson
Mr. Pat Bourne
Ms. Tracey Hannon
Mr. Bernard Liu

AEP-West
Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corp.
Arkansas Public Service Commission
Calpine Energy Services
East Texas Electric Cooperative
East Texas Electric Cooperative
Empire District Electric Co.
Kansas City Power & Light
Kansas Corporation Commission
Kansas Electric Power Cooperative
Lafayette Utilities System
Lafayette Utilities System
Midwest Energy
Missouri Public Service Commission
Occidental Energy Ventures
OG+E Electric Services
Oklahoma Municipal Power
Southwest Power Pool
Southwestern Power Administration
Southwestern Public Service Co.

Mr. Mark Foreman
Mr. Dennis Reed
Mr. Mitchell Williams

Tenaska Power Services Co.
Westar Energy
Western Farmers Electric

Background
Tariff Modifications
The RTWG has had under discussion three Tariff modifications. By additions and modifications to the
definitions section of the Tariff, and the addition of new Attachment AI, the RTWG has concluded its work
on the revisions necessary to incorporate a new definition for transmission facilities. This working group
expects to conclude the Tariff revisions necessary to specify an “unpancaked”, capacity-based scheduling
charge and provide for the allocation of revenue between multiple entities owning facilities in a single
zone at its July 7, 2005 meeting. A supplemental report and recommendation to the MOPC will be
provided immediately thereafter.
Analysis
Transmission Facilities Definition
A comprehensive report and related attachments, setting out the history of the process and current status
of this effort has been provided with this report and recommendation.
On June 9, 2005, the RTWG concluded work on Tariff revisions necessary to modify the definition of
transmission facilities. Attachment 1 to the comprehensive report reflects the proposed changes to base
Tariff provisions redlined against the version developed for EIS Market implementation and a new
Attachment AI. By a vote of eight in favor and three opposed with no abstentions, the RTWG adopted the
proposed Tariff modifications. Those opposed stated: 1) the direct assignment of radials imposes an
inequitable cost burden, 2) the definition of transmission should be generally inclusive and radials should
be included, and 3) the exclusion of radials will have a substantial negative impact on recovery of the
zonal revenue requirements for some owners.
In addition, an analysis of the impact of radials inclusion / exclusion on transmission facilities owners in
SPP has been attached. It reflects the revenue requirements of facilities owning entities and that portion
of such revenue requirements associated with radial facilities.
Recommendation
The RTWG recommends that the MOPC approve the modifications to the definitions section of the Tariff
and addition of new Attachment AI in order to incorporate a new definition of transmission facilities into
the SPP OATT.
Approved:

RTWG (Three opposed)

June 9, 2005

Amendment to Attachment AI, II, 1 to read:
All non-radial power lines, substations, and associated facilities, operated at 60 kV or
above, plus all radial lines and associated facilities operated at or above 60 kV that serve
two or more eligible customers not Affiliates of each other.
MOPC

Passed, Unopposed

July 13, 2005

MOPC approves recommended transmission definition as amended.
MOPC

Action Requested:

Passed, One Opposed

Approve Recommendation

Attachments:
Comprehensive report, including proposed Tariff language.
Analysis of Facilities Owning Entities’ Radial Revenue Requirements

July 13, 2005

Southwest Power Pool
May 12, 2005
Analysis of Facilities Owning Entities' Radial Revenue Requirements
Revenue Requirements ($)
Facilities
Owner

Open Loops Pure Radials

All Radials

All Facilities

Percent Revenue Requirements
Open
Pure
All
All
Loops Radials Radials Facilities

AEP

$700,000

$2,100,000

$2,800,000

$88,681,579

0.79%

2.37%

3.16%

100.00%

Empire

$60,000

$340,000

$400,000

$14,075,000

0.43%

2.42%

2.84%

100.00%

KCPL

$3,516,539

$390,726

$3,907,265

$35,461,776

9.92%

1.10%

11.02% 100.00%

OG+E

$873,873

$1,620,271

$2,494,144

$65,065,032

1.34%

2.49%

3.83%

Midwest

$972,495

$592,717

$1,565,212

$4,197,347

23.17% 14.12% 37.29% 100.00%

$10,747,080

$64,200,000

0.00%

0.00%

16.74% 100.00%

Xcel (SPS)
Westar

100.00%

$1,290,000

$4,210,000

$5,500,000

$66,491,775

1.94%

6.33%

8.27%

100.00%

Springfield

$0

$0

$0

$8,651,509

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

0.00%

GRDA

$0

$1,382,385

$1,382,385

$24,589,256

0.00%

5.62%

5.62%

100.00%

SWPA

$0

$62,283

$62,283

$8,752,200

0.00%

0.71%

0.71%

100.00%

WFEC

$225,000

$2,798,675

$3,023,675

$20,719,639

1.09%

13.51% 14.59% 100.00%

OMPA

$0

$915,000

$915,000

$1,328,000

0.00%

68.90% 68.90% 100.00%

AECC

$334,930

$216,626

$551,556

$866,856

38.64% 24.99% 63.63% 100.00%

$4,245,500

$1,855,700

$6,101,200

$8,699,800

48.80% 21.33% 70.13% 100.00%

$16,484,383

$39,449,800

$411,779,769

2.97%

East Texas

Grand Total $12,218,337

4.00%

9.58%

100.00%

Southwest Power Pool
TRANSMISSION DEFINITION TASK FORCE (TDTF)
REPORT TO THE RTWG
JULY 7, 2005

HISTORY & BACKGROUND
On May 5, 2003 RTWG Chairman, Ricky Bittle, commissioned the Transmission
Definition Task Force (TDTF) to develop a definition that would be used to clearly
identify facilities deemed to be transmission. TDTF members have included: Les
Dillahunty, SPP (Chair); Bill Dowling, Midwest Energy; Ron Kite, Kansas City
Power and Light Company; Laura Becker, Kansas City Power and Light
Company; Charles Locke, Kansas City Power and Light Company; Mike Proctor,
Missouri Public Service Commission; Lena Mantle, Missouri Public Service
Commission; John Gunesch, OG+E; David Kays, OG+E; Phil Crissup, OG+E;
Jay Toungate, American Electric Power; Dennis Bethel, American Electric
Power; Terri Gallup, American Electric Power; Robert Pennybaker, American
Electric Power; Scott Helyer, Tenaska; David Brian, GDS Associates, Inc. Seth
Brown, GDS Associates, Inc.; Ricky Bittle, Arkansas Electric Cooperative;
Ronnie Frizzell, Arkansas Electric Cooperative; Gene Anderson, Oklahoma
Municipal Power Authority; Dennis Reed, Westar Energy; Don Taylor, Westar
Energy; Tom Stuchlik, Westar Energy; David Grover, Xcel Energy; Bernie Liu,
Xcel Energy; Bary Warren, Empire District Electric; Edwin Farrar, Oklahoma
Corporation Commission; Karen Forbes, Oklahoma Corporation Commission;
Kelli Leaf, Oklahoma Corporation Commission; Christine Ryan (East Texas
Cooperatives); Gary Newell (Lafayette Utilities System); Mike Lavanga, (East
Texas Cooperatives); Alan Derichswiler, Western Farmers Electric Cooperative
and Ron Gary, Lafayette Utilities System.
Throughout the history of the TDTF there have a number of alternatives
considered: 1. bright line definition; 2. functional definition; 3. application of the
FERC seven factor test; 4. a three tiered transmission definition separately
addressing rates, planning and functional control. An excerpt from the minutes of
the MOPC meeting of January 15, 2004 concerning the definition suggested that
“it is expected to generate divided votes on many levels”. The core question for
the TDTF from a point early in the process has been the inclusion or exclusion of
radial lines. On April 8, 2004 the RTWG adopted in a 9 to 3 vote a definition that
addressed the inclusion of radials in this manner:
All non-radial power lines, substations, and associated facilities,
operated at 60 kv or above, plus all radial lines operated at or
above 60 kv, and associated facilities, that serve two or more
eligible customers not affiliated with each other.
A recommendation to adopt the RTWG recommendation was made at the April
14-15, 2004 meeting of the MOPC, but marginally failed accruing a positive vote
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of 65.6%. A second motion of the MOPC also failed when the Committee was
asked to approve the recommendation with a requirement of only one served
customer on the radial. The Chairman of the MOPC noted the efforts of the TDTF
and asked the RTWG to: 1) revise the definition and bring back specific Tariff
language, 2) work with the Regional State Committee, and 3) report on any
analysis that can be performed considering the revenue impact with radials in or
radials out for each transmission owner. An analysis of the impact of radials
inclusion on transmission-owning entities has been completed (attached). It
reflects estimated revenue requirements associated with radial facilities
compared to the revenue requirement associated with all facilities for each entity.
During subsequent discussions, the TDTF determined that a thorough analysis of
the economic impact of radials inclusion ought to include an estimate of impact
on customers.
RECENT ACTIVITIES
(a) Westar Energy did provide an analysis (Attachment 2a and 2b) comparing
three options: radials in, radials out and radials in with two or more customers.
The comparison of 56 of Westar’s wholesale customers concluded that only 11
customers experienced cost fluctuations of greater than 5%, no matter what
option was chosen. Westar also concluded that when comparing the inclusion of
all radials with radials with more than one customer only two customers
experienced cost increases with one having significance. Further, the exclusion
of radials with a single customer from the analysis generally causes a small
decrease in cost as the cost of those single customer radials are directly
assigned. Empire District and Oklahoma Gas & Electric commented that the
Westar results were believed to be representative of results that could be
expected if similar analyses were to be performed on their systems. These
analyses are not exhaustive, but provide indication of impact.
(b) AEP also provided supplemental information on radial inclusion impact.
According to their analysis, if all radials, including existing customer-owned
radials, were included as transmission, the AEP zonal revenue requirement
would effectively increase approximately $9.6 million or 10.9%.
(c) The TDTF also considered the impact that the cost allocation proposal might
have upon the definition. The conclusion of that discussion was that cost
allocation would not be impacted by the choice of radials being included or
excluded from the definition. However, the definition was amended to include the
following:
All new facilities that qualify for base plan funding shall be
included.
This addition does provide that a radial line determined to be required for
reliability in the Base Plan, if any, would be considered transmission.
(d) At its May 3, 2005 teleconference the TDTF voted on acceptance of the
following language for inclusion in the transmission definition:
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All non-radial power lines, substations, and associated facilities, operated at 60
kv or above, plus all radial lines operated at or above 60 kv, and associated
facilities, that serve two or more eligible customers not affiliated with each other.
(Same language that was approved by the RTWG on April 8, 2004 and rejected
by the MOPC during their April 14-15, 2004 meetings.)
Nine members were represented on the teleconference with six voting in favor of
this language, two voting “no” with one abstention.
QUESTIONS & ACTION ITEMS FOR THE TDTF
1. The TDTF asked SPP Staff to outline what the ultimate adoption by FERC
of the inclusion of this transmission definition in the Tariff would require.
That remains as it has in the Implementation section of the draft
transmission definition; i.e.,
Within three (3) years after FERC acceptance of these Tariff provisions,
each Transmission Owner shall file a request(s) based on this definition
with its appropriate regulatory authority or authorities for a determination
as to which of its facilities are transmission facilities. Each Transmission
Owner that is not subject to regulation by a regulatory authority shall apply
to SPP for such a determination.
Each Transmission Owner shall use reasonable efforts to cause the
aforementioned determinations to be made and the applicable
transmission service rates to be adjusted accordingly as soon as possible
after such determinations are finalized.
2. SPP Staff was asked to describe the basic differences of opinion that
separate those favoring the inclusion of radials from those opposing their
inclusion.
Inclusion of radials - the issue is one of equity; i.e. can a true distinction be
drawn between a single customer radial and a loop around a city whose
primary purpose is to serve customers in the city. The radial would be
excluded by some as being local service with only one customer, perhaps
a city, while the loop would be included because it is a closed but also
serving a city. Radial lines may predominate in areas served by rural cooperatives and may be the last leg of the system serving many municipal
utilities. Radial lines may be the logical conclusion of the planning
process: 1) extension of a radial from a transmission trunk may be more
cost-effective than looping a transmission line out to a load center. This
also minimizes the impedance of the through system and reliability risks to
the through line. 2) a radial line may be a logical first step in the
construction of a future loop. Radials may be considered includable
based on the functional criterion that they serve a wholesale customer.
The question of whether open loops and pure radials should be
considered separately for inclusion / exclusion remains. Loops may be
operated open for the sole purpose of satisfying contractual obligations.
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Customers serviced by radial lines will generally pay more for
transmission service than those served off of the looped system because
they will pay the cost of the host transmission system plus an additional
layer of cost consisting of i) 100% of the directly assigned cost of the
radial lines (while the host TO’s customers will pay a prorata share of the
cost directly assigned to the TO) and ii) the cost of self-owned radial
facilities. In reality this means that generally the customers of
cooperatives, joint action agencies and municipally owned utilities will pay
more for transmission service than if they were served by the host TO.
Exclusion of radials – As a matter of equity, radials are not needed to
serve customers not connected to it; whereas, looped lines facilitate
service to many customers, including those not directly connected to it.
Radials with only one customer provide a local delivery function only,
functioning essentially as a surrogate for distribution facilities, and the cost
associated with that line should be directly assigned. Additionally, a radial
facility has no response to regional power flows and does not contribute to
the strength of the interconnected network.
JUNE 8, 2005 CAWG DISCUSSION
The CAWG has been following the ongoing activity of the TDTF; however, as the
TDTF effort entered it’s decisional phase and to comply with the MOPC directive
for a review by the RSC, the CAWG was asked to review and comment upon the
TDTF’s effort. The CAWG asked for additional information related to the possible
rate impacts of the proposed transmission definition. Attachment 3 contains the
responses provided by a representative sample of SPP members to the CAWG
additional data request. During the CAWG meeting on June 8, 2005 the following
three topics were discussed:
1. Why is there a need for the development and action upon a definition of
transmission? Present SPP Tariff rates allow individual zones; i.e., in
many cases individual utilities to decide upon facilities to be included. This
practice allows and current rates reflect inconsistencies within zones and
between zones that extends to inconsistencies within and between states.
FERC policies on comparability already require consistency within a zone
by requiring like rate treatment of like facilities regardless of ownership. In
summary, there was no dissension that uniformity and clarity would result
from this effort. While uniformity and clarity are seen as positive there
continues to be discussion around the fairness and equity of this specific
definition.
2. Does the proposed definition cause a shift in the jurisdictional balance?
The definition is not intended to diminish state jurisdiction. Typically the
facilities of the Transmission Owners meeting the definition are already
included in FERC rates. The definition requires the application of FERC’s
seven factor test, established in Order 888, within three years as the point
4

of demarcation between federal and state jurisdiction for unbundled retail
service and defers that determination to the individual states. It is hoped
that an SPP Tariff based definition of transmission would be beneficial to
the states as they undertake the requisite reviews during the transition
period.
3. The CAWG remains interested in the rate impacts for both retail and
wholesale customers. In addition to the information that was supplied to
the CAWG and RTWG, CAWG Chairman, Mike Proctor, encouraged the
CAWG members to have further discussions with their regulated utilities
prior to the June 22nd SPP RSC meeting in order to provide additional
information at that time to the RSC on this topic. The initial review of the
background information provided to the CAWG and the discussion on
June 8th tend to indicate minimal or inconsequential impacts on a very
high percentage of regulated retail customers.
JUNE 9, 2005 RTWG DISCUSSION AND ACTION
The RTWG received a report on the previous afternoon’s CAWG review. There
was discussion and modification to the proposed transmission definition Tariff
language. A motion to modify the definition to include all radials and to allow a
rate mitigation period for the transition to this proposed rate design was made
and seconded, but failed to secure the required votes necessary for passage. On
a vote of 8 to 3 the Tariff language included as Attachment 1 was adopted by the
RTWG. Those opposed, did so either because of their continued concern about
the equity of this proposal and/or the potential impact that the proposal may have
upon rates.
JUNE 22, 2005 RSC DISCUSSION
The ongoing efforts of the Transmission Definition Task Force (TDTF) and the
RTWG were explained, including the definition and tariff language adopted by the
RTWG on June 9. The RSC deferred action on this topic until July 11 asking for
additional technical and rate information.
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Attachment 1
Southwest Power Pool - TDTF
Definition of Transmission Facilities
Draft Tariff Language Modifications Approved by the RTWG
June 9, 2005

Following are (i) draft changes to the definitions section of the Tariff in redline and (ii) a draft of
a new Attachment to the Tariff that specifies the criteria to qualify as Transmission Facilities.

1.0

Affiliate: With respect to a corporation, partnership or other entity, each such other
corporation, partnership or other entity that directly or indirectly, through one or more
intermediaries, controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with, such
corporation, partnership or other entity.

1.11a Existing Facilities: (i) Transmission System facilities placed in service on or before
December 31, 2005; or (ii) planned Transmission System facilities identified in the SPP
Transmission Expansion Plan required to be in service to meet SPP and NERC reliability
standards for the summer of 2005; or (iii) Transmission System facilities identified by
Transmission Owners, and not included in the SPP Transmission Expansion Plan,
required to be in service to meet SPP and NERC reliability standards for the summer of
2005.
1.45a Transmission Facilities: The transmission facilities which meet the criteria specified in
Attachment AI of the Tariff.
1.45b Transmission Owner: Each member of SPP whose transmission facilities (in whole or

Deleted: a

in part) make up the Transmission System and has executed a membership agreement as
a Transmission Owner. Those Transmission Owners that are not regulated by the
Commission shall not become subject to Commission regulation by virtue of their status
as Transmission Owners under this Tariff; provided, however, that service over their
facilities classified as transmission and covered by the Tariff shall be subject to
Commission regulation.
1.49

Transmission System: The Transmission Facilities used by the Transmission Provider
to provide transmission service under Part II, Part III and Part V of the Tariff.
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Attachment 1
ATTACHMENT AI
Definition of Transmission Facilities

I.

Introduction
This Attachment sets forth the definition of Transmission Facilities to be implemented in
accordance with the schedule in Section IV of this Attachment. Transmission Facilities
shall be the facilities which meet the criteria specified in this Attachment and which are
used by the Transmission Provider to provide transmission service under Part II, Part III
and Part V of the Tariff.

II.

Criteria for Inclusion of Facilities
Transmission Facilities shall include all facilities that meet the following criteria:
1. All non-radial power lines, substations, and associated facilities, operated at 60 kV
or above, plus all radial lines operated at or above 60 kV, and associated facilities,
that serve two or more eligible customers not Affiliates of each other.
2. All facilities that are utilized for interconnecting the various internal zones to each
other as well as those facilities that interconnect SPP with other surrounding
entities.
3. Control equipment and facilities necessary to control and protect facilities
qualifying as Transmission Facilities.
4. For substations connected to power lines qualifying as Transmission facilities,
where power is transformed from a voltage higher than 60 kV to a voltage lower
than 60 kV, facilities on the high voltage side of the transformer will be included
with the exception of transformer isolation equipment.
5. The portion of the direct-current interconnections with areas outside of the SPP
region (DC ties) that are owned by a Transmission Owner in the SPP region,
including those portions of the DC tie that operate at a voltage lower than 60 kV.
6. All facilities operated below 60 kV that have been determined to be transmission
pursuant to the seven (7) factor test set forth in FERC Order No. 888, 61 Fed Reg.
21,540, 21,620 (1996), or any applicable successor test.
7. Any facility determined by the Transmission Provider to be a Base Plan Upgrade,
pursuant to Section III of Attachment J to the Tariff.

III.

Excluded Facilities
The following facilities shall not constitute Transmission Facilities:
1. Generator step-up transformers and generator leads;

2

Attachment 1
2. Radial lines from a generating station to a single substation or switching station
on the Transmission System;
3. Direct Assignment Facilities;

IV.

Implementation Schedule
Within three (3) years from the date of acceptance by FERC of this Attachment AI to the
Tariff, each Transmission Owner shall file a request(s) based on this Attachment with its
appropriate regulatory authority or authorities for a determination as to which of its
facilities are Transmission Facilities. Each Transmission Owner that is not subject to
regulation by a regulatory authority shall apply to SPP for such a determination.

Each Transmission Owner shall use reasonable efforts to cause the aforementioned
determinations to be made and the applicable transmission service rates to be adjusted
accordingly as soon as possible after such determinations are finalized.
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Attachment 2a

Transmission Radial Option Comparison
Transmission Definition Task Force
35%

30%

Percentage Increase / (Decrease) from
Option 1 (69 kV with all radials)

25%

These two cities are on
69 kV or higher radials
that serve only them.

20%

Proposed SPP Transmission Definitions:
Opt. 1 - 69kv and above
Opt. 2 - 69kV and above w/o radials
Opt. 3 - 69kV and above w/radial with
two or more Wholesale customers

15%

10%
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Attachment 2b
Description of Radial Impact Analysis – SPP
Provided by Dennis Reed, Westar Energy
As promised, but delivered well late, this represents the analysis of the three different
Transmission Definition Options. Please be sure to distribute this to the Task Force. I
believe we need to have a conference call prior to the next RTWG meeting to see if we
can get this on to the MOPC and BOD in April.
Option 1 - 69 kV and above.
Option 2 - 69 kV and above w/o radials.
Option 3 - 69 kV and above w/radials with more than one Wholesale customer.
The attached graph shows the impact of Options 2 and 3 as compared to Option 1 for 56
of Westar's wholesale customers. Since all radials are currently included in Westar's
rates, Option 1 is the closest to what customers are paying today.
The Red bars compare the impacts to what the customers are paying when all radials are
removed. The Green bars when only the single customer radials are removed. I have
estimated the general reduction in zonal revenue requirements for the removal of the
facilities.
In general, only 11 entities see rate fluctuations greater than 5%, no matter what option
you choose. When comparing Opt 1 to Opt 3, basically no wholesale entity, except two
see increases, and only one of those of a significant amount. Generally, nearly all the
entities see a small decrease which represents that most of our radials (and indeed our
facilities) serve Westar's retail load and those facilities would be allocated to that
customer group alone.
Based on this analysis, and FERC's position that facilities that benefit only one customer
ought to be directly assigned; Westar continues to support Opt 3.

Attachment 3
Additional Rate Impact Analyses
Mike,
>
> In response to your inquiry, I have asked OG&E, Empire, KCP&L, AEP
and Westar to provide assistance in a quick response to your data
request. As of this point four transmission owners have responded and I
will attempt to categorize and summarize those responses below:
>
> Rate Impacts:
>
> *
Westar - estimates an additional $1.9 million of net plant could
be added to Westar's retail customers from radial lines and open looped
facilities serving two or more customers. Based upon a current rate
case this would convert to approximately $450,000 in annual revenue
requirements. As a result a residential customer consuming 750
kwh/month would see an increase of 1.7 cents.
> *
OG&E - has very few radials with two or more eligible customers
not affiliated with each other so they were able to perform a "cursory"
analysis of the proposed definitions impact:
>
>
Estimates of Monthly Impacts of Proposed Transmission
Definition
> CUSTOMER CLASS OKLAHOMA
ARKANSAS
> Residential
$0.01 $0.01
> General Service $0.02 $0.02
> Power & Light
$0.32 $0.91
> Large Power & Light
$22.74
>
> *
Empire - 95% of existing radials are estimated to be assigned to
retail customers. A reallocation from transmission to distribution for
these existing facilities are expected to have minimal overall rate
impacts. The removal of radials may have some minimal impact on the
cost of service for existing full requirements wholesale customers.
Empire goes on to state that based upon their quick assessment, "the
proposed compromise definition will have negligible affect on EDE
customers...related to existing facilities". Empire can not assess the
impact on rates for new facilities because the actual impacts of the
new cost allocation assignment is not known.
> *
KCP&L - estimates that an order-of-magnitude analysis for
wholesale customers in aggregate and for retail customers could take
"two to three" weeks. KCP&L shares the concern that these order-ofmagnitude assessments are approximations to aid in the decision making
process and that is their sole purpose.
> Other comments:
> *
Westar - as you know Westar has done a significant amount of
analysis on this question that was distributed in the earlier materials
plus work on a recent rate case, so for them the additional data
request was not particularly burdensome. Dennis Reed suggest that
Westar had recently spent 4 to 5 months on a study to functionalize the
radial lines on their system.
> *
OG&E - due to the complexity of the task OG&E has not analyzed
the impacts on wholesale customers. OG&E also notes that the proposed
definition states that, > "> For substations connected to power lines
qualifying as Transmission facilities, where power is transformed from
a voltage higher than 60 kV to a voltage lower than 60 kV, facilities
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on the high voltage side of the transformer will be included in
transmission with the exception of transformer isolation equipment.> ">
This will require that transmission facilities in substations
designated as distribution plant be identified and removed from
distribution plant and placed in transmission plant. OG&E is unable to
determine the magnitude of the impact to the transmission revenue
requirement by the inclusion of these facilities.
> *
Empire - suggest that to determine precise impacts, one week of
price design time would be required with an additional 2 to 3 weeks of
effort to conduct a field examination necessary for the proper
classification of facilities as addressed in OG&E's comment.
> *
KCP&L - advises that the individual wholesale customer impacts
would require "several months". Additionally there are questions
concerning the treatment of the 34 kv facilities.
>
> Summary:
> I will supply any additional information that becomes available. The
RTWG does need to consider this subject and take action at their June
9th meeting. I trust that the CAWG will find this additional
information both helpful and sufficient for them to provide input to
the RSC and RTWG, MOPC and of> course the SPP Board. As the time is
rapidly approaching for action by the RTWG and with no RSC meeting or
teleconference scheduled, that we address this in parallel with the
CAWG providing input to the RTWG and that input being confirmed by the
RSC prior to the MOPC meeting on July 12 & 13. Probably the best way
for this to be handled by the CAWG is to have a discussion during the
June 8th meeting.
>
> Please let me know if I can provide additional information. We
appreciate your continued interest and support.
>
> Les

________________________________________________________
Les,
In response to your recent questions concerning AECC's view on the
impact of radials on the open access rates, I have the following
comments.
You mentioned that the TOs had indicated that they would expect an
increase in the rates of approximately 2-3%. If that is all that is
expected, AECC doesn't see this additional cost as an issue. Include
the radials and move on. What is an issue for us is the fact that
loads served by radials pay an incremental cost for service and we do
not consider this fair or equitable. Why should two identical loads
have to pay different cost just because one is looped and one is on a
radial? (Don't even try to convince me that it is because they are
dedicated facilities.)
Keep in mind that the one on the radial will
be paying more for less reliable service.
As I have
looked at
forward.
encompass
service.

mentioned to you before, during this whole process, AECC has
how the definition of transmission will impact everyone going
AECC would like to see a definition that is broad enough to
the majority of facilities that SPP will use to provide
The facilities that have to be included in Schedule 10 should
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be exceptions and keep to a minimum. Schedule 10 should not be used as
a catch all for facilities that do not meet some restricted definition.
If the long range plan is to move away from zonal rates, what happens
to the facilities in Schedule 10?
I think the exclusion of radials will have a much greater impact on the
cost forward than the incremental cost of including them now. For one,
planners will immediately look at every radial on their system to see
which ones can be looped so they can be included in the rate base.
This will result in additional cost that would not have otherwise been
made if radials had been included in the first place.
Additionally, there will be an increase in the number of request for
loops where a radial would be sufficient again so they can be included
in the rate base. These two factors alone will create greater impact
going forward than the impact of including radials from the start.
Ronnie Frizzell
Principal Planning Engineer
Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corporation

_______________________________________________________________
LesAEP's response to the attached inquiries regarding the reasonableness
of having each SPP pricing zone provide an analysis showing the impact
on retail rates and on individual wholesale customers is as follows:
Retail rate impacts, due to the exclusion of all or a few transmission
voltage radials, can't be reasonably or accurately accessed because the
overall impact of the proposed and currently contested overall cost
allocation scheme is not known.
Robert will be attending the RTWG meeting should this be discussed
further when AECC provides its response.
Thanks.

Terri

Terri Gallup, Regulatory Case Manager
American Electric Power Service Corporation
Mail Address:
P.O. Box 201, Tulsa, OK 74102
Street Address: 212 E. Sixth St. , Tulsa, OK 74119
E-Mail Address: tagallup@aep.com
Phone: (918) 599-2242; FAX: (918) 599-3242
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
MARKETS AND OPERATIONS POLICY COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors/Members Committee
July 26, 2005

Organizational Roster
The following members represent the Regional Tariff Working Group (RTWG):
Mr. Dennis Bethel
Mr. Ricky Bittle
Mr. James Stanton
Mr. David Toole
Mr. Jeff Brown
Mr. David Brian
Mr. Bary Warren
Mr. Charles Locke
Mr. Robert Bowser
Mr. Bill Dowling
Mr. Mike Proctor
Mr. Tim Soles
Mr. John Gunesch Jr.
Mr. Gene Anderson
Mr. Pat Bourne
Mr. Bernard Liu
Mr. Mark Foreman
Mr. Dennis Reed
Mr. Mitchell Williams
Mr. Pat Bourne

AEP-West
Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corp.
Calpine Energy Services
Cargill - Alliant, LLC
Coral Power Trading
East Texas Electric Cooperative
Empire District Electric Co.
Kansas City Power & Light
Kansas Electric Power Cooperative
Midwest Energy
Missouri Public Service Commission
Occidental Energy Ventures
OG+E Electric Services
Oklahoma Municipal Power
Southwest Power Pool
Southwestern Public Service Co.
Tenaska Power Services Co.
Westar Energy
Western Farmers Electric
Southwest Power Pool

The following stakeholders participated in group discussions:
AEP-West
Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corp.
Arkansas Public Service Commission
Calpine Energy Services
East Texas Electric Cooperative
East Texas Electric Cooperative
Empire District Electric Co.
Kansas City Power & Light
Kansas Corporation Commission
Kansas Electric Power Cooperative
Lafayette Utilities System
Lafayette Utilities System
Midwest Energy
Missouri Public Service Commission
Occidental Energy Ventures
OG+E Electric Services
Oklahoma Municipal Power
Southwest Power Pool
Southwestern Power Administration
Southwestern Public Service Co.

Mr. Dennis Bethel
Mr. Ricky Bittle
Ms. Pat Mosier
Mr. James Stanton
Mr. David Brian
Ms. Christine Ryan
Mr. Bary Warren
Mr. Charles Locke
Mr. Tom DeBaun
Mr. Robert Bowser
Mr. Ron Gary
Mr. Gary Newell
Mr. Bill Dowling
Mr. Mike Proctor
Mr. Tim Soles
Mr. John Gunesch Jr.
Mr. Gene Anderson
Mr. Pat Bourne
Ms. Tracey Hannon
Mr. Bernard Liu
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Mr. Mark Foreman
Mr. Dennis Reed
Mr. Mitchell Williams

Tenaska Power Services Co.
Westar Energy
Western Farmers Electric

Background
Tariff Modifications
In accordance with the expectations stated in the initial report, the RTWG concluded the Tariff revisions
necessary to specify an “unpancaked” scheduling charge and provide for the distribution of revenue
between multiple entities owning transmission facilities in a single zone at its July 7, 2005 meeting.
Additionally, the RTWG recommends that Attachment AA, Transmission Service Prepayment
(Experimental), provisions be renewed for an additional year.

Analysis
Unpancaked Schedule 1
In an October 1, 2004 Order on Rehearing of its February 10, 2004 Order on SPP’s October 15, 2003
RTO application, FERC required that SPP submit, within 90 days a timetable detailing the timeframe
required by SPP to remove pancaking from Schedule 1. On December 30, 2004 SPP made a compliance
filing of a timetable committing that a proposal for resolution of the Schedule 1 pancaking issue would be
submitted to the SPP MOPC and Board at their July, 2005 meetings.
The RTWG has approved, in principle, revisions to Schedule 1, Scheduling, System Control and Dispatch
Service, to eliminate assessment of multiple scheduling charges for a single reservation or transaction.
Final modifications involve minor changes to the rate design inputs that will result in minor changes to the
rates for through and out service and the revenue allocation table set out in Addendum 1 to Schedule 1.
The proposed revisions involve changes to Schedule 1 provisions and modifications to Section IV
(Distribution of Other Revenues) of Attachment L. The motion to approve passed by a vote of six in favor,
none opposed and three abstentions. The prices reflected on Schedule 1 are subject to minor
modifications resulting from revisions needed in rate design inputs. SPP Staff encountered some data
collection issues that remain to be resolved. Scheduling revenue requirements and zonal loads for the
Aquila zones and the Midwest Energy zone will be determined and included in the calculation of rates and
in the revenue allocation table.
Revisions to Schedule 1 and Attachment L are shown in the attachments. Schedule 1 changes are
redlined against current provisions and Attachment L revisions are redlined against the provisions filed
with the Tariff modifications necessary to provide for implementation of the EIS market.
Distribution of Revenue To Multiple Transmission Owners in a Single Zone
In FERC’s February 10, 2004 Order on SPP’s October 15, 2003 RTO application and again in FERC’s
July 2, 2004 Order on SPP’s May 3, 2004 compliance filing, SPP was directed to submit a timetable for
resolving inclusion of more than one TO’s facilities under SPP’s control within a single transmissionpricing zone, as well as distribution of revenues by SPP to such TOs. In an August 2, 2004 compliance
filing SPP reported that it had “constituted a task force to examine this issue and develop an appropriate
proposal. The task force is expected to complete its work and provide a proposal to the Board of
Directors in early 2005. The Board of Directors expects to take final action by July 31, 2005.”
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The revenue distribution provisions of Tariff Attachment L have been modified to provide for the
distribution of revenue between multiple entities owning transmission facilities in a single zone. The
motion to approve these revisions passed by a vote of eight in favor, none opposed and three
abstentions.
Revisions to Attachment L are shown in the attachment. The revisions are redlined against the provisions
filed with the Tariff modifications necessary to provide for implementation of the EIS market.
Tariff Attachment AA Renewal
By order of the FERC issued on October 5, 2004, in Docket No. ER04-833, the Commission accepted for
filing the currently effective Tariff Attachment AA provisions. In that order, the Commission stated that
this experimental program will remain in place for one year, and will not automatically renew without prior
Commission approval. The Commission also directed SPP to file a status report ten months after the
program begins.
The one-year experimental period during which Attachment AA is in effect ends on October 5, 2005. The
RTWG believes that these provisions continue to be beneficial and provide an efficient mechanism for the
funding of needed transmission facilities upgrades. At the July 7, 2005 meeting, members of the RTWG
voted unanimously to recommend to the MOPC that the effective term of Attachment AA, Transmission
Service Prepayment (Experimental), provisions be extended for an additional year.
Recommendation
The RTWG recommends that the MOPC approve Tariff revisions necessary to specify an “unpancaked”
scheduling charge and provide for the distribution of revenue between multiple entities owning
transmission facilities in a single zone. Additionally, it recommends that the MOPC approve renewal of
currently effective Attachment AA provisions for an additional year.
Other Matters
Report on Alternative Station Service Power Procurement
At its July 7, 2005 meeting, the RTWG discussed several federal and state law issues pertinent to the
provision of station service power. After initial discussion of the issues, the RTWG directed SPP Staff to
research FERC case law on the issue, as an initial step in its review.

Approved:

RTWG
Passed unopposed; three abstentions

July 7, 2005

Motion to approve the revisions to Schedule 1 and Attachment L implementing the
removal of pancaked scheduling fees.
MOPC
Passed, two opposed; one abstention

July 13, 2005

Motion to approve the proposed language approving the changes in Attachment L
reflecting allocation of money between Transmission Owners in the Same Zone
MOPC
Passed, unopposed; two abstentions
3

July 13, 2005

Motion to approve the continuation of the Experimental Transmission Service Prepayment
Option (Attachment AA) for an additional year.
MOPC
Passed, unopposed
Action Requested:

July 13, 2005

Approve Recommendation

Attachments:
Schedule 1 as revised, redlined against current provisions.
Attachment L as revised, redlined against the version filed with the EIS Market implementation
Tariff revisions.
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Schedule 1 Revisions Approved by the RTWG July 7, 2005
SCHEDULE 1
Scheduling, System Control And Dispatch Service
Scheduling, System Control and Dispatch Service is required to schedule the
movement of power through, out of, within or into a Control Area.
Charges for such service shall be as follows:

1) For Customers taking Firm or Non-Firm Point-To-Point Transmission Service, for
through and out transactions, the Schedule 1 charge shall be the product of the
capacity reserved, expressed in MW and the appropriate rate as follows:
On-Peak:
Monthly Rate $ 56.0438_per MW-Month
Weekly Rate $12.9332 per MW-Week (The Monthly Rate times 12, divided
by 52)
Daily Rate
260)

$2.5866 per MW-Day (The Monthly Rate times 12, divided by

Hourly Rate $0.1617 per MW-Hour (The Monthly Rate times 12, divided
by 4160)

Off Peak:
Daily Rate/MW $1.8425 per MW-Day (The Monthly Rate times 12, divided
by 365)
Hourly Rate/MW $0.0768 per MW-Hour (The Monthly Rate times 12,
divided by 8760)

On-Peak and Off-Peak Periods
Off-Peak days shall be Saturdays and Sundays and all NERC holidays. All
other days shall be On-Peak. All hours during Off-Peak days shall be OffPeak. On-Peak hours during On-Peak days shall be all hours from HE 0700
through HE 2200 Central Prevailing Time. All other hours during On-Peak
days shall be Off-Peak.

Deleted: The Transmission Provider’s
scheduling process will be as follows:
Deleted: ¶
a. For transactions that source and sink
within the same Control Area, scheduling
will be performed by the operator of that
Control Area and the Transmission
Provider.¶
b. For transactions that source and sink
in two different Control Areas, both
within the Transmission System,
scheduling will be performed by the
operators of the source and sink Control
Area and the Transmission Provider, but
not by any intervening Control Area
operators. ¶
c. For transactions that source and sink
in two different Control Areas, one
internal to the Transmission System and
one external to the Transmission System,
scheduling will be performed by the
Control Area operator of the internal
Control Area, the Transmission Provider,
and the external Control Area that is the
Point of Receipt/Point of Delivery.¶
d. For transactions with a Point of
Receipt and a Point of Delivery in
Control Areas external to the
Transmission System and transmitted
through the Transmission System,
scheduling will be performed by the
Transmission Provider.
Deleted: Individual Control Area
operators within the Transmission System
may perform the functions necessary for
the movement of power within, into, or
out of the respective Control Area as
described above. In such instances the
Transmission Owner(s) whose Control
Area operator(s) perform such functions
may charge the Transmission Provider for
its services as necessary to effectuate the
transaction and the Transmission
Provider will pass through to the
Transmission Customer the actual
charges for each transaction without any
markup. The Transaction Provider shall
pass through the revenues it receives for
this service to the Transmission Owner(s)
whose Control Area operator(s) provided
the service. Each Control Area
Transmission Owner shall maintain a
schedule showing its cost of providing
this service. For the Commission
regulated Transmission Owners, these
charges shall be pursuant to Commission
approved schedules.¶

Formatted: Bullets and Numbering
Formatted
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Schedule 1 Revisions Approved by the RTWG July 7, 2005
2) For Customers taking Firm or Non-Firm Point-To-Point Transmission Service, for
transactions into and within the Transmission System, the Schedule 1 charge shall be
the charge computed pursuant to the approved rate schedule of the Zone that is the
Point of Delivery.
3) For Customers taking Network Integration Transmission Service, the Schedule 1
charge shall be the charge computed pursuant to the approved rate schedule of the
Zone in which the load is located.
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Schedule 1 Revisions Approved by the RTWG July 7, 2005
Formatted

ADDENDUM 1 TO SCHEDULE 1
Revenue Requirements for the Allocation of Through And Out Transaction
Revenue

Revenue associated with the provision of Schedule 1 service for Customers taking Firm
or Non-Firm Point-To-Point Transmission Service for through and out transactions, shall
be allocated to Transmission Owners in proportion to the respective scheduling revenue
requirement of each such Transmission Owner associated with the provision of this
service. Such scheduling revenue requirements are:

Transmission Owner
AEP
Aquila - MPS
Aquila - WPK
Empire
GRDA
KCPL
Midwest
OG+E
SPA
Springfield
SPS
Westar
WFEC
Total

Currently Effective
Revenue Requirement
$2,911,599
TBD
TBD
$260,944
$686,520
$0
TBD
$4,759,216
$1,622,827
$0
$1,674,015
$3,209,760
$1,824,120
$16,949,001

(Note that these revenue requirement amounts are subject to revision before the filing
with the Commission will be made.)
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Attachment L Revisions – Approved by the RTWG July 7, 2005
ATTACHMENT L
TREATMENT OF REVENUES
I.

Payments and Distribution of Revenues
Payment will be made in accord with Section 7 of this Tariff to the Transmission

Provider as agent for the Transmission Owners for all services provided under this Tariff except
that payments to the Transmission Provider for use of Energy Imbalance Service will be made in
accord with Section 6 of Attachment AE.

The Transmission Provider will distribute the

revenues received to the Transmission Owners and to the providers of ancillary services in
accord with the provisions of this Attachment L.
II.

{Allocation} [Distribution] of Transmission Service Revenues [Associated with

Existing Facilities
Transmission service revenues associated with Existing Facilities shall be
distributed in accordance with the following:]
A.

Grandfathered Agreements

Except by mutual agreement of the Parties to Grandfathered Agreements, the
Transmission Provider shall have no claim to the revenues collected under such agreements, and
shall not collect or allocate any revenues for transmission service related to such transactions.
The Transmission Owner providing the transmission service under the Grandfathered
Agreements, therefore, will continue to receive payment directly from the customer under the
Grandfathered Agreement. [Nothing herein is intended to supersede or otherwise affect
rights that any party to a Grandfathered Agreement may have with respect to termination
of the Grandfathered Agreement. In the event that a Grandfathered Agreement remains
in effect between or among two or more Transmission Owners in a multi-owner Zone other
than Zone 1, the associated charges and revenues will be treated as set forth in Section
II.B.2(b) below for purposes of determining the appropriate distribution of revenues
among the Transmission Owners in that Zone.
B.

Revenue Distribution – Network Integration Transmission Service
1.

Single-Owner Zones

Where there is only one Transmission Owner in a Zone, revenues associated with
existing facilities shall be distributed as follows:

(a)

Except to the extent required under paragraph II.B.1(b) of this

Attachment L, revenues collected by the Transmission Provider under Schedule 9 in
connection with the provision of Network Integration Transmission Service shall be
distributed to the Transmission Owner in the Zone where the Network Load is located.
(b)

When a Network Customer has designated Network Load not

physically interconnected with the Transmission System under Section 31.3 of the Tariff,
revenues collected by the Transmission Provider for Network Integration Transmission
Service for that portion of the Network Customer’s Network Load shall be distributed
among Transmission Owners on the same basis as the revenues collected in connection with
the provision of Point-To-Point Transmission Service.
2.

Multi-Owner Zones

When more than one Transmission Owner within a single Zone has established its
owner-specific existing zonal annual revenue requirement (“OEZRR”), the Transmission
Provider shall distribute revenues owed to the Transmission Owners in the Zone as
described below.
(a)

Except to the extent required under paragraph II.B.2(e) of this

Attachment L, the Transmission Provider shall distribute revenues it collects under
Schedule 9 to each Transmission Owner in the Zone where the load is located in proportion
to its respective share of the Existing Zonal Annual Transmission Revenue Requirements
(“EZRR”) shown in Attachment H for that Zone, as adjusted in accordance with
paragraph II.B.2(b) below. The resulting adjusted OEZRRs of the Transmission Owners
in the Zone as calculated in paragraph II.B.2(b) below will be combined to provide the
basis for distribution of revenues from Schedule 9 charges.
(b)

For any year in which a Transmission Owner is a seller of

transmission service to another Transmission Owner within the same Zone under one or
more Grandfathered Agreements, the selling Transmission Owner’s OEZRR used to
allocate revenue from Schedule 9 charges shall be reduced by the revenues associated with
these Grandfathered Agreements in that year, but only to the extent that such costs have
not already been credited against the selling Transmission Owner’s OEZRR. For any year
in which a Transmission Owner is a purchaser of transmission service from a Transmission
Owner within the same Zone under one or more Grandfathered Agreements, the
purchasing Transmission Owner’s OEZRR shall be increased by the charges payable
2

under these Grandfathered Agreements in that year, but only to the extent those charges
are not already included in the purchasing Transmission Owner’s OEZRR.
(c)

For each Transmission Owner in the Zone that has elected not

to take Network Integration Transmission Service for its Native Load Customers or that
has elected not to make payments to SPP for its OEZRR in taking Network Integration
Transmission Service for its Native Load Customers and/or that provides long term
transmission service under Grandfathered Agreements (other than those addressed in
paragraph II.B.2(b) above), SPP shall compute hypothetical NITS payments equal to the
cost to serve its Native Load Customers and to serve long-term customers served under
Grandfathered Agreements (other than those addressed in paragraph II.B.2(b) above) as if
those customers were paying for service under Schedule 9.
(d)

For each Transmission Owner, SPP shall calculate an amount

equal to the sum of hypothetical NITS payments determined in accordance with paragraph
II.B.2(c) above, if any, plus distributed Schedule 9 charges in accordance with paragraph
II.B.2(a) above, less its OEZRR as adjusted pursuant to paragraph II.B.2(b) above. If the
resulting amount is positive, the Transmission Owner shall pay the Transmission Provider
this amount. If the resulting amount is negative, the Transmission Provider shall pay the
Transmission Owner this amount.
(e)

The treatment described in paragraphs II.B.2(b)-(d) above is

premised on the assumption that the annual transmission revenue requirement of the
Transmission Owner that is the seller under a Grandfathered Agreement has not been
reduced by the amount of the charges associated with the Grandfathered Agreement. In
such circumstances, the parties to the Grandfathered Agreement will attempt to reach
agreement on a treatment of the Grandfathered Agreement that results in appropriate
compensation to the Transmission Owners in the Zone while preventing the imposition of
excessive costs on others. If the Transmission Owners in the Zone are unable to reach
agreement, either Transmission Owner may invoke the dispute resolution procedures of
the Tariff or seek a determination from FERC as to the appropriate treatment of the
Grandfathered Agreement charges.
(f)

When a Network Customer has designated Network Load

outside the Transmission Provider’s Transmission System under Section 31.3 of the Tariff,
revenues collected by the Transmission Provider for Network Integration Transmission
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Service for that portion of the Network Customer’s Network Load shall be distributed
among Transmission Owners on the same basis as the revenues collected in connection with
the provision of Point-To-Point Transmission Service.
(g)

Sections II.B.2(a) through II.B.2.(e) above do not apply to Zone

1. In the event a Transmission Owner within Zone 1 other than American Electric Power
establishes its owner-specific existing zonal annual revenue requirement (“OEZRR”) as
stated in Attachment H, that subsequent Transmission Owner will be entitled to receive
revenue, collected by the Transmission Provider from other Transmission Customers
within Zone 1 including any Transmission Owner within Zone 1 taking service under
Section 39, in an amount equal to one minus that Transmission Owner’s Load Ratio Share
of the Zone 1 total Network Load multiplied by that Transmission Owner’s OEZRR.
(h)

Nothing herein is intended to supersede or otherwise affect

rights that any Transmission Owner in a multi-owner Zone may have to seek designation
of its facilities as a separate Zone under the Tariff.

C.

Revenue Distribution -- Point-To-Point Transmission Service

Irrespective of the number of Transmission Owners in a Zone, and except to the
extent required under Section IV of this Attachment L, revenues collected by the
Transmission Provider under Schedules 7 and 8

and revenues allocated pursuant to

paragraphs II.B.1(b) and II.B 2(f). shall be distributed as follows:
(a)

If the generation source(s) and load(s) are located within a

single Zone, 50% of the revenues shall be distributed to the Transmission Owner(s) in that
Zone in proportion to their respective shares of the EZRR, and 50% of the revenues shall
be distributed to the Transmission Owner(s) in that Zone in proportion to the MW-mile
impacts incurred by each such Transmission Owner.
(b)

In all instances other than that described in the preceding

paragraph : 50% of the revenues shall be distributed to the Transmission Owners in
proportion to their respective shares of the sum of the Existing Zonal Annual Transmission
Revenue Requirements for all Zones; and 50% of the revenues shall be distributed to the
Transmission Owners whose facilities incur MW-mile impacts due to the transaction, in
proportion to the MW-mile impacts incurred by each such Transmission Owner.
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Transmission Owner’s OEZRR used for this purpose shall be that] {B. Network Integration
Transmission Service
Revenues collected by the Transmission Provider for Network Integration Transmission
Service under Schedule 9 shall be fully allocated to the Transmission Owner(s) of the host Zone.
Where a Network Customer has designated Network Load not physically interconnected with the
Transmission System under Section 31.3, revenues collected by the Transmission Provider for
Network Integration Transmission Service for that network load shall be allocated to the
Transmission Owners on the same basis as Point-To-Point Transmission Service.
C. Point-To-Point Transmission Service
Except to the extent required under Section IV of this Attachment L, revenues collected
by the Transmission Provider for Point-To-Point Transmission Service under Schedules 7 and 8
shall be allocated as follows:
1. Revenues collected by the Transmission Provider for Point-To-Point Transmission
Service under Schedules 7 and 8 associated with power transactions where the generation
source(s) and load(s) are located within the host Zone shall be fully allocated to the Transmission
Owner of that host Zone whether the generation source is controlled by the Transmission Owner
or another entity.
2. All other Transmission Provider Point-To-Point Transmission Service revenues under
Schedules 7 and 8 collected by the Transmission Provider (i.e., other than those revenues
specified in paragraph C.1)are shared between all Zones fifty percent (50%) in proportion to
Existing Zonal Annual Transmission Revenue Requirements; and fifty percent (50%) based upon
the MW-mile impacts incurred by the Transmission Owners. The Existing Zonal Annual
Transmission Revenue Requirements used shall be those} stated in Attachment H. The MWmile impacts shall be determined by use of the procedures in Attachment S.
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3. Where there are Transmission Owners within a Zone whose facilities have not been
included in the rates stated in Attachments H and T, the Transmission Provider will
further allocate the Point-to-Point Transmission Service revenues allocated to that Zone
among the Zone’s Transmission Owners on the same basis as the revenues are allocated to
the Zone. For the application of this provision each Transmission Owner shall have an
annual revenue requirement filed with the Commission.
4. For Point-To-Point revenue collected for use over transmission facilities that have been
upgraded in an aggregate study, a portion of the revenue will be credited to the
Transmission Customers. Transmission Customers who funded the upgrade will receive a
portion of the revenue equal to the response factor percentage of each reservation based on
the monthly ATC calculation. Allocation shall continue for all new requests until such time
as Transmission Customers have been fully compensated for the portion of the upgrade
over the base transmission service rate, including interest per the Commission’s regulations
at 18 C.F.R. § 35.19a(a)(2)(iii). The amount of revenue allocated to Transmission
Customers shall not exceed %100 of the revenue from Schedules 7 and 8 after the
Transmission Provider has paid for upgrades required to provide the new service. For
multiple Transmission Customers having a pro-rata allocation of an upgrade, the response
factor percentage amount shall be divided based on the pro-rata allocation until each has
been fully compensated. This allocation shall also apply to Transmission Owners direct
assignment costs who exercise their right to upgrade facilities.
III. Allocation} [III. Distribution] of Revenues from Base Plan Charges
Revenues associated with the Base Plan Zonal Annual Transmission Revenue
Requirement and with the Base Plan Region-wide Annual Transmission Revenue Requirement,
specified in Attachment H and collected by the Transmission Provider under Schedule 11 [of the
Tariff], shall be {allocated} [distributed] to Transmission Owners owning Base Plan Upgrades
in proportion to their respective annual transmission revenue requirements for Base Plan
Upgrades.
IV.

{Allocation} [Distribution] of Other Revenues
1. Revenues associated with redispatch service will be paid to the generation owner
providing the service for the Transmission Provider.
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2. Revenues associated with Reactive Supply and Voltage Control from Generation
Sources Services under Schedule 2 [of the Tariff] will be paid to the generation
owner providing the service for the Transmission Provider consistent with the
development of the charges under Schedule 2.
3. Energy or revenues received as compensation for transmission losses shall be
distributed consistent with Attachment M [to the Tariff].
4. Revenues associated with Scheduling {and}[, System Control and Dispatch Service
under Schedule 1 shall be allocated to the Transmission Owners whose Control
Area Operators within the transmission system provide such service as follows:
a.

For Firm or Non-Firm Point-To-Point Transmission Service, for through
and out transactions, Schedule 1 charge revenues shall be allocated to
Transmission Owners in proportion to the respective scheduling revenue
requirement of each such Transmission Owner associated with the
provision of this service.

b. For Customers taking Firm or Non-Firm Point-To-Point Transmission
Service, for transactions into and within the Transmission System,
Schedule 1 charge revenues shall be allocated to Transmission Owner
whose Zone is the Point of Delivery.
c. For Customers taking Network Integration Transmission Service,
Schedule 1 charge revenues shall be allocated to Transmission Owner in
whose Zone the load is located.
5. Revenues associated with] Tariff Administration Service under Schedule 1[-A] will
remain with the Transmission Provider to pay for the costs of providing that
service{(except for the revenues for related services provided by individual Control
Areas for the movement of power within, into, or out of the respective Control Areas
which shall go to the appropriate Transmission Owner(s)). }[.]
{5} [6].

Payments associated with penalties imposed under this Tariff will be used

to reduce the Transmission Provider's Scheduling and Tariff Administration Service
costs (though the non-penalty portion of the charge will go back to the Transmission
Owner(s) that actually provided the service).
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{6} [7].

Transmission Owner costs associated with System Impact and Facilities

Studies compensated by the Transmission Customer shall go to the appropriate
Transmission Owner(s).
{7} [8].

The revenues associated with Direct Assignment Facilities shall go

directly to the Transmission Owner(s) owning the facilities.
{8} [9].

The revenues associated with Network Upgrades, not otherwise provided

for in Section III of this Attachment L, shall be first assigned to the Transmission
Owner building the Network Upgrades to meet the annual revenue requirements of
such facilities. If multiple Transmission Owners construct the facilities, the revenues
shall be shared in accordance with each Transmission Owner’s respective revenue
requirement for such facilities or as otherwise agreed by the Transmission Owners.
The remaining revenues shall be allocated in accordance with Section II of this
Attachment L.
{9} [10].

The revenues associated with Wholesale Distribution Service shall go

directly to the Transmission Owner(s) owning the facilities consistent with Schedule
10.
{10} [11].

Any additional revenues received under Section 22.1 [of the Tariff] shall

be treated in the same manner as revenues under Section {II.C.} [II.B.2 for singleowner Zones, and Section II.C.2 for multi-owner Zones,] of this Attachment L.
{11} [12].

Revenues associated with Energy Imbalance Service under Schedule 4

will be paid to the providers of the service consistent with Attachment AE.
V.

Adjustments To Revenue Allocations {in the} [In The] Event {of} [Of] Customer
Non-Payments
If the amounts received by Transmission Provider for transmission and ancillary services

are insufficient to fully pay the owners of facilities or providers of such services, then the
following procedures apply:
{(1)}[(a)]

General. The Transmission Provider only shall be required to remit to the

Transmission Owners or providers of ancillary services revenues that it has received under the
SPP Tariff for transmission or ancillary services.
{(2)}[(b)]

Using Security.

The Transmission Provider shall use the financial

assurances provided by a Market Participant if necessary to cover any amounts due and owed by
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that Market Participant in accordance with the procedures specified in the Transmission
Provider’s credit policy.
{(3)}[(c)]

Reduction Of Payments. If [and] to the extent that the procedures in

paragraph (2) do not yield sufficient funds to pay in full all amounts due and owed, then the
following procedures will apply.
Any partial payment from a Market Participant, not involving a disputed amount, will be
allocated to all service types in proportion to amounts invoiced for each service type.
Such allocated amounts will be remitted to the respective service provider(s).
Subsequent customer payments will be allocated to service type in proportion to
unremitted balance amounts and remitted to the respective service provider(s). In the
event that multiple invoices remain unpaid, a Market Participant’s payment will be used
to satisfy oldest unpaid invoiced amounts first. In the event that payments are due to a
Market Participant who has an unpaid undisputed balance due for services provided or
for transmission credits pursuant to the provisions of this Tariff, such payments and
credits will be automatically reduced to satisfy such unpaid undisputed balances due.
VI.

Exception to the Provisions of Section II.C of this Attachment L
Pursuant to the Agreement of the Southwest Power Pool Transmission Owners and

Southwest Power Pool for the Upgrade for the LaCygne to Stilwell 345 kV Transmission Line
(“LaCygne-Stilwell Agreement”) submitted to the FERC on February 20, 2003 in Docket No.
ER03-547, and conditionally accepted by the Commission in an order dated April 10, 2003, the
Transmission Provider and the Transmission Owners agreed to create an exception to the
provisions of this Attachment L for the sole purpose of distributing revenues associated with
upgrades to the LaCygne to Stilwell 345 kV line, as set forth in the LaCygne-Stilwell
Agreement, which has been incorporated into this Attachment L.
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Introduction and Audit Process
The North American Electric Reliability Council (NERC) Readiness Audit Program is one of the
commitments of NERC and the industry following the blackout of August 14, 2003, to
strengthen the reliability of the North American bulk electricity supply system. The program
provides independent audits of balancing authorities, transmission operators, reliability
coordinators, and the associated planning organizations to assess their preparedness to meet the
assigned reliability responsibilities. The audit identifies strengths and areas for improvement in
an effort to promote excellence in reliability operations among these organizations.
The readiness audit teams, each led by a NERC staff member and a regional co-leader, include
industry volunteers with considerable expertise selected to provide representation from other
Interconnections, other regions, and neighboring operating entities. The teams also typically
include representatives from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) staff.
The public version of the readiness audit report contains the majority of the audit team findings.
Any discussion of findings pertaining to critical energy infrastructure will be contained in a
confidential appendix to the report that will be sent privately to the organization audited and not
included in the public version of the report.
The audit team for the Southwest Power Pool (SPP) reliability coordinator met on-site with SPP
representatives from April 19–21, 2005. This report reflects the views and recommendations of
the audit team regarding the readiness of the SPP reliability coordinator to meet its
responsibilities as a reliability coordinator.
Audit Team
Paul Reber*, NERC
Ron Ciesiel*, SPP
Robert Potts, Electric Reliability Council of Texas (ERCOT)
Allen Klassen, Westar Energy
Laura Lee, Duke Power
Eric Grant, Progress Energy Florida
Raymond Vice, Southern Company
Paul Robb, FERC
John Kueck, FERC
*Team co-leader
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Organization Profile
The Southwest Power Pool (SPP) came into being when eleven companies joined together to
serve U.S. national defense needs during World War II. After the war, members continued SPP
for the benefits of coordinated operation of their electric systems. After the Northeast Blackout
of 1965, SPP joined with twelve other entities to form the organization that became NERC. SPP
incorporated as a not-for-profit corporation in the state of Arkansas in January 1994.
SPP, which is a FERC — approved regional transmission organization (RTO), has forty-five
members that serve more than 4 million customers. It covers a geographic area of 400,000
square miles with a population of over 18 million. SPP’s current membership consists of thirteen
investor-owned utilities, seven municipal systems, eight generation and transmission
cooperatives, two state authorities, three independent power producers, and twelve power
marketers. Eighteen control areas are members of SPP. An administrative and technical staff of
139 employees facilitates the organization's activities and services.
“Working together to keep the lights on … today and in the future” is SPP’s stated mission.
Achieving and maintaining reliability through adequacy and security of the bulk electric power
system is a SPP member commitment. Major member services SPP provides include
independent reliability coordination and tariff administration, regional engineering model
development, planning and operating studies, reliability assessment studies, a
telecommunications network, and operating reserve sharing. SPP provides regional transaction
scheduling and is in the process of implementing an energy imbalance market as required by
FERC Order 2000.
SPP acts as the reliability coordinator for the following control areas:
• Central and South West Services (CSWS)
• Empire District Electric (EDE)
• Grand River Dam Authority (GRDA)
• City of Independence, Kansas (INDN)
• Board of Public Utilities, Kansas (KACY)
• Kansas City Power and Light (KCPL)
• City of Lafayette, Louisiana (LAFA)
• Louisiana Energy Power Authority (LEPA)
• Oklahoma Gas and Electric (OKGE)
• Sunflower Electric Cooperative (SECI)
• Southwestern Power Administration (SPA)
• Southwestern Public Service (SPS)
• Western Farmer’s Electric Cooperative (WFEC)
• Westar Energy (WR)
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SPP also acts as the reliability coordinator for the following transmission owners/operators:
• Midwest Energies (MIDW)
• City Utilities of Springfield, Missouri (CUS)
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Executive Summary
The audit team found that SPP is performing the functions to fulfill the reliability coordinator
responsibilities. SPP has adequate facilities, processes and procedures to perform its reliability
coordinator functions. Operator and support staff is knowledgeable and competent. SPP has a
culture that promotes reliability and is continuously improving the operation. SPP performs
reliability coordination above minimum standards.
Overall, the team found that the SPP reliability coordination is effective and efficient. SPP
calculates the transfer capability, operates the open access same time information system
(OASIS), operates the electronic energy scheduling system, and monitors the electric system
within its reliability coordination footprint. It has combined these four functions into an efficient
operation.
In questionnaires completed before the audit, the operating authorities under SPP’s reliability
coordination praised SPP. They said they have had few problems with SPP, and when problems
do occur, SPP resolves them quickly and competently. These operating authorities did not report
any problems other than energy scheduling and normal imbalance issues. SPP effectively
coordinates planning, and is active in approving transmission outages. It has an effective
automated system (OPS1) for obtaining and sharing outage schedules, and the transmission
providers are pleased with the SPP performance using it. SPP effectively monitors the system
and mitigates reliability and line-loading issues when they occur.
During its review, the audit team identified a number of potential examples of excellence and
made some positive observations. It also has recommendations that, if implemented, will help
SPP improve its already competent operation.
The audit team was pleased to discover the following potential examples of excellence:
• SPP has a fully redundant communication network and full redundant computer
systems at the primary center with redundant power feeds, mechanical systems, and
communications systems.
• SPP uses an electronic system to inform its operators of new information and policy
and procedure changes and track operator review of this information.
The audit team also made several positive observations, including:
• Complete reliability coordinator tools.
• Good backup facilities and plans to move to it.
• Adequate time provided for training, using drills, and documentation of continuing
training that includes learning assessments.
The team has several recommendations for improvement, which include:
1. Developing job task analysis and documentation for new reliability coordinators.
2. Obtaining additional critical 230 kV inter-control center protocol (ICCP) points.
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3. Developing voltage criteria and monitoring the system against it.
Potential Examples of Excellence
The audit team identified the following potential examples of excellence in its readiness audit:
1. SPP has a fully redundant communication network and full redundant computer
systems at the primary center with redundant power feeds, mechanical systems, and
communications systems. SPP is in the process of implementing a plan to put both
the primary and backup sites on a synchronous optical network (SONET) ring. SPP
has dual communications to all control areas and transmission providers. Access to
the system is protected by dual firewalls. SPP takes all necessary precautions to
protect its system. The system was well thought out and all applications were logical.
2. SPP uses a system called the OPS board to inform its operators of new information
and policy and procedure changes. SPP posts messages to the OPS board that keeps
track of when each operator had reviewed the message. The operator can also access
documents through the OPS board, which provides the operator access to the most
recent version.
Positive Observations
The audit team noted the following positive observations during the readiness audit process:
1.

The reliability coordinator has a complete set of tools and it satisfactorily views and
monitors the SPP footprint. (Section 11)

2.

SPP uses a large mapboard to show a wide-area view with voltage profiles and line
flow with pie charts to show percent loading. The SPP wide-area view includes all
of the adjacent neighboring systems. (Section 12a)

3.

SPP has a good training program that excels in the following areas (Section 6):
a. Good documentation
b. Adequate scheduled time
c. One shift every six weeks reserved for training during nonpeak periods
(the “W” shift)
d. Dedicated six week spring and fall training periods

4.

SPP has a good cyber security policy and plan that has been implemented well.
(Section 18)

5.

SPP has a good backup control center and plan to move to it. The plan will be
further enhanced with the completion of the new facility. (Section 10)
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6.

The operators praised the operations and energy management systems (EMS)
engineering support staff, and the team found that SPP supplied a good system with
good support. (Section 19)

7.

The operations engineering staff provides appropriate and timely operationsplanning analyses to support the reliability coordinator, and is on call twenty-four
hours a day, seven days a week. (Section 12)

8.

SPP has good near-term outage coordination with the OPS1 outage sharing system.
This is enhanced by SPP approving all outages and requiring sufficient advanced
notice. (Section 9)

9.

SPP maximizes the reliability and efficiency of the reliability operation by
calculating the transfer capabilities, running the OASIS, and monitoring the system.
(Section 8, 13)

10.

The EMS displays are well laid out and easy for the operators to understand and
use. (Section 11)

11.

SPP has a logical method for determining interconnection reliability operating
limits (IROLs) and has used the method to define them for operations. (Section 8,
14)

12.

SPP uses operator assessments to verify that they have learned and understood the
material in many of their training courses. These assessments are used in the two
planned training periods for each operator. (Section 6)

13.

SPP compares the predicted flows of reliability studies against actual flows to
verify its planning model. (Section 8)

14.

Operator authority is well documented and displayed in the control room. (Section
3)

15.

All operator shift positions are NERC-certified. (Section 5)

16.

SPP has agreements in place that establish its authority to direct balancing
authorities and transmission providers within its reliability coordination footprint.
(Section 1)

Recommendations
The audit team recommends that SPP take the following actions to address issues discovered
during the audit process:
1.

Continue to develop regional voltage criteria, develop voltage schedules against the
criteria, and monitor the system against those schedules. (Section 8, 12d)

-6-

INDEPENDENT MARKET MONITOR REPORT
SPP BOARD OF DIRECTORS/MEMBER COMMITTEE MEETING
Tulsa, OK
July 26, 2005

I.

LOOKING BACK
A. 2004 State of the Market Report filed May 31, 2005
B. Two Testimonies filed in support of SPP EIS Market Tariff revisions on June
15, 2005
1. Quick overview of relevant interventions
C. Progress on Monitoring System development
D. Participated in/assisted with market design
E. Other Activities
1. MO-KN-OK Agreement comments at FERC

II.

LOOKING FORWARD
A. Compliance Committee extended IMM Services Agreement through
December 31, 2005 and approved priorities
1.
2.
3.
4.
5.
6.

Win FERC Approval
Promote EIS Market start
Assess and monitor transmission market power
Participate in market design
Maintain relationships and fulfill reporting requirements
Other services to the Board

BOSTON PACIFIC COMPANY, INC.

STRATEGIC
PLANNING
COMMITTEE
REPORT

Richard Spring - Chair
Board of Directors Meeting
Doubletree Tulsa, OK
July 26, 2005
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Strategic Planning
Committee
c

Ricky Bittle

c

David Christiano

c

Michael Desselle

c

Jim Eckelberger

c

Josh Martin

c

Mike Palmer

c

Steve Parr

c

Mel Perkins

c

Harry Skilton

c

Jim Stanton
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Strategic Planning
Committee
c

May 12 – 13, 2005 Planning Retreat
♦

Well attended with representatives from the RSC,
FERC, DOE, SPP Independent Board members.

♦

Revision to the 2003 plan.

♦

Plan horizon is the next 1 – 3 years.

♦

Discussed
\

Industry Trends and Market Development

\

Transmission Expansion and Regional Planning

\

Administrative Processes

\

Membership Attraction and Retention
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Strategic Planning
Committee
c

July 14, 2005 – Tulsa, OK
♦

Fee Waiver

♦

Strategic Plan 2005

♦

Entergy ICT

♦

North Carolina LSE

♦

Regulatory Update

♦

Organization Effectiveness
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Strategic Planning
Committee
c

Fee Waiver
♦

FERC directed SPP to amend By-Laws
and Membership Agreement to provide
for a waiver process of fees.

♦

Rather than a process to request a
waiver, the SPC is recommending
language waiving withdrawal obligations
for:
\ Large

retail members

\ Small

retail members

\ Alternative
\ Public

power members

interest members
4

Strategic Planning
Committee
c

Strategic Plan 2005
♦

Market Development
\

Continue implementation of EIS

\

Continue development of seams agreements

\

Development of proposals for others markets

♦

Transmission Expansion

♦

Administrative Processes

♦

Retention and Addition of Members

\

\

\

♦

Continue current efforts with RSC
More Director involvement with Committees and Members
Look for additional products and services of value to
Market participants

Enhanced Regional Planning
\

SPP should look for opportunities to be the
leader/facilitator/coordinator of regional solutions
4
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Strategic Plan
July 26, 2005

Developed by the
Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Strategic Planning Committee

SPP Strategic Plan____________________________________________________________

Background
SPP developed a Strategic Plan in 2003. As of early 2005, virtually all components of that plan
had been achieved, with the remainder in process. The Strategic Planning Committee held a
retreat May 12-13, 2005 for purposes of developing a new plan for SPP. Included in the planning
retreat were members of the committee, the Board of Directors, representatives from the
Regional State Committee, and SPP executive staff.

Strategic Planning Committee
The Strategic Planning Committee is comprised of a diverse group of representatives from the
SPP membership and the Board of Directors:
Richard Spring, Chair
Sr. VP, Transmission
Kansas City Power & Light

Steve Parr
Exec VP and CEO
Kansas Electric Power Cooperative

Ricky Bittle
Vice President
Arkansas Electric Cooperative Corporation

Mel Perkins
VP, Transmission
OG+E Electric Services

David Christiano
Manager, System Planning
City Utilities of Springfield

Jim Stanton
Director, Market Design
Calpine Energy Services

Michael Desselle
Director Public Policy
American Electric Power

Jim Eckelberger
Chairman, SPP Board of Directors
Harry Skilton
Vice Chair, SPP Board of Directors

Mike Palmer
VP, Commercial Operations
The Empire District Electric Company

Josh Martin
SPP Board of Directors
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Strategic Planning Process
The strategic planning process utilized by the SPC was similar in nature to any planning process
that answers three basic questions: Where are we? Where do we want to go? How do we get
there? The group sought to develop goals for SPP to move forward, but doing so while retaining
SPP’s uniqueness in the industry and continuing to provide benefit to its members.

Where are we?
This data-gathering phase produced an understanding of where the organization is in relation to
its environment with respect to both industry structure and SPP’s relative position. The SPC
began with a brief overview of SPP’s organizational structure, governance, staffing and finances.
This phase also included a review of the regulatory environments to which SPP members are
subject at both the state and federal levels. This phase concluded with a reaffirmation of the
organization’s values - the principles that have driven the decision-making processes of the
organization:
• Relationship Based
• Member Driven
• Independence through Diversity
• Reliability and Economic/Equity Issues Inseparable
• Evolution, Not Revolution

Where do we want to go?
The SPC is recommending actions specific to five areas of regional needs:
1. Markets Development
2. Transmission Expansion
3. Administrative Processes
4. Retention and Expansion of Participants
5. Enhanced Regional Planning

How do we get there?
The SPC recommends that, in addition to its work, SPP organizational groups assist in further
investigation of certain detailed issues to make appropriate recommendations through SPP
organizational structure, culminating with approval of the Board of Directors and regulatory
agencies.
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Current Industry Environment
The electric power system continues to be characterized as vital, while strides are being made to
calm turbulence, remove uncertainty, and minimize risk by establishing and stabilizing market
rules. Many members are in a ‘back to the basics’ mode of focusing on reliability and
cost/performance improvement, which is resulting in improved financial performance by many
Members and market participants. Stakeholders are realizing that an aging infrastructure and a
lack of system reliability go hand in hand, and that if the infrastructure is not upgraded to provide
for growth as well as reliability, remaining critical issues are of no consequence. Strides are
being made toward increased regulatory certainty with a cultural change focusing on investment
in an updated infrastructure and new, more efficient and affordable ways to “keep the lights on.”
Comprehensive energy legislation has remained on the drawing board for more than five years.
The current draft promotes reliability through mandatory compliance with standards and regional
coordination on energy policy and infrastructure issues. However, many are skeptical that this
legislation will resolve the critical issues facing the nation and may not become law in the near
future. Despite the lack of legislation, FERC continues to push for open transmission access to
create more vibrant regional wholesale energy markets, while participation in Regional
Transmission Organizations by utilities continues to be voluntary.
In 2004, U.S. electricity consumers spent more than $1 billion financing the operation of six
ISO/RTOs with standardized markets. These organizations’ costs more than doubled since 2001
as their markets were implemented, and many now argue that the costs outweighs the benefits.
However, most of this criticism originates in non-RTO portions of the nation, which arguably
would not be able to operate reliably in the highly interconnected/interdependent network but for
the coordination afforded by the very organizations in which they choose not to participate.
SPP’s Regional State Committee sponsored an independent cost/benefit study to quantify the
benefits of SPP participation by its state jurisdictional utilities. The implementation of an energy
imbalance service market in the SPP footprint is estimated to yield $1.2 billion in savings to the
Eastern Interconnect over a ten-year period, with over half of that directly benefiting the region
(some interpret the study results to reflect an even greater benefit to the region). Transmission
Owners in the SPP region are expected to realize benefits of over $370 million, net of their costs
to implement the market. 1
SPP provides services using the transmission systems of its members. SPP’s Members cover a
400,000 square mile region over all or part of eight states containing 18 million people (this
region is also known as SPP’s “footprint”). SPP currently has 45 members, and its footprint
includes seventeen separate control areas that individually are responsible for matching
electricity supply and demand within their service areas. The peak electric demand in the SPP
footprint in 2004 was 38,584 MW. This 2004 peak demand was 1% higher than in 2003. Electric
energy use in 2004 was 193 million MWh. At the end of 2004, the total generating capacity in
SPP was 55,036 MW. In comparison to the peak demand of 38,584 MW during 2004, SPP has a
1

Source: Charles River Associates Study
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significant resource margin of 16, 452 MW or 43%. Since 2000, there has been a surge in
construction of new natural gas-fired generating plants. Of the total generating capacity in SPP
about 54% is gas-fired; approximately 91% of capacity in SPP is either coal- or gas-fired. 2
SPP’s highest level of connectivity with a surrounding region is with the Southeast Electric
Reliability Council (SERC). Most of SPP’s link to SERC is with Entergy and Associated Electric
Cooperative, Inc. (AECI, a non-jurisdictional G&T cooperative) with approximately
40,000MVA in total tie line capability. However, over half of SPP’s connectivity with Entergy is
due to transmission lines connecting the Entergy control area in SERC and three control areas in
SPP that are all relatively isolated from the rest of the SPP system. Direct transmission
connectivity between SPP and two surrounding regions (the Midwest Reliability Organization
(MRO) and the Mid-America Interconnected Network, Inc. (MAIN) is significantly less then
SPP’s direct connectivity with SERC. SPP shares five high voltage DC ties with the Western
Electricity Coordinating Council (WECC) and the Electric Reliability Council of Texas
(ERCOT). These DC ties give 600 MW of transfer capability with WECC and 820 MW with
ERCOT. 3
Overall levels of TLR curtailments have increased in SPP during the past few years. This
increase is due to an increase in non-firm service curtailment. Firm service curtailments were
very minor compared to non-firm service curtailment and actually decreased in 2004 as
compared to the prior two years. Major areas or sub-regions of congestion during 2004 were
westward and southward out of eastern Kansas and southward at the eastern portion of the border
between Oklahoma and Texas along the edge of the ERCOT region. The locations of congestion
have also changed from year-to-year during the period from 2001 to 2004 due to the effect of
transmission upgrades designed to solve existing congestion in the SPP region. 4
Average on-peak prices in SPP increased by 21% from 2001 to 2004 (from $37.45/MWh in 2001
to $45.20/MWh in 2004.) Average off-peak prices increased by 28% (from $16.09/MWh in 2001
to $20.58/MWh in 2004.) In the 2001 to 2004 period, there were few significant price spikes.
Prices rose above $100/MWh on only two occasions. Rising natural gas prices are a driving force
in the increase of on-peak electricity prices in the current bilateral electricity market in the SPP
footprint. Average daily natural gas prices for pricing points in SPP increased by 41% from 2001
to 2004. Changes in electricity prices in SPP also are highly correlated with those in surrounding
regions. 5
SPP has active transmission expansion and generation interconnection processes in place to
encourage increases in electricity supply availability. Under SPP’s current transmission
expansion plan, approximately $564 million will be invested in increasing the reliability of the
transmission system in SPP between 2004 and 2010. In addition, as of the end of 2004, nearly
$400 million in economic expansion projects were also being studied by SPP. SPP’s generation
2

Source: SPP State of the Market Report, Boston Pacific
Source: SPP State of the Market Report, Boston Pacific
4
Source: SPP State of the Market Report, Boston Pacific
5
Source: SPP State of the Market Report, Boston Pacific
3
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interconnection queue contains approximately 7,700 MW of proposed projects. Over half of this
capacity is for new wind facilities located primarily in western SPP. The rest of the capacity is
for coal and natural gas fired units mostly located in eastern SPP, particularly in eastern Kansas
and western Missouri. If all of these active projects are built, generating capacity in SPP could
increase by up to 14%. 6
In 2003, the Board of Directors approved a strategic plan that included five primary areas of
focus:
1. active state involvement;
2. compliance with FERC Order 2000;
3. SPP’s regional transmission service tariff;
4. SPP administrative processes; and
5. SPP’s regional reliability council responsibilities.
To date SPP has achieved virtually all the goals established in this plan. The Regional State
Committee has become an integral part of SPP’s organizational process. SPP has implemented
many revisions to its tariff and the processes therein, resulting in enhanced services to customers,
particularly with respect to SPP’s study and interconnection queues. SPP’s organizational
structure has been streamlined to create efficiencies, and the transition to a fully independent
Board of Directors has been successful in its first year. SPP has continued to assert that
reliability and economic issues can and should be managed within one organization. Members
and customers continue to realize the benefits of this operational approach. Finally, SPP was
recognized as a Regional Transmission Organization. Short of implementation of the energy
imbalance market, SPP is Order 2000 compliant.

6

Source: SPP State of the Market Report, Boston Pacific
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The Strategic Plan
MARKETS DEVELOPMENT
SPP should continue with the implementation of an Energy Imbalance Market for the region.
Additional market development should be considered, but only following cost/benefit studies
and/or an assessment of customers as to their needs for these additional services. In contrast to
the 2003 Strategic Plan, SPP will consider ancillary services markets in advance of market-based
congestion management, as these markets are of most interest to customers and stand to provide
more immediate benefits. SPP will defer any transition to financial transmission rights (FTRs)
until otherwise recommended by the RSC, as is its responsibility per the SPP Bylaws. SPP must
also continuously monitor and manage the impact of its various seams/coordination agreements
on its operations.
The following steps should be taken:
1. Implementation of the Energy Imbalance Market with regular status reports provided to
and progress monitored by the Markets and Operations Policy Committee (MOPC), the
Regional State Committee (RSC) and the SPC.
2. Continued attention by staff to seams/coordination agreements and their impacts, with
appropriate reporting to the stakeholder committees.
3. Development of a proposal for the development and implementation of other market
services, starting with ancillary services markets, as assigned by the MOPC.

TRANSMISSION EXPANSION
Additional transmission infrastructure is needed across the country, including in the SPP region.
The RSC developed and FERC has approved a plan for the funding of transmission expansion
that is beneficial to the region for reliability. Evaluation of a funding mechanism for those
upgrades that provide only economic benefits to the region is underway. SPP also received
approval for an experimental program allowing participants to pre-pay for minor upgrades
specifically benefiting short-term transmission transactions.
The following steps should be taken:
1. Follow-through on the approved transmission expansion funding plan for upgrades
meeting reliability needs.
2. Continue development by the RSC, and SPP stakeholder committees as appropriate, of a
funding plan for transmission expansion for upgrades providing only economic benefits
to the region.
3. Evaluate and continue, if deemed appropriate, on a permanent basis the FERC-approved
experimental pre-payment program for upgrades for short-term transmission service.
4. Review of all these new funding plans to assure that no “unintended consequences” arise,
and if so, ensure that they are presented for consideration and mitigation.

5
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ADMINISTRATIVE PROCESSES
SPP’s administrative processes should continue to be reviewed and adjusted to assure efficiency
in the stakeholder process/organizational group structure including interaction with the RSC and
its working groups. Included in this review is the consideration of additional Board of
Directors/Members Committee meetings on an as needed and practical basis.
The following steps should be taken:
1. SPP staff should encourage Director involvement in organizational group meetings to
enhance understanding of issues, process, and diverse positions.
2. SPP staff and members should coordinate site visits for Directors to enhance industry and
organizational knowledge.
3. Two additional Board of Directors/Member Committee meetings should be added
annually focused on education and administrative process rather than business/action
items.

RETENTION AND ADDITION OF PARTICIPANTS
SPP should focus on the retention of existing Members and addition of new and/or former
participants in the organization, including members, customers, and state regulatory
representatives. This will allow the organization to grow and develop as a service provider and
strong leader for the region.
The following steps should be taken:
1. SPP Staff should pursue an analysis to improve understanding of the Charles River
Associates cost/benefit study regarding the benefits of utilities participating in SPP for
purposes of mitigating any perceived negative results.
2. SPP should consider and implement, as appropriate, waiver of withdrawal obligation
fees for Large Retail Customer Members, Small Retail Customer Members, and Public
Interest/Alternative Power Members so long as such a Member is not a Market
Participant as defined in the SPP OATT.
3. SPP Staff should continue to develop customer services and programs for members and
customers, such as reserve sharing, reliability coordination, and transmission
coordination.
4. SPP Staff should place a priority on working with FERC for revision of the application of
its annual fee, mitigating unfair impacts to RTOs.

ENHANCED REGIONAL PLANNING
SPP is in a unique position as a regional transmission and reliability organization. It can serve as
a conduit for various issues and positions that impact localities, states, the region, and national
matters. Given the success with the development of regional transmission planning, SPP should
consider other ways in which it can be a leader/facilitator/coordinator of regional solutions for
regional issues, including generation planning, economic impacts of alternative energy sources
and its development, and integrated resource planning.
6
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The following steps should be taken:
1. SPP staff will develop a white paper for the SPC addressing the expansion of its portfolio
of services and the impact on the organization to do so.
2. SPP will host a technical conference for educational purposes, to coordinate/facilitate
discussion of various issues of interest in the region.
3. SPP staff and the SPC will support the RSC’s efforts to evaluate the need for and
develop, when appropriate, a practical integrated resource solution for the region.

LONG-RANGE PLANNING
The Strategic Planning Committee will approach strategic planning with a more long-term and
proactive orientation in its upcoming meetings.

Recommendation
The Strategic Planning Committee recommends that the SPP Board of Directors adopt the
proposed Strategic Plan included in this report, and authorize the delegation of responsibilities to
SPP organizational groups also contained herein under the coordination oversight of the SPC and
MOPC.
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors/Members Committee
July 26, 2005
2005 Strategic Plan

Organizational Roster
The following members represent the Strategic Planning Committee:
KCP&L
AECC
City Utilities of Springfield
AEP
Director
Director
Empire District
KEPCo
OG+E
Director
Calpine
SPP

Richard Spring, Chair
Ricky Bittle
David Christiano
Michael Desselle
Jim Eckelberger
Josh Martin
Mike Palmer
Steve Parr
Mel Perkins
Harry Skilton
Jim Stanton
Stacy Duckett

Others participating included:
Phyllis Bernard (Director); Sandra Hochstetter, Mary Cochran, Richard House (APSC); Denise Bode
(OCC); Mike Peters (KCC); Adrianne Brandt (PUCT); David Fleischaker (Sec’y of Energy, OK); Craig
Zingman (DOE); Tony Ingram (FERC); Lance Boyd (Aquila)
Background
The SPP Board of Directors approved a strategic plan for the company in 2001. Virtually all of the goals
established in that plan have been accomplished, with the remaining few well underway. A news strategic
plan is needed for SPP.

Analysis
The Strategic Planning Committee hosted a retreat in May for purposes of developing a new strategic
plan for SPP. Participants included members of the committee, representatives from the Regional State
Committee, senior staff, and other interested parties. The resulting plan reflects the consensus of those
participating in the process. The plan encompasses many opportunities for SPP in the next 1-3 years.

Recommendation
The Strategic Planning Committee recommends that the SPP Board of Directors adopt the proposed
Strategic Plan included in this report, and authorize the delegation of responsibilities to SPP
organizational groups also contained herein under the coordination oversight of the SPC and MOPC.

Approved:

Strategic Planning Committee

Action Requested:

Approval

July 14, 2005

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE
Recommendation to the Board of Directors/Members Committee
July 26, 2005
Fee Waiver for Certain Membership Sectors

Organizational Roster
The following members represent the Strategic Planning Committee:
Richard Spring, Chair
Ricky Bittle
David Christiano
Michael Desselle
Jim Eckelberger
Josh Martin
Mike Palmer
Steve Parr
Mel Perkins
Harry Skilton
Jim Stanton
Stacy Duckett

KCP&L
AECC
City Utilities of Springfield
AEP
Director
Director
Empire District
KepCO
OG+E
Director
Calpine
SPP

Background
In an order issued February 11, the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (the Commission) directed
SPP to further amend its Bylaws and Membership Agreement to include provisions for certain classes of
membership to request a waiver of fees associated with membership in SPP, specifically public interest
groups, including large and small retail customer members.
Analysis
In its July 2 Order, the Commission rejected an intervenor’s argument that “end-users” should be exempt
from certain membership fees or requirements, finding that it would be unfair and discriminatory to do so.
However, upon further consideration, the Commission directed that SPP revise its governing documents
to provide for a process for prospective members to request fee waivers.
The Strategic Planning Committee considered this issue, both in terms of the order and the impact that
the magnitude of the withdrawal obligations (currently $340,000 for these sectors) may be having on new
membership. The SPC recommends that rather than a process to request waivers, SPP amend the
Bylaws and Membership Agreement to explicitly waive certain provisions of the withdrawal obligation
related to long-term commitments and future interest for large retail customer Members, small retail
customer Members, and alternative power/public interest Members so long as the entity is not a market
participant. Annual membership fees and quarterly assessments would remain an obligation for these
sectors of membership (approximately $10,000 in 2005).
In addition, an intervenor in this docket has asked for clarification as to whether members with “Affiliate
Relationships” as defined in the Bylaws would be considered separate members for purposes of applying
the waiver. Currently, the affiliate relationship is only relevant when voting on candidates for the Board of
Directors or the Members Committee, in which case only one vote is counted. Otherwise, the affiliates are
treated as separate members. The Membership Agreement does not refer to the affiliate relationship.

Recommendation
Approval of the Bylaws and Membership Agreement amendments as presented to waive those portions
of the withdrawal obligation related to long-term commitments and future interest for large retail customer
Members, small retail customer Members, and alternative power/public interest Members so long as the
entity is not a market participant, effective July 26.
Affirmation that the membership of entities with affiliate relationships as defined in the SPP Bylaws will be
considered separate for purposes of eligibility for the fee waiver.
Approved:

Strategic Planning Committee

Action Requested:

Approval

July 14, 2005
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July 2005

REVISIONS PROPOSED RE: FEE WAIVER

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
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1.0

DEFINITIONS

1.5a

Existing Obligations

Certain financial obligations as defined in Section 8.7.1 of these Bylaws.

8.0

FISCAL ADMINISTRATION

8.2

Annual Membership Fee

All SPP Members will be subject to an annual membership fee to recover the costs
incurred by SPP related to maintaining reliability criteria and related compliance. Members
without “Net Energy for Load” within SPP will pay an annual membership fee of $6,000, or
other amount established by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall determine the
annual membership fee for the upcoming year in advance of the last meeting of Members in a
calendar year. Those Members serving load will be subject to a fee based on their annual Net
Energy for Load within SPP for the preceding year. Membership fees are not subject to refund.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Bylaws

8.3

NERC Assessment

The NERC assessment is to be a direct pass-through and will be charged to Members per
the assessment formula outlined below at the time SPP is invoiced by NERC:
A = [0.25(1/N) + 0.75(B/C)] X
Where: A =

8.4

Member’s share of NERC assessment

N=

Total number of Members

B=

The Member's previous year Net Energy for Load within SPP

C=

Total of factor B for all Members

X=

Actual NERC assessment to SPP

Monthly Assessments

SPP will assess certain Members described herein on a monthly basis all costs not
otherwise collected. Costs recovered under the assessment will include but are not limited to all
operating costs, financing costs, debt repayment, and capital expenditures associated with the
performance of SPP’s functions as assigned by the Board of Directors. Significant among these
are costs associated with regional reliability coordination and the provision of transmission
service. SPP shall determine the assessment rate based on its annual budgeted net expenditures
divided by estimated annual Schedule 1 billing units for service sold under SPP’s OATT and
Member load eligible to take, but not taking, Network Integration Transmission Service under
SPP’s OATT. The Board of Directors may review the assumptions used in determining the
assessment rate at any time and may adjust the assessment rate appropriately should conditions
warrant. Each load-serving Member shall then be assessed the monthly assessment rate applied
to its load eligible to take Network Integration Transmission Service under the SPP OATT.
Further, each load-serving Member shall receive a credit against the monthly assessment for that
month’s Schedule 1 fees paid for Network Integration Transmission Service and for Point-toPoint Transmission Service that had a delivery point within the SPP region, under the SPP
OATT.
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8.7

Financial Obligation of Withdrawing Members
8.7.1

Existing Obligations

“Existing Obligations” are the following:
a. Member’s unpaid annual membership fee.
b. Member’s unpaid dues, assessments, and other amounts charged under
Section 3.8 or otherwise under the Bylaws, plus the Member’s share of
costs SPP customarily includes in such dues, assessments or other
charges, but which as of the Termination Date SPP had not included in
such dues, assessments or other charges.
c. Member’s share (computed in accordance with the Bylaws) of the entire
principal amounts of all SPP Financial Obligations outstanding as of the
Termination Date. “Financial Obligations” are all long-term (in excess of
six (6) months) financial obligations of SPP, including but not limited to
the following:
i.

debts under all loans, loan agreements, borrowings, promissory
notes, bonds, and credit lines, under which SPP is obligated,
including principal and interest;

ii.

all payment obligations under equipment leases, financing
leases, capital leases, real estate and office space leases,
consulting contracts, and contracts for outsourced services;

iii.

any unfunded liabilities of any SPP employee pension funds,
whether or not liquidated or demanded; and

iv.

the general and administrative overhead of SPP for a period of
three (3) months.

d. Any costs, expenses or liabilities incurred by SPP directly due to the
Termination, regardless of when incurred or payable, and including
without limitation prepayment premiums or penalties arising under SPP
Financial Obligations.
e. Member’s share (computed in accordance with the Bylaws) of all interest
that will become due for payment with respect to all interest bearing
Financial Obligations after the Termination Date and until the maturity of

Southwest Power Pool
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all Financial Obligations in accordance with their respective terms
(“Future Interest”). In the event that a Financial Obligation carries a
variable interest rate, the interest rate in effect at the Termination Date
shall be used to calculate the applicable Future Interest. In determining
the Member’s share of Future Interest, SPP shall take into account any
reduction of Financial Obligations due to mitigation under this Section.
The foregoing notwithstanding, the obligations and amounts under Section
8.7.1(c) and (e) shall not be Existing Obligations with respect to the following
classes of members: (w) alternative energy members (organizations that advocate
for producers of alternative energy and that are not themselves market participants
as defined in the SPP Tariff); (x) large retail customer members (non-residential
end-use customers with individual or aggregated loads of 1 MW or more and that
are not themselves market participants as defined in the SPP Tariff); (y) public
interest members (public interest organizations such as consumer advocates,
environmental groups or citizen participation groups, and that are not themselves
market participants as defined in the SPP Tariff); and (z) small retail customer
members (residential or other customers with individual or aggregated loads of
less than 1 MW and that are not themselves market participants as defined in the
SPP Tariff). In its reasonable discretion and where a prospective or current
member qualifies for more than one class, from time to time and upon a
prospective or current member’s request, SPP shall designate the members which
fall into the foregoing classes.

8.7.2 Computation of a Member’s Existing Obligations
For purposes of computing the Existing Obligations “existing obligations” of any
withdrawing or terminated Member in accordance with the Membership Agreement, such
“Member’s share” is a percentage calculated as follows:
A = 100 [0.25(1/N) + 0.75(B/C)]
Where:
A=

Member’s share (expressed as a percentage)
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N = Total number of Members, from which is subtracted the total
number of Members which are: (w) alternative energy members
(organizations that advocate for producers of alternative energy and that
are not themselves market participants as defined in the SPP Tariff); (x)
large retail customer members (non-residential end-use customers with
individual or aggregated loads of 1 MW or more and that are not
themselves market participants as defined in the SPP Tariff); (y) public
interest members (public interest organizations such as consumer
advocates, environmental groups or citizen participation groups, and that
are not themselves market participants as defined in the SPP Tariff); and
(z) small retail customer members (residential or other customers with
individual or aggregated loads of less than 1 MW and that are not
themselves market participants as defined in the SPP Tariff), as designated
by SPP.
B=

The Member's previous year Net Energy for Load within SPP

C=

Total of factor B for all Members

The Finance Committee shall have the discretion to reduce the Existing Obligations
“existing obligations” of any withdrawing or terminated Member, to reflect any SPP costs or
expenses that may be mitigated in connection with such Member’s withdrawal or termination.

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Bylaws

11.0

EFFECTIVE DATE AND TRANSITION PROVISIONS
These Bylaws shall become effective July 27, 2004July 26, 2005 and remain in force

thereafter as may be amended. These Bylaws hereby cancel and supersede SPP Bylaws dated
May 1, 2004April 26, 2005; provided, that these Bylaws do not relieve any Member from any
financial obligation incurred thereunder.

Binding obligations entered into by authority of

Officers or the Board of Directors under these Bylaws are hereby assumed and confirmed as
obligations of SPP under these Bylaws.

REVISIONS PROPOSED RE: FEE WAIVER
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Membership Agreement
July 2005

4.0

TERMINATION OF MEMBERSHIP
This Section states the terms and conditions applicable to any Termination or Partial

Termination.
4.3 Obligations Upon Termination

4.3.2

Obligation to Pay Current and Existing Obligations

(a)
In the event of a Termination or Partial Termination, the Member shall pay all
obligations incurred under this Agreement at any time prior to the Termination Date. In addition,
in order for SPP to recover a portion of certain debts and costs payable by SPP after the
Termination Date as further specified in this Agreement, the Member shall pay all Existing
Obligations (as defined herein) calculated as of the Termination Date. SPP shall make reasonable
efforts to mitigate the Member’s Existing Obligations by commercially reasonable actions (such
as prepayment of allocable debt, or investment of part or all of the Member’s payment in an
interest-bearing instrument) and, in its discretion, may further discount the Member’s Existing
Obligations to reflect any additional mitigation SPP determines it will achieve.
(b)
“Existing Obligations” are all of the following and other obligations as may be
set forth in the Bylaws from time to time:
i. Member’s unpaid annual membership fee,
ii. Member’s unpaid dues, assessments, and other amounts charged under Section 3.8 or
otherwise under the Bylaws, plus the Member’s share of costs SPP customarily
includes in such dues, assessments or other charges, but which as of the Termination
Date SPP had not included in such dues, assessments or other charges.
iii. Member’s share (computed in accordance with the Bylaws) of the entire principal
amounts of all SPP Financial Obligations outstanding as of the Termination Date.
“Financial Obligations” are all long-term (in excess of six (6) months) financial
obligations of SPP, including but not limited to the following:
a.
debts under all loans, loan agreements, borrowings, promissory notes,
bonds, and credit lines, under which SPP is obligated, including principal
and interest;
b.
all payment obligations under equipment leases, financing leases, capital
leases, real estate and office space leases, consulting contracts, and
contracts for outsourced services;
c.
any unfunded liabilities of any SPP employee pension funds, whether or
not liquidated or demanded; and
d.
the general and administrative overhead of SPP for a period of three (3)
months.
iv. Any costs, expenses or liabilities incurred by SPP directly due to the Termination,
regardless of when incurred or payable, and including without limitation prepayment
premiums or penalties arising under SPP Financial Obligations.
v. Member’s share (computed in accordance with the Bylaws) of all interest that will
become due for payment with respect to all interest bearing Financial Obligations
after the Termination Date and until the maturity of all Financial Obligations in
accordance with their respective terms (“Future Interest”). In the event that a

Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Membership Agreement
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Financial Obligation carries a variable interest rate, the interest rate in effect at the
Termination Date shall be used to calculate the applicable Future Interest. In
determining the Member’s share of Future Interest, SPP shall take into account any
reduction of Financial Obligations due to mitigation under this Section.
The foregoing notwithstanding, the obligations and amounts under Section 4.2(b)(iii) and (v)
shall not be Existing Obligations with respect to the following classes of members: (w) alternative
energy members (organizations that advocate for producers of alternative energy and that are not
themselves market participants as defined in the SPP Tariff); (x) large retail customer
members (non-residential end-use customers with individual or aggregated loads of 1 MW or
more that are not themselves market participants as defined in the SPP Tariff); (y) public
interest members (public interest organizations such as consumer advocates, environmental
groups or citizen participation groups, that are not themselves market participants as defined in
the SPP Tariff); and (z) small retail customer members (residential or other customers with
individual or aggregated loads of less than 1 MW and that are not themselves market
participants as defined in the SPP Tariff). In its reasonable discretion and where a prospective
or current member qualifies for more than one class, from time to time and upon a prospective or
current member’s request, SPP shall designate the members which fall into the foregoing classes.
(c)
In the event of a Partial Termination, Existing Obligations shall first be
calculated as though a Termination occurred, and the Member shall pay a percentage thereof as
Existing Obligations due to the Partial Termination. Such percentage shall be the percentage
reduction of the Net Energy for Load Ratio applicable to the Member resulting from the Partial
Termination

(d)
SPP shall invoice Member for Existing Obligations within one month after the
Termination Date, except that delay by SPP in issuing the invoice shall not diminish Member’s
obligation to make timely payment. The invoice shall be due and payable no later than five (5)
business days after issuance. Any amounts owed by SPP to the Member shall, solely at SPP’s
election and in its discretion, be offset against the Member’s Existing Obligations or paid to the
Member concurrently with issuance of the invoice.
(e)
The Member acknowledges and agrees that Existing Obligations include amounts
that SPP expects to accrue and that will become payable by SPP following the Member’s
Termination, and that no part of a payment of Existing Obligations shall be refundable to the
Member under any circumstances, including (except as provided in this Section with respect to
mitigation) any reduction of the Financial Obligations. Any disagreement as to the calculation of
Existing Obligations shall be resolved in accordance with the dispute resolution procedures in the
Bylaws.

SPP Presentation

Entergy ICT
Proposal
Bruce Rew
Director Engineering
July 26, 2005
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1

Entergy ICT Development
c

In 2004 Entergy proposed
formation of an Independent
Coordinator of Transmission
(ICT)

c

After stakeholder and regulatory
feedback, Entergy proposed an
enhanced ICT adding additional
functions
3

ICT Declaratory Order
c

FERC assumed SPP would be
selected as the ICT; SPP
complies with independence

c

ICT was approved by FERC as
a 2-year experiment that begins
upon effective date of Section
205 filing

c

On May 27 Entergy made a
Section 205 filing forming ICT
4

2

ICT Primary Functions
c

Reliability Coordinator

c

Tariff Administrator

c

Calculation of AFCs

c

Transmission Planning

c

Weekly Procurement Process

5

ICT Business Plan
c
c
c

c
c
c

This will be a fair deal for all parties
Regional development plans can be
optimized
SPP will be compensated for costs
associated with any termination of its
role as the ICT
SPP will gain market experience through
its WPP role
Reliability coordination will be enhanced
SPC endorsed plan on July 14
6

3

ICT Implementation
c

Execute the Master Services
Agreement to begin limited work
on August 1

c

After receipt of Section 205
Order and agreement from
Entergy, significant development
would begin about November 1

c

When ready we would execute
the ICT agreement early in 2006
7

Staff Recommendation
c

Staff recommends that the
Entergy ICT Business Plan
proposal be approved in
substantially the form presented,
and that the officers of SPP be
granted the authority to execute
the documents necessary to
develop this project.
8

4

Contact SPP

Bruce Rew
brew@spp.org

http://www.spp.org
General Inquiries: 501-614-3200
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Staff Recommendation to the Board of Directors/Members Committee
July 26, 2005
Entergy ICT Proposal

Background
Entergy has received approval from the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission to pursue a contract
relationship with a third party to serve as an independent coordinator of transmission (ICT). The Entergy
ICT proposal will be initiated as a two-year experiment after which the Commission will assess the results.
State and federal regulators are very supportive of this experiment.
Generally, the ICT is to (a) provide oversight over the operations of the Entergy transmission system; (b)
provide a new process for assigning cost responsibility for transmission upgrades; and (c) implement a
new Weekly Procurement Process (WPP).
SPP intends to enter into a contract with Entergy Services Inc. (Entergy) to provide the ICT services.
These services include a limited set of services that SPP currently provides to its members as well as
some new services.
Analysis
The Entergy ICT is the first attempt in the industry to address transmission management issues in this
manner. SPP staff has analyzed the benefits and potential risks to the organization in assuming the role
of Entergy’s ICT. These are detailed in the Entergy ICT proposal (Attachment 1- Entergy ICT Business
Plan Proposal), but are summarized as follows:
•
•
•
•
•

This will be a fair deal for all parties.
Regional development plans can be optimized.
SPP will be compensated for costs associated with any termination of its role as the ICT.
SPP will gain valuable experience through its management of the weekly procurement process.
Reliability coordination between the SPP region and Entergy will be enhanced.

The SPP Membership should gain substantial benefit from the enhanced coordination between Entergy
and SPP, both operationally (as detailed in the proposal) and financially. SPP proposes to develop a
separate department with primary responsibility for the ICT functions and reporting to the President.
Certain requirements and support staff would be included in existing departments through an expanded
role.
Recommendation
Staff recommends that the Entergy ICT Business Plan Proposal be approved in substantially the form
presented, and that the officers of SPP be granted the authority to execute the documents necessary to
develop this project.
The Strategic Planning Committee voted to endorse this plan at its July 14 meeting.

Action Requested:

Approval

July 19, 2005

Entergy ICT Business Plan Proposal

July 19, 2005

OVERVIEW
Southwest Power Pool, Inc. (SPP) intends to enter into a short-term (two year) contract with
Entergy Services Inc. (Entergy) to provide Independent Coordinator of Transmission (ICT)
services. These services include a limited set of services that SPP currently provides to its
members as well as some new services. State and federal regulators have expressed support for
SPP serving in this role. This document describes an initial approach for implementation of the
functions of Entergy’s ICT.
On May 27, 2005 Entergy filed with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission seeking to
modify its tariff to: (1) achieve greater independence and oversight over the operation of its
transmission system; (2) provide greater efficiency in providing and pricing transmission service;
and (3) provide the Commission and retail regulators with direct reports, submitted by an
independent entity with access to all pertinent transmission information regarding the operation
of Entergy’s transmission system. This would be accomplished through a contract relationship
with a third party to serve as the independent coordinator of transmission (ICT) for Entergy.
Generally, the ICT is to (a) provide oversight over the operations of the Entergy transmission
system; (b) provide a new process for assigning cost responsibility for transmission upgrades;
and (c) implement a new Weekly Procurement Process (WPP).
SPP proposes to develop a separate department with primary responsibility for the ICT functions
and reporting to the President. Certain requirements and support staff would be included in
existing departments through an expanded role. Appropriate SPP staff will receive training on
Entergy’s transmission systems. The plan considers that Entergy must have the ability to resume
responsibility for the ICT functions if FERC does not approve the continuation of the ICT past
the initial two year approval.
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ANALYSIS
FERC concluded that the Entergy ICT proposal would be initiated as a two-year experiment.
Following this term, FERC will assess the results and consider supporting the ICT assuming
operational control over Entergy’s transmission system on a more permanent basis. State and
federal regulators are very supportive of this experiment. Entergy is regulated by three state
jurisdictions that are also served by SPP member systems. SPP stands to gain additional
credibility at both the state and federal regulatory level.
The Entergy ICT is the first attempt in the industry to address transmission management issues in
this manner. If successful, it is likely to be duplicated. SPP may then have other opportunities to
provide this service, should it be determined that it would be beneficial to SPP members.
SPP staff has analyzed the benefits and potential risks to the organization in assuming the role of
Entergy’s ICT. It is staff’s opinion that the benefits outweigh the risks, and that those risks can
be mitigated.
The benefits to SPP include:
This will be a fair deal for all parties. SPP members will not subsidize the ICT services;
Entergy will not subsidize RTO operations. Entergy will contribute to the fixed costs for SPP’s
infrastructure that will be used to provide ICT services.
Regional development plans can be optimized. The ICT will develop the base transmission
expansion plan for Entergy. This plan will then be used to optimize regional development for all
members that choose to participate in the process. This approach presents a real opportunity to
reduce overall transmission expansion costs.
SPP will be compensated for costs associated with any termination of its role as the ICT.
SPP will gain valuable experience through its management of the weekly procurement
process (WPP). Although the WPP is not a real time market, it will provide significant
experience with an alternative market design. Entergy will also benefit from observance of SPP’s
market implementation.
Reliability coordination between the SPP region and Entergy will be enhanced. The ICT
will assure non-discriminatory assessment and operation of the Entergy system. SPP members
will benefit from an increased range of options available to the reliability coordinators in
resolving projected overloads in the region.
Considerations in assessing the benefits and risks included:
•

Reliability: Entergy is the largest neighboring system to the SPP footprint, and thus the
one with which SPP has the most interaction. By performing the ICT functions, SPP will
coordinate the larger footprint providing improved reliability to the region. For instance,
SPP and Entergy are currently addressing seams issues related to reliability in south
Louisiana. SPP, acting as the ICT, will allow for more efficient resolution of such issues.
SPP will use its existing infrastructure to provide the backbone of services related to the
Reliability Coordinator function. Entergy is currently in the SERC region, which may
raise concerns at NERC. However, SPP will be performing the reliability function
3
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simultaneously. SPP will serve as the Reliability Coordinator for both the SPP and
Entergy regions resulting in cost savings to both organizations.
•

Transmission Service: Numerous transmission service requests are used to exchange
energy between the SPP and Entergy regions. As the ICT, SPP will be responsible for
processing all these requests. This will provide the beginning of one stop shopping for
scheduling and transmission service even if two tariffs are maintained. Entergy is
currently participating in SPP’s Automated Reserve Sharing (ARS) program.
Enhancement would allow the transmission service required for the generation
contingencies under a single charge. FERC has requested that Entergy and SPP
investigate the elimination of the pancaked rates between the two systems. This could be
beneficial to certain SPP members and detrimental to others.

•

Transmission Planning: Serving as the ICT will allow SPP to more closely coordinate
transmission planning with Entergy. This will result in improved transmission planning
across both regions, especially in Arkansas and Louisiana where both entities share
territory.

•

Enhanced Market knowledge: SPP will gain valuable knowledge and experience through
managing the weekly procurement process (WPP). Although the SPP energy imbalance
market and Entergy WPP are different, much can be learned by observing and managing
both. Changes and enhancements can be better coordinated for efficiency. The WPP may
be an option for the SPP region should the process prove to be one that adds value.
Expansion of SPP’s energy imbalance and other market services into the Entergy region
could be easily implemented.

•

Liability: One of the primary drivers for the creation of the ICT is to provide an
independent entity for resolution of disputes between Entergy and its customers (who
have historically had a litigious relationship). The ICT may be placing itself at risk to
litigation at both the state and federal level. This could distract management and expose
SPP to financial risk. The financial risk will be mitigated contractually, however the
distraction to management cannot be mitigated. There is also a possibility that FERC
could assign additional functions to the ICT, necessitating additional contract
negotiations.

•

SPP Membership: The membership should gain substantial benefit from the enhanced
coordination between Entergy and SPP, both operationally (see below) and financially.
SPP will charge the ICT for use of its assets and any necessary enhancements. This will
result in a reduction in costs to existing SPP members. In addition, there are entities that
are now receiving services from Entergy that may opt to receive those services from SPP
and/or consider membership.

•

SPP Staff: The startup of the ICT organization may strain the existing administrative and
HR staffs. If the ICT is not appropriately staffed, existing SPP staff would be relied upon,
possibly to the detriment of SPP activities. Staffing plans are detailed in a subsequent
section of this plan.
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ICT FUNCTIONAL REQUIREMENTS
Entergy has filed a new Section 205 filing with FERC to implement the ICT proposal consistent
with guidance provided in a previous order (Docket ER05-1065). The following summarizes the
proposed requirements for the ICT as understood by SPP.
OPERATIONS FUNCTIONS
Reliability Coordinator
The ICT will implement Reliability Coordinator (RC) functions pursuant to NERC Operating
Policy 9 and Appendices 9B-9D. The ICT will have decisional authority over these functions
including the right to redispatch generation, reconfigure transmission, approve and disapprove
transmission outages, or reduce load to mitigate critical criteria and transmission reliability
issues. Entergy will continue to implement local area reliability procedures subject to the
oversight of the ICT.
The ICT is responsible for obtaining approval from the Southeastern Electric Reliability Council
to serve as the Reliability Coordinator for the Entergy control area.
Transmission Service Request Desk/Tariff Coordinator
The ICT will implement Entergy’s tariff. The ICT will calculate the Available Flowgate
Capacity (AFC) for the Entergy region, and will determine whether short term transmission
service requests are accepted or denied based on the availability of transmission as indicated by
the applicable AFC’s. The ICT will maintain the Entergy OASIS including updating all values.
Changes to the network model and AFC model will be provided by Entergy, however, the ICT
will, at its option, review and test model and software changes prior to implementation for these
functions.
OPERATIONS PLANNING FUNCTIONS
Reliability Coordinator Support
Each business day, the ICT will perform transmission contingency analyses for the next day and
for the ensuing days to identify any potential operating concerns, including any projected postcontingent thermal overloads and/or unacceptable post-contingent undervoltages or overvoltages
and any IROLs (Interconnection Reliability Operating Limit). The ICT will coordinate
mitigation plans with the Reliability Coordinator or his designee and Control Area Operators.
Outage Coordination
Although Entergy personnel will continue to perform all outage coordination from a business
perspective, the ICT will have the authority to disapprove proposed transmission outages if they
1) fail to meet established reliability standards, and 2) adversely impact neighboring control
areas and/or transmission providers. Since all transmission outages will not require review by the
ICT, the Entergy Transmission Operational Planning group, working with SPP, will
predetermine a list of transmission elements that, if requested to be out of service, must be
reviewed by the ICT. It will be the responsibility of the Entergy Transmission Operational
Planning group to maintain and update this list.
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AFC Support
The ITC will identify any anomalies in AFC related data including AFC and effective ATC
values posted on the OASIS or input through OASIS Automation. The ITC will also perform
quality control on the data inputs to the response factor calculator (RFCalc).
The ICT will respond to transmission customer inquiries regarding the AFC process. Changes to
the AFC model will be provided by Entergy. The ICT will, at its option, review and test the
software and model changes before they are implemented.
LONG-TERM PLANNING FUNCTIONS
The major elements of the long-term transmission planning process include the following: (i)
development of the Base Case Model; (ii) development of the Transmission Provider’s
Construction Plan and evaluation of that plan by the ICT; (iii) the Transmission Planning
Summit and stakeholder input to the Construction Plan; (iv) development of the Base Plan for
the Transmission System; (v) coordinated regional planning with other transmission owners; and
(vi) identification of economic projects. The ICT will be responsible for all these elements
except item (ii). More specifically, the ICT will:
a. have authority to review all power flow models used to evaluate, grant or deny transmission
or interconnection service, including inputs and assumptions used to create those models and
the model software;
b. be actively involved in overseeing each step of the process associated with the preparation of
transmission system plans, generator interconnection studies, etc.;
c. have decisional authority to determine whether transmission upgrades should be assigned on
an incremental basis to transmission and interconnection customers, applying Entergy's
proposed pricing policy and protocol.
Coordinated Regional Planning
To the extent parties agree to participate, the ICT will evaluate the Entergy Construction Plan,
plans of SPP transmission providers, and others with which Entergy has seams agreements
(TVA, Southern Company) to determine whether regional optimization planning opportunities
exist.
INTERCONNECTION SERVICE STUDIES FUNCTIONS
The ICT-related functions in this area are defined by the ICT Interconnection Service Protocol,
and detailed in the LGIP provisions of the tariff. The ICT shall direct Entergy to perform a
Facilities Study when requested by an eligible customer.
TRANSMISSION SERVICE STUDIES FUNCTIONS
The ICT-related functions in this area are defined by the ICT Transmission Service Protocol and
the tariff. The coordination between the ICT and Entergy in the performance of the Facilities
Study is as described in the section above.
WEEKLY PROCUREMENT PROCESS
The ICT will provide oversight and monitoring of the weekly procurement process (WPP) and
propose modifications as necessary.
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS
The ICT is required to provide status reports to FERC one year after commencement of this
project, with a final report due 10 months later. The ICT will periodically provide reports to
regulatory bodies regarding the status of the ICT requirements and functions.
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STAFFING
SPP proposes to develop a separate department reporting to the President to have primary
responsibility for the ICT functions. Planning, weekly procurement, and tariff administration will
require new staffing within the ICT organization. Existing reliability operations and tariff
administration will be expanded to include the ICT activities because of the synergies gained by
doing these together. Other office support (information technology) is being evaluated.
Following discussions with regulators from the region it has been determined that SPP should
add a small office in New Orleans to provide a local presence.
The organization chart (Attachment 1) represents the proposed ICT organization.

ICT AGREEMENT
Entergy has filed a pro forma agreement for the ICT with FERC (Attachment 2). SPP expects to
negotiate this contract to meets its service agreement requirements. The parties expect to execute
this agreement early in 2006.
Until such time as the final ICT agreement can be negotiated, SPP and Entergy will enter into a
Master Services Agreement (Attachment 3). The work pursuant to this interim agreement is
scheduled to begin in August 2005 in order to meet overall project deadlines.
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FEE SCHEDULE
Staff developed a budget for the ICT Project designed to appropriately compensate SPP for the
direct and indirect costs associated with the project. Staffing expenses include a component for
staff assigned directly to the project, as well as for support staff within SPP having a level of
indirect responsibility for the project. Staff directly assigned to the project will be billed at a
fixed rate per person based on the average compensation budgeted; support staff billings equal
90% of the budgeted direct staff expense. Infrastructure expenses compensate SPP for other
imbedded costs associated with the project (i.e. software, hardware, etc.). Travel, meeting,
consulting, legal, hiring, and telecommunications expenses will be directly assigned to Entergy
as they are incurred.
The fees will compensate SPP for approximately $5 million in existing operating and
maintenance expenses. This equates to a reduction in SPP’s administrative rate of approximately
$0.025/MWh.

ICT Budget Summary
Fixed costs
Staffing
Infrastructure Expense
Subtotal

$ 7,400,000
4,086,000
$11,486,000

Estimated variable pass through costs
Travel
ICT meetings
Consulting
ICT Legal
Hiring Expenses
Telecommunications
Subtotal

$

140,000
100,000
50,000
50,000
0
61,000
$ 401,000

Total

$11,887,000
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ATTACHMENT 1
SPP/Entergy ICT Proposed Organizational Chart

ICT Executive Director

Manager, ICT Planning

Director, Operations

Sr. Engineer
ICT Reliability Admin

Ops Engineering

Manager, WPP

Manager, ICT Tariff Admin

Sr. Engineer

Sr. Engineer

Analyst III

Sr. Coordinator

Customer Service

Sr. Coordinator

Engineer III
Sr. Coordinator

Engineer II

Sr. Coordinator

Sr. Coordinator

Sr. Engineer

Coordinator II

Engineer II
Sr. Engineer

Sr. Coordinator

Coordinator II

Coordinator II

Coordinator II

Engineer III

Coordinator II

Engineer II

Coordinator II

Gray indicates existing positions that will serve in an expanded role. Remaining positions are
new positions.
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ATTACHMENT 2
Entergy Pro Forma ICT Agreement as Filed at FERC

AGREEMENT
This Agreement is entered into this ____ day of _____, 2005, between Entergy Services
Inc. (“ESI”), on behalf of the Entergy Operating Companies (Entergy Arkansas, Inc., Entergy
Gulf States, Inc., Entergy Louisiana, Inc., Entergy Mississippi, Inc. and Entergy New Orleans,
(“Contractor”), which are
Inc.) (collectively, “Entergy”) and
sometimes individually referred to herein as a “Party” and collectively as “Parties”.
WHEREAS, ESI is a service company providing services for the Entergy Operating
Companies, which are part of a multi-state public utility holding company system registered
under the Public Utility Holding Company Act of 1935; and
WHEREAS, the Entergy Operating Companies own, among other things, an integrated
electric transmission system, which they use to provide electric service to their customers, and to
provide non-discriminatory open access transmission service pursuant to an open access
transmission Tariff (“OATT”) filed with and subject to the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (“FERC”); and
WHEREAS, the Entergy Operating Companies will continue to be the Transmission
Provider under the Entergy Operating Companies OATT; and
WHEREAS, ESI, as agent for the Entergy Operating Companies, wants to retain
Contractor to perform various services regarding Entergy’s transmission system, which services
are described more fully herein; and
WHEREAS, Contractor is independent from Entergy, possesses the necessary
competence and experience to perform the services in question and is willing to perform such
services under the terms and conditions of this Agreement.
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises contained herein, and other
good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Parties agree
as follows:
Section 1 – Scope of Services; Standards of Performance.
1.1 Services. Contractor shall perform the services described in Attachment A (the
“Services”).
1.2 Key Personnel. Contractor will assign to the performance of the Services the key
personnel referred to in Attachment B (To be developed with Contractor.) (the “Key
Personnel”).
1.3 Place of Business. Contractor shall maintain its principal place of business within
the service area of the Entergy Operating Companies or one of the other electric transmission
owners or operators in the southeastern United States for which Contractor provides Services
under Section 1.4.
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1.4 Expansion. Nothing in this Agreement is intended to prevent or limit in any way the
formation of a similar regional transmission entity in the region. In addition, nothing in this
Agreement shall prevent Contractor from entering into agreements with one or more electric
transmission owners or operators to provide services the same or similar to the Services provided
hereunder provided that any such agreement(s) shall provide for Entergy to be reimbursed in an
equitable manner for its capital investment pursuant to this Agreement as well as for its ongoing
operations and maintenance costs to the extent they are used by Contractor in providing services
under such agreement(s) [and provided further that the ICT’s performance of such additional
functions does not impair its ability to perform its obligations set forth in this agreement. to be
discussed with contractor]
Section 2 – Independence.
2.1 Employees. All Services shall be performed by employees of Contractor. No such
employees shall be employed by Entergy or any Affiliate (as defined in 18 C.F.R. § 35.34(b)(3)
of FERC's regulations) of Entergy. Contractor and its employees shall be, and shall remain for
throughout the Term (as defined in Section 4.1), Independent (as defined below) of Entergy and
any Market Participant (as defined in 18 C.F.R. §35.34(a)(2) of FERC's regulations) and all
Affiliates of Entergy and any such Market Participant. For purposes of this Agreement,
“Independent” has the meaning set forth in FERC Order No. 2000 and 18 C.F.R. § 35.34(j)(i)
and (ii), as they may be revised by FERC from time to time. In no event shall any Services be
performed by, or any information disclosed to or accessed by Contractor in connection with this
Agreement be provided to, Contractor’s Independent Market Monitor or any of its employees,
agents, or directors.
2.2 Offices. Contractor shall maintain its offices separate from the offices of Entergy
and its Affiliates. No employees of Contractor performing services under this Agreement shall
share office space with any transmission/reliability employee or merchant employee of Entergy
or of any Affiliate of Entergy, or those of any Market Participant.
2.3 Treatment. All employees of Contractor performing functions on behalf of Entergy
under this Agreement shall be treated, for purposes of the FERC’s Standards of Conduct set forth
in 18 C.F.R. § 37.4, as the equivalent of transmission/reliability employees of Entergy, and all
restrictions relating to information sharing and other relationships between merchant employees
of Entergy or its Affiliates and transmission/reliability employees of Entergy or its Affiliates
shall apply to such employees.
Section 3 – Compensation, Billing and Payment.
3.1 Compensation. Entergy shall, in accordance with the billing provisions of Section
3.4, reimburse Contractor for its costs of providing the Services under this Agreement, such costs
being defined and calculated in accordance with Sections 3.3. and 3.5 hereof.
3.2 Budget Process. Contractor will prepare a draft annual capital and expense budget
by July 1 of each calendar year, for the following calendar year for review and approval by
Entergy. Entergy and Contractor will, at the retail regulator’s or FERC’s option, conduct a joint
meeting with the retail regulators, with jurisdiction over the Entergy Operating Companies,
and/or FERC to review and discuss the proposed budget. Entergy and Contractor will endeavor
to reach agreement on the required capital and expense budget requirements for the following
Contract Year by September 30. In the event the Parties are not able to reach agreement,
Contractor may include the areas of disagreement in its periodic reports to FERC and the Retail
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Regulators, and the budget will based on Contractor’s actual costs for the preceding Contract
Year. For the first Contract Year, Contractor’s total budget for all capital and operations and
maintenance expenditures shall be [need to negotiate a number].
3.3 Expenses. (Contractor and Entergy to agree upon costs recoverable under this
Agreement) Subject to Section 3.2, Entergy shall reimburse Contractor for all reasonable and
necessary costs incurred by Contractor in performing the Services pursuant to this Agreement.
Reimbursable expenses shall include employee salaries and benefits, office space costs, supplies
and equipment, computer hardware and software lease costs and other information technology
costs, reasonable travel and other business expenses, legal, accounting and other necessary
services. Such expenses shall be directly assigned to Contractor’s performance of the Services
under this Agreement when possible, and shall be based upon time billing or other reasonable
allocation methods when such direct assignment is not possible. Upon request, Contractor shall
provide detailed backup (including written documentation) for such expenses. Entergy and
Contractor will meet on a monthly basis during the six (6) month period after the Effective Date
to review and discuss Contractor’s actual charges for the period and the forecasted expenses for
the remainder of the Contract Year. Beginning on the seventh (7th) month after Effective Date,
Entergy and Contractor will meet on a quarterly basis to review and discuss Contractor’s actual
charges for the past quarter and the forecasted expenses for the remainder of the then-current
Contract Year. Such discussions will provide the basis for addressing unusual or unforeseen
circumstances that may require deviation from the budget approved by Entergy pursuant to
Section 3.2. Any deviations from the budget approved by Entergy pursuant to Section 3.2 must
be approved by Entergy. Contractor may include a discussion of these budget meetings in the
reports its files with FERC and the Retail Regulators.
3.4 Billing. Contractor shall render to Entergy monthly statements by regular mail,
facsimile, electronic mail or other acceptable means.
Such statement shall set forth (To be
developed with winning bidder.). Entergy shall make payment of the amount shown to be
payable by Entergy by wire transfer to an account specified by Contractor not later than the
twentieth (20th) business day after receipt of the statement. All such payments shall be deemed
to be made when said wire transfer is received by Contractor. Any statement unpaid beyond the
twentieth (20th) business day shall accrue interest at the rate established in 18 C.F.R. § 35.19(a).
3.5 Capital Investments. (To be developed with Contractor.)
Section 4 – Term; Termination; Termination Fees; Transition Assistance Services.
4.1 Term. The term of this Agreement (the “Term”) shall begin 30 days following the
later of (i) receipt of all retail regulatory authorizations for the ICT proposal; or (ii) FERC
acceptance of this Agreement (“the Effective Date”).[Parties in discussion on when the term of
Agreement commences (i.e., commencement should be concurrent with regulatory
approvals?] The Agreement shall remain in effect for an initial term of two years (the “Initial
Term”). After the conclusion of the Initial Term, the Term shall be extended if Entergy petitions
and receives approval from the FERC, and any necessary approvals from the Retail Regulators,
to continue this Agreement with Contractor for an additional term of years (“Subsequent Term”),
provided, however, that neither Party shall be obligated to continue this Agreement for any
Subsequent Term if the regulatory approvals for such Subsequent Term contain conditions that
are materially adverse to either Party. This Agreement shall remain in effect during the Initial
Term and Subsequent Term, as applicable, until terminated as provided in this Section 4.
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4.2 Mutually-Agreed Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual
agreement of the Parties, expressed in writing, at any time during the Term or any Subsequent
Term.
4.3 Termination at End of a Term. Either Party may terminate this Agreement effective
at the end of the Initial Term or any Subsequent Term upon written notice to the other Party
delivered no less than six (6) months prior to the expiration of the Initial Term or such
Subsequent Term; provided, however, that this Agreement shall terminate at the end of the Initial
term if FERC does not approve this Agreement extending beyond the Initial Term.
4.4 Termination for Non-Viability. If a regulatory or legislative authority places
additional conditions on Entergy, or interprets existing conditions in a manner that causes this
Agreement, in Entergy’s sole judgment, to be no longer viable for Entergy, then Entergy shall
notify Contractor of such determination and the Parties shall negotiate in good faith to amend
this Agreement so as to reestablish the viability of this Agreement for Entergy; however, if the
Parties are unable, after using commercially reasonable efforts, to agree on such amendments
within forty-five (45) days of Entergy delivering notice of such non-viability to Contractor,
either Party may terminate this Agreement upon written notice effective immediately.
4.5 Termination for Cause. The Agreement may be terminated (except that any
termination by Entergy pursuant to this Section 4.5 shall be effective only upon approval of such
termination by the FERC), by:
4.5.1 either Party:
4.5.1.1 if the FERC determines that (a) Contractor is no longer
Independent pursuant to the requirements of Section 2 or (b) Contractor
is otherwise no longer approved to perform the Services;
4.5.1.2 if Contractor (a) fails to obtain certification from the North
American Electric Reliability Council (“NERC”) and the Southeastern
Electric Reliability Council (“SERC”) as the Reliability Coordinator or
(b) loses its NERC or SERC certification once obtained;
4.5.1.3 if the other Party makes a general assignment for the benefit of
its creditors;
4.5.1.4 if the other Party institutes a proceeding in bankruptcy;
4.5.1.5 if a receiver, trustee, custodian or assignee is appointed on
account of the insolvency of the other Party and not dismissed within
sixty (60) days;
4.5.1.6 if a proceeding in bankruptcy is instituted against the other
Party and not dismissed within sixty (60) days;
4.5.1.7 if the other Party dissolves or is dissolved or its legal existence
is otherwise terminated;
4.5.1.8 if the other Party fails to exercise reasonable care to prevent the
disclosure of or access to confidential information in violation of its
confidentiality obligations under Section 12;
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4.5.1.9 in the event of gross negligence, willful misconduct or fraud by
the other Party in the performance of its obligations under this
Agreement;
4.5.1.10 upon a pattern of failure by the other Party, as determined by
the terminating Party in its reasonable discretion, to comply with the
standards of performance required under this Agreement, including but
not limited to the requirement that the Parties perform in accordance
with Good Utility Practice; or
4.5.1.11 upon a material breach by the other Party of any of its
obligations, representations or warranties under this Agreement that is
not adequately cured, to the extent that the Agreement provides for a
cure right for such obligation, representation or warranty.
4.5.2 Entergy, pursuant to the provisions of Section 10.
4.6 Termination Fees. (To be developed with Contractor.)
4.7 Return of Materials. Upon any termination of this Agreement, Contractor shall
timely and orderly turn over to Entergy all materials prepared or developed as of the effective
date of such termination and return or destroy, at the option of Entergy, all Data (as defined in
Section 8.1.1) and other information supplied by Entergy to Contractor.
4.8 Survival. All provisions of this Agreement which are by their nature or terms
intended to survive the termination of this Agreement, including the obligations set forth in this
Section 4 and any indemnification and confidentiality obligations, shall survive termination of
this Agreement.
4.9 Transition Assistance Services.
4.9.1 "Transition Assistance Period" shall mean a period of time designated by
Entergy, commencing on the date a determination is made by Entergy that there
will be an expiration or termination of this Agreement and continuing for up to
six (6) months after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, during
which Contractor shall provide the Transition Assistance Services. "Transition
Assistance Services" shall mean (1) the Services (and any replacements thereof
or substitutions therefor), to the extent Entergy requests such Services during
the Transition Assistance Period and (2) Contractor’s cooperation with Entergy
or another service provider designated by Entergy in the transfer of the Services
to Entergy or such other service provider in order to facilitate the transfer of the
Services to Entergy or such other service provider.
4.9.2 Contractor shall, upon Entergy's request during the Transition Assistance
Period, provide the Transition Assistance Services at Contractor's actual cost for
such services. The quality and level of performance during the Transition
Assistance Period shall not be degraded. After the expiration of the Transition
Assistance Period, Contractor shall (a) answer questions from Entergy regarding
the Services on an "as needed" basis at Contractor's then standard billing rates
and (b) deliver to Entergy any remaining Entergy-owned reports and
documentation still in Contractor's possession.
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4.9.3 During the Transition Assistance Period, Contractor shall not terminate,
reassign or otherwise remove any member of its staff who performed any part of
the Services without providing Entergy 30 days' prior notice of such
termination, reassignment or removal unless such employee (a) voluntarily
resigns from Contractor, (b) is dismissed by Contractor for misconduct (e.g.,
including but not limited to fraud, drug abuse, theft, violation of policy), or
(c) dies or is unable to work due to his or her disability.
Section 5 – Standard of Performance.
5.1. Contractor Performance. Contractor will perform the Services throughout the Term
in accordance with Good Utility Practice and shall conform to all applicable reliability criteria,
policies, standards, rules, regulations and other requirements of NERC, and any applicable
regional reliability council or their successors, Entergy’s specific reliability requirements and
operating guidelines (to the extent these are not inconsistent with other requirements specified in
this paragraph) and all applicable requirements of federal and state regulatory authorities.
5.2 Entergy Performance. Entergy shall perform its obligations under this Agreement in
accordance with Good Utility Practice.
Section 6 – Indemnification.
6.1 Indemnification by Entergy. Subject to the terms and limitations in this Agreement,
Entergy shall indemnify, defend, reimburse and hold harmless Contractor and its affiliates and
their respective directors, officers, employees, principals, representatives and agents
(collectively, the “Contractor Parties”) from and against any and all claims, liabilities, losses,
causes of action, fines, penalties, litigation, administrative proceedings and investigations, costs
and expenses (including reasonable attorneys’ fees) (“Losses”) asserted against or incurred by
any of the Contractor Parties arising out of or based upon (a) any breach of Entergy’s obligations
under this Agreement; or (b) the negligence or willful misconduct of any Entergy Party (as
defined in Section 6.2).
6.2 Indemnification by Contractor. Subject to the terms and limitations in this
Agreement, Contractor shall indemnify, defend, reimburse and hold harmless Entergy and its
affiliates and their respective directors, officers, employees, principals, representatives and
agents (collectively, the “Entergy Parties”) from and against any and all Losses asserted against
or incurred by any of the Entergy Parties arising out of or based upon (a) any breach of
Contractor’s obligations under this Agreement; or (b) the negligence or willful misconduct of
any Contractor Party.
6.3 Limitation of Liability. Neither Party shall be liable to the other Party for, nor will
the measure of damages include, any indirect, incidental, special or consequential damages
arising out of or relating to its performance or failure to perform under this Agreement.
6.4 Treatment of Indemnification Claims. A party making a claim for indemnification
pursuant to this Agreement shall be referred to herein as the “Indemnified Party” and the Party
against whom such indemnification claims are asserted pursuant to this Agreement shall be
referred to herein as the “Indemnifying Party.” In the event of a claim for indemnification, the
Indemnified Party shall promptly furnish written notice to the Indemnifying Party (a “Claim
Notice”) specifying the nature of the direct claim or third party claim given rise to
indemnification. The failure of the Indemnified Party to deliver promptly a Claim Notice shall
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not affect the indemnity obligations of the Indemnifying Party hereunder except to the extent the
Indemnifying Party was actually prejudiced by such delay in delivery of such Claim Notice.
Section 7 – Contract Managers; Dispute Resolution.
7.1 Entergy Contract Manager. Entergy shall appoint an individual (the "Entergy
Contract Manager") who from the date of this Agreement shall serve as the primary Entergy
representative under this Agreement. The Entergy Contract Manager shall (1) have overall
responsibility for managing and coordinating the performance of Entergy's obligations under this
Agreement and (2) be authorized to act for and on behalf of Entergy with respect to all matters
relating to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Entergy Contract Manager may,
upon notice to Contractor, delegate such of his or her responsibilities to other Entergy
employees, as the Entergy Contract Manager deems appropriate.
Contractor shall appoint an individual (the
7.2 Contractor Contract Manager.
"Contractor Contract Manager") who from the date of this Agreement shall serve as the primary
Contractor representative under this Agreement. The Contractor Contract Manager shall
(1) have overall responsibility for managing and coordinating the performance of Contractor's
obligations under this Agreement and (2) be authorized to act for and on behalf of Contractor
with respect to all matters relating to this Agreement. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Contractor Contract Manager may, upon notice to Entergy, delegate such of his or her
responsibilities to other Contractor employees, as the Contractor Contract Manager deems
appropriate.
7.3 Dispute Resolution by Contract Managers.
consistent with Attachment S to the filing]

[to be completed with Contractor

Section 8 – Data Management.
8.1 Definitions.
8.1.1 “Data” means all information, text, drawings, diagrams, images or
sounds which are embodied in any electronic or tangible medium and which are
supplied or in respect of which access is granted to Contractor by Entergy under
this Agreement.
8.1.2 “Processes” means software, base data models and operating procedures
for software or base data models.
8.2 Supply of Data. Entergy shall supply to Contractor, both initially and throughout the
Term, all Data that Contractor deems reasonably necessary to perform the functions required to
be performed under this Agreement. The Parties shall agree upon the reasonably necessary data
and the format and manner in which it shall be provided prior to the Effective Date.
8.3 Property of Entergy. Contractor acknowledges that Entergy’s Data and Processes are
the property of Entergy and Entergy hereby reserves all intellectual property rights which may
subsist in Entergy’s Data and Processes. Contractor shall not delete or remove any copyright
notices contained within or relating to Entergy’s Data.
8.4 Data Integrity. Entergy shall reasonably assist Contractor in establishing measures to
preserve the integrity and prevent any corruption or loss of Entergy’s Data, and shall reasonably
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assist Contractor in the recovery of any corrupted or lost data. Having due regard for the nature
of their respective obligations under this Agreement:
8.4.1 Contractor shall use reasonable efforts to preserve the integrity of
Entergy’s Data and Processes, to prevent any corruption or loss of Entergy’s
Data, and
8.4.2 Entergy shall use reasonable efforts to preserve the integrity of Entergy’s
Data and Processes by, as a minimum, continuing to employ its own established
internal procedures in relation to the same.
8.5 Data Preservation. Contractor shall retain and preserve Entergy’s Data during the
Term.
8.6 Confidentiality. Entergy’s Data shall be regarded as Confidential Information (as
defined in Section 12.1) and Contractor’s rights with respect to the use, reproduction,
modification and distribution of the same shall be limited to the extent necessary so as to enable
Contractor to fulfill its obligations under this Agreement.
8.7 Exclusion. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent Contractor or Entergy from
using general techniques, ideas, concepts and know-how gained by its employees during the
performance of this Agreement in the furtherance of its normal business, to the extent that this
does not relate to a disclosure of Entergy’s Data, any data generated from Entergy’s Data, a
disclosure of any Confidential Information, or an infringement by Entergy or Contractor of any
intellectual property right.
Section 9 – Intellectual Property.
9.1 Pre-Existing Intellectual Property. Each Party shall own (and continue to own) all
intellectual property that it owned prior to entering this Agreement, including any enhancements
thereto “Pre-Existing Intellectual Property”).
9.2 Jointly Owned Intellectual Property. All deliverables, whether software or
otherwise, to the extent prepared, produced or first developed by Contractor for Entergy during
this Agreement shall be jointly owned by Entergy and Contractor and each Party shall have the
right to use such deliverables without accounting to the other Party except as provided in this
Section 9.2. Prior to using for, or transferring or licensing such jointly owned intellectual
property to, a third party, Contractor shall reimburse Entergy in an equitable manner as
determined by the parties in good faith for the actual cost of Entergy’s investment in producing
such deliverable. Except as stated herein, Contractor shall have no other obligation to account to
Entergy for Contractor’s use thereof.
9.3 Contractor Retained Rights. Contractor shall retain all right, title and interest in its
proprietary know-how, concepts, techniques, processes, materials and information that were or
are developed entirely independently of Services performed pursuant to this Agreement (the
“Contractor Retained Rights”), whether or not such Contractor Retained Rights are embodied in
a deliverable. With respect to Contractor Retained Rights embodied in any deliverable,
ownership thereof shall remain entirely with Contractor but Entergy is hereby granted a
nonexclusive, perpetual, worldwide, royalty-free, fully paid-up license under such Contractor
Retained Rights as are embodied in any deliverable to use the deliverable only for its internal
business purposes, including licensing or transferring its interests therein to a third party for
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purposes of operating or performing functions in connection with its transmission business;
provided that Contractor shall not be liable for any reliance on or use of such Contractor
Retained Rights by any third party for any purpose whatsoever. The license granted hereunder to
use Contractor Retained Rights embodied in a deliverable shall also extend to Entergy’s affiliates
under the same terms and conditions as for Entergy.
9.4 Entergy Retained Rights. Entergy shall retain all right, title and interest in its
proprietary know-how, concepts, techniques, processes, materials and information that were or
are developed entirely by it (the “Entergy Retained Rights”). With respect to Entergy Retained
Rights embodied in any jointly owned intellectual property, ownership thereof shall remain
entirely with Entergy but Contractor is hereby granted a nonexclusive, perpetual, worldwide,
royalty-free, fully paid-up license under such Entergy Retained Rights as are embodied in any
jointly owned intellectual property to use the jointly owned intellectual property only for its
performance of Services under this Agreement.
9.5 Contractor Non-Infringement; Indemnification.
Contractor warrants that all
deliverables made pursuant to this Agreement shall not infringe on any third-party patent,
copyright or trade secret. Contractor shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify Entergy and its
affiliates against all claims or lawsuits based upon the actual or alleged infringement of any of
the foregoing rights; provided that such claim or action is not based on any alteration,
modification, or combination of the deliverable with any item, information or process not
provided by Contractor where there would be no infringement in the absence of such alteration,
modification or combination. The indemnity shall include, without limitation, all penalties,
awards and judgments; all court and arbitration costs; attorneys’ fees; and other reasonable outof-pocket costs incurred in connection with such claims or lawsuits. If any infringement action
results in a final injunction against Entergy or one or more of its affiliates with respect to the
deliverables provided under this Agreement, or in the event the use of the materials furnished by
the Contractor hereunder, or any part thereof, is, in such suit, held to constitute infringement,
Contractor agrees that it shall, at its option and sole expense, either (1) procure for Entergy or the
affected affiliate the right to continue using the infringing subject matter, or (2) replace the
infringing subject matter with non-infringing items of equivalent functionality or modify the
same so that it becomes non-infringing and retains its full functionality. If Contractor is unable
to accomplish (1) or (2) above, Contractor shall reimburse Entergy for all costs and fees paid by
Entergy to Contractor for the infringing subject matter. .
9.6 Indemnification. Entergy shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify Contractor
against all claims or damages to the extent that information or intellectual property that Entergy
furnishes to Contractor, any alteration, modification, or combination of the deliverables, or use
of the deliverables in a manner not contemplated or licensed under this Agreement constitutes an
infringement of any third-party right. The indemnity shall include, without limitation, all
penalties, awards and judgments; all court and arbitration costs; attorneys’ fees; and other
reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred in connection with such claims or lawsuits.
Section 10 – Intentionally Deleted.
Section 11 – Contractor Insurance.
11.1 Requirements. Contractor shall provide and maintain for the Term, unless
otherwise specified, insurance coverages in forms and amounts that Contractor believes will
adequately protect it; provided that, unless otherwise agreed by the Parties, in no case shall such
coverage be less than:
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11.1.1 Workers’ Compensation Insurance in accordance with all applicable
state, federal, and maritime laws, including Employer’s Liability Insurance in
the amount of $1,000,000 per accident and a waiver of subrogation in favor of
Entergy and its affiliates. In states that permit exemptions or rejection of
Workers’ Compensation insurance, Contractor may, for purposes of this
Agreement, elect not to maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance, but only to
the extent Contractor remains in compliance with applicable state law.
Contractor hereby agrees that in the event a claim or suit is asserted by any selfinsurer, medical insurer, medical service provider, employee of Contractor or
employee’s spouse, children, dependents, survivors, or any other person or
entity making a claim on behalf of or through such employee resulting from or
in any manner arising out of such employee injury (including death) or
occupational disease, under any statutory or common law right or theory of
recovery, lien or subrogation against Entergy and its affiliates, Contractor will
defend, indemnify, hold harmless, and make whole Entergy and its affiliates for
any and all losses, settlements, and judgments resulting from such claim or suit.
Contractor further agrees that the foregoing provision shall also apply in the
event a claim or suit is asserted against Entergy and its affiliates by any
subcontractor performing services under this Agreement.
11.1.2 Commercial General Liability Insurance including Contractual Liability
Coverage covering liability assumed under this Agreement, and Personal Injury
Coverage, with a combined single limit of [$1 Million currently under
discussion] per occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property Damage.
11.1.3 Automobile Liability Insurance covering any vehicle used in connection
with the performance of this Agreement, with a combined single limit of
$300,000 per accident.
11.1.4 Excess or Umbrella Liability Coverage following the form of coverages
required in Sections 11.1.2 and 11.1.3 with limits of liability, when combined
with such primary coverage limits, equal to [$5 Million currently under
discussion]per occurrence.
11.1.5 Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance in the amount of [$5 Million
currently under discussion]per claim, covering claims or damages because of
injury or damages arising out of any act, error or omission of Contractor in the
rendering of professional services. Such coverage shall remain in effect for one
year from the termination of this Agreement.
11.2 Insurance Matters. Contractor’s insurance policies required by Sections 11.1.2 and
11.1.3 shall include Entergy and its affiliates as additional insureds with respect to Contractor’s
performance under and liability arising from this Agreement. Contractor hereby waives all rights
of recourse, including any right to which another may be subrogated, against Entergy and its
affiliates for personal injury, including death, and property damage. All of Contractor’s policies
of insurance shall be primary insurance and noncontributing with any other insurance maintained
by Entergy and its affiliates. Policies are to provide Entergy with thirty (30) days’ prior written
notice of cancellation or any material adverse change in conditions or limit of liability.
Contractor shall provide Entergy with Certificates of Insurance issued to Entergy and its
affiliates evidencing coverage currently in effect upon execution of this Agreement and annually
thereafter pursuant to the requirements of these insurance provisions.
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11.3 Compliance. Contractor shall not commence performance of any Services until all
of the insurance required of Contractor is in force, and the necessary documents have been
received by Entergy. Compliance with these insurance provisions is hereby expressly made a
condition precedent to the obligation of Entergy to make payment for any Services performed.
The minimum insurance requirements set forth above shall not vary, limit or waive Contractor’s
legal or contractual responsibilities or liabilities to any party.
Section 12 – Confidentiality.
12.1 Definition of Confidential Information. “Confidential Information” of Entergy or
Contractor, respectively, shall mean all information and documentation of Entergy and
Contractor, respectively, whether disclosed to or accessed by Entergy or Contractor in
connection with this Agreement; provided, however, that the term “Confidential Information”
shall not include information that (a) is independently developed by the recipient, as
demonstrated by the recipient’s written records, without violating the disclosing Party’s
proprietary rights, (b) is or becomes publicly known (other than through unauthorized
disclosure), (c) is disclosed by the owner of such information to a third party free of any
obligation of confidentiality, (d) is already known by the recipient at the time of disclosure, as
demonstrated by the recipient’s written records, and the recipient has no obligation of
confidentiality other than pursuant to this Agreement or any confidentiality agreements between
Entergy and Contractor entered into before the effective date of this Agreement (e) is rightfully
received by a Party free of any obligation of confidentiality, or (f) any data that Entergy provides
to Contractor that is to be posted publicly pursuant to FERC rules and regulations applicable to
Entergy's OATT and Open Access Same Time Information System ("OASIS").
12.2 Protection of Confidential Information. All Confidential Information relating to or
obtained from Entergy or Contractor shall be held in confidence by the recipient to the same
extent and in at least the same manner as the recipient protects its own confidential information;
provided, however, that obligations with respect to third-party Confidential Information may be
subject to a higher standard if required to comply the disclosing Party’s contractual obligations
and the recipient is notified in writing of such higher standard. Neither Entergy nor Contractor
shall disclose, publish, release, transfer or otherwise make available Confidential Information of,
or obtained from, the other in any form to, or for the use or benefit of, any person or entity
without the disclosing Party’s consent. Each of Entergy and Contractor shall be permitted to
disclose relevant aspects of the other’s Confidential Information to its officers, directors, agents,
professional advisors, contractors, subcontractors and employees and to the officers, directors,
agents, professional advisors, contractors, subcontractors and employees of its affiliates, to the
extent that such disclosure is reasonably necessary for the performance of its duties and
obligations or the determination, preservation or exercise of its rights and remedies under this
Agreement; provided, however, that the recipient shall take all reasonable measures to ensure
that Confidential Information of the disclosing Party is not disclosed or duplicated in
contravention of the provisions of this Agreement by such officers, directors, agents,
professional advisors, contractors, subcontractors and employees. The obligations in this Section
12 shall not restrict any disclosure pursuant to any local, state or federal governmental agency or
authority is such release is necessary to comply with valid laws, governmental regulations, or
final orders of regulatory bodies or courts; provided that the recipient shall give prompt notice to
the disclosing Party in sufficient time to exercise whatever legal rights the disclosing Party may
have to prevent or limit disclosure. Further, the recipient shall cooperate with the disclosing
Party in preventing or limiting such disclosure.
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12.3 Confidential Information Disclosed to NERC. (Entergy and Contractor to agree
upon appropriate language for information required to be disclosed to NERC).
Section 13 – Force Majeure.
13.1 Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any failure or delay of performance
hereunder due to causes beyond such Party’s control (a “Force Majeure”), including acts of God,
act of the public enemy, fire, explosion, vandalism, cable cut, storm or other catastrophes,
weather impediments, national emergency, insurrections, riots, wars or like causes beyond its
control, or any law, order, regulation, direction, action or request of any government or authority
or instrumentality thereof, and which by the exercise of due diligence such Party is unable,
whole or in part, to prevent or overcome. Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Force Majeure event
does not include an act of negligence or intentional wrongdoing by a Party claiming a Force
Majeure. Neither Party shall be considered in default as to any obligation under this Agreement
if prevented from fulfilling the obligation due to an event of Force Majeure, except for the
obligation to pay any amount when due, provided that the affected Party:
13.1.1 gives Notice to the other Party of the event or circumstance giving rise
to the event of Force Majeure;
13.1.2 affords the other Party reasonable access for obtaining information
about the event or circumstances alleged to constitute a Force Majeure;
13.1.3 takes all commercially reasonable steps required to restore its ability to
perform its obligations hereunder as soon as reasonably practicable provided
that the affected Party shall not be obligated to take any steps that are not
otherwise in accordance with Good Utility Practice; and
13.1.4 makes commercially reasonable efforts to perform its obligations
hereunder.
Section 14 – Reporting; Audit.
14.1 Reporting. Contractor will be responsible for making regular reports to FERC and
retail commissions as required by applicable law and regulations and/or as provided in
Attachment A to this Agreement.
14.2 Books and Records. Contractor shall maintain full and accurate books and records
pertinent to this Agreement. Entergy will have the right, at reasonable times and under
reasonable conditions, to inspect and audit Contractor’s operations and books to ensure
compliance with this Agreement and to verify any cost claims, including verification that any
and all material, services, labor and other expenses incurred under this Agreement have been
paid. Such books and records shall be made available at Contractor’s facility in Little Rock,
Arkansas for verification, copying, audit and inspection by Entergy or its representatives,
including Entergy-authorized third-party auditors. Any such audit shall be at Entergy’s expense
and conducted during Contractor’s normal working hours; provided, however, that Contractor
shall provide reasonable assistance necessary to enable Entergy to conduct such audit, and shall
not be entitled to charge Entergy for any such assistance. Amounts incorrectly or inappropriately
invoiced to Entergy, whether discovered prior to or subsequent to payment by Entergy, shall be
adjusted or reimbursed to Entergy by Contractor within twenty (20) days of notification by
Entergy to Contractor of the error in the invoice. Contractor shall include the necessary
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provisions in its agreements with subcontractors that shall assure access by Entergy’s employees
and representatives to applicable records of subcontractors. Contractor shall maintain such
books and records for three years after termination of this Agreement or longer if necessary to
resolve a pending dispute.
14.3 Regulatory Compliance. Contractor shall comply with all requests by Entergy to
the extent considered reasonably necessary by Entergy to comply with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
or other regulatory requirements. Notwithstanding the generality of the foregoing, upon request
by Entergy, Contractor shall each calendar year during the term of this Agreement, commencing
with calendar year 2006, deliver to Entergy a SAS No. 70 Type II Report, prepared by an
independent third-party auditor which Report, and its form and preparation follow all SAS 70
guidelines. The Report must be comprehensive and cover all services provided to Entergy.
Additionally, the Report must contain an opinion of the independent auditor that concludes that
Contractor’s internal controls are suitably designed to mitigate risk that could impact Entergy’s
financial reporting and disclosure. Such Report and opinion shall have no significant or material
exceptions or qualifiers and shall be substantially in the form of the Sample Report attached
hereto as Attachment (To be developed with Contractor.) and made a part hereof. In addition,
Contractor expressly agrees that prior to, or at the time of any significant or material change to
any internal process or financial control of Contractor that would or might impact the services or
materials provided to Entergy or that would, or might, have a significant or material effect on
such process’s mitigation of risk or upon the integrity of Entergy’s financial reporting or
disclosures, it shall notify Entergy in writing and provide full details of the change so as to
enable Entergy to review the change and evaluate its impact on internal controls and financial
reporting. Contractor shall also provide to Entergy a copy of any other audits report(s) related to
its operations and/or internal controls promptly after receiving any such report.
Section 15 – Independent Contractor; Statutory Employer.
15.1 Independent Contractor. Contractor shall be and remain an independent contractor
with respect to Entergy, and nothing contained in this Agreement shall be (a) construed as
inconsistent with that status or (b) deemed or construed to create the relationship of principal and
agent, or employer and employee, between Contractor and Entergy, or to make either Contractor
or Entergy partners, joint ventures, principals, fiduciaries, agents or employees of the other for
any purpose. Neither Party shall represent itself to be, an agent, partner or representative of the
other. Neither Party shall commit, nor be authorized to commit or bind, the other Party in any
manner, without such other Party’s prior written consent. Personnel employed, provided or used
by any Party in connection herewith will not be employees of the other Party in any respect.
Each Party shall have full responsibility for the actions or omissions of its personnel and shall be
responsible for their supervision, direction and control.
15.2 Louisiana Statutory Employer. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the
contrary, but solely for purposes of Louisiana Revised Statute 23:1061, the Parties agree that it is
their intention to recognize Entergy as the statutory employer of Contractor’s employees,
whether direct employees or statutory employees of Contractor, while Contractor’s employees
are providing Services within the State of Louisiana.
Section 16 – Taxes.
Each Party shall be responsible for the payment of its own taxes, including taxes based on its net
income, employment taxes of its employees, taxes on any property it owns or leases, and sales,
use, gross receipts, excise, value-added, or other transaction taxes.
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Section 17 – Protections
To the fullest extent allowed under law, Entergy hereby grants to Contractor, in connection with
its performance of applicable Services, all of the protections afforded to Entergy as a public
utility under Entergy's FERC-jurisdictional Open Access Transmission Tariff and applicable
state law. Contractor, for its part, agrees to be bound by FERC's orders respecting Contractor's
administration of Entergy's OATT pursuant to the terms of this Agreement.
Section 18 – Notices.
18.1 Notices. All notices, requests, consents and other communications hereunder shall
be in writing and shall be dispatched by nationwide overnight courier service, such as (without
limitation) FedEx, or by United States Certified Mail, Return Receipt Requested, postage
prepaid, addressed to the parties as follows:
If to Entergy:
[Add contact person]
Entergy Services Inc.
639 Loyola Avenue
New Orleans, Louisiana 70113
If to Contractor:
Contractor
Attn: Bruce A. Rew [based on current discussions]
415 North McKinley, #140 Plaza West
Little Rock, Ar. 72205
18.2 Date. Notices under this Agreement shall be deemed given upon the earlier of the
date of delivery or the date upon which delivery is refused.
18.3 Changes. Any changes in the names or addresses set out in Section 18.1 shall be
through notice in conformity with the requirements of Section 18.1.
Section 19 – Miscellaneous Provisions.
19.1 Governing Law; Compliance with Law. This Agreement and the rights and
obligations of the Parties under this Agreement shall be governed by and construed in
accordance with the laws of Delaware, without giving effect to its conflicts of law rules and both
Parties hereby agree that the exclusive venue will be in the federal or state courts in Arkansas.
Entergy shall retain responsibility for its compliance with all applicable federal, state and local
laws and regulations. Contractor shall retain responsibility for its compliance with all federal,
state and local laws and regulations applicable to the conduct of its business.
19.2 Consent to Jurisdiction. All disputes by any Party in connection with or relating to
this Agreement or any matters described or contemplated in this Agreement shall be instituted in
the courts of the State of Arkansas or of the United States in the State of Arkansas. Each Party
irrevocably submits, for itself and its properties, to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the
State of Arkansas and of the United States sitting in the State of Arkansas in connection with any
such dispute arising out of or relating to this Agreement. Each Party hereby irrevocably and
unconditionally waives any objection or defense that it may have based on improper venue or
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forum non conveniens to the conduct of any proceeding in any such courts. This provision is not
intended to adversely affect the jurisdiction of FERC with respect to this Agreement.
19.3 Amendment. This Agreement shall not be varied or amended unless such variation
or amendment is agreed in writing by a duly authorized representative of Entergy on behalf of
Entergy and by a duly authorized representative of Contractor on behalf of Contractor. None of
the Parties shall petition to FERC pursuant to the provisions of Sections 205 or 206 of the
Federal Power Act to amend this Agreement. [To the extent that changes to the scope of services
provided under this Agreement are required due to changes in Entergy’s OATT, the Parties agree
to negotiate in good faith in making such changes to this Agreement. Still under discussion with
Contractor] Absent agreement of all of the Parties, the standard of review for any changes to this
Agreement proposed by a non-party or FERC acting sua sponte shall be the “public interest”
standard of review set forth in United Gas Pipe Line Co. v. Mobile Gas Service Corp., 350 U.S.
332 (1956), and Federal Power Commission v. Sierra Pacific Power Co., 350 U.S. 348 (1956).
19.4 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of, and be
binding upon the Parties, their respective successors and assigns permitted hereunder. Any
assignment of this Agreement or any interest herein, or delegation of all or any portion of a
Party’s obligations, by operation of law or otherwise, by either Party without the other Party’s
written consent having first been obtained shall be void and of no effect, provided that
Contractor’s consent will not be required for Entergy to assign this Agreement to a successor
entity, including an independent transmission company, that acquires all or substantially all of
Entergy’s transmission system whether by merger, consolidation, reorganization, sale, spin-off,
or foreclosure and provided further that such successor entity agrees to assume all of Entergy’s
obligations hereunder from and after the date of such assignment. For the avoidance of doubt,
nothing herein shall preclude Entergy from transferring any or all of its transmission facilities to
another entity or disposing of or acquiring any other transmission assets.
19.5 No Third Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is made solely for the benefit of the
Parties hereto and their successors and permitted assigns and no other person shall have any
rights, interest or claims hereunder or otherwise be entitled to any benefits under or on account
of this Agreement as third party beneficiary or otherwise.
19.6 Waivers. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be effective unless it
is in writing and signed by the Party against which it is sought to be enforced. The delay or
failure by either Party to exercise or enforce any of its rights under this Agreement shall not
constitute or be deemed a waiver of that Party’s right thereafter to enforce those rights, nor shall
any single or partial exercise of any such right preclude any other or further exercise thereof or
the exercise of any other right.
19.7 Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any portion or provision of this
Agreement shall in no way affect the validity or enforceability of any other portion or provision
herein. If any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, illegal or otherwise
unenforceable, the same shall not affect the other provisions hereof or the whole of this
Agreement and shall not render invalid, illegal or unenforceable this Agreement or any of the
remaining provisions of this Agreement.
19.8 Renegotiation. If any provision of this Agreement, or the application thereof to any
person, entity or circumstance, is held by a court or regulatory authority of competent
jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, or if a modification or condition to this
Agreement is imposed by a regulatory authority exercising jurisdiction over this Agreement, then
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the Parties shall endeavor in good faith to negotiate such amendment or amendments to this
Agreement as will restore the relative benefits and obligations of the signatories under this
Agreement immediately prior to such holding, modification, or condition.
19.9 Representations and Warranties. Each Party represents and warrants to the other
Party that as of the date it executes this Agreement:
19.9.1 It is duly organized, validly existing, and in good standing under the
laws of the jurisdiction where organized.
19.9.2 Subject to any necessary approvals by federal or state regulatory
authorities, the execution and delivery by it, and the performance of its
obligations hereunder, have been duly and validly authorized by all requisite
action on the part of such Party. This Agreement has been duly executed and
delivered by it, and, subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement,
constitutes the legal, valid, and binding obligation on the part of it, enforceable
against it in accordance with its terms except insofar as the enforceability
thereof may be limited by applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization,
fraudulent conveyance, moratorium, or other similar laws affecting the
enforcement of creditor’s rights generally, and by general principles of equity
regardless of whether such principles are considered in a proceeding at law or in
equity.
19.9.3 There are no actions at law, suits in equity, proceedings, or claims
pending or, to the knowledge of such Party, threatened against such Party before
or by any federal, state, foreign or local court, tribunal, or governmental agency
or authority that might materially delay, prevent, or hinder the performance by
such entity of its obligations hereunder, except for requests for rehearing or
appeal of regulatory orders approving the establishment of the ICT.
19.10 Further Assurances. Each Party agrees that it shall hereafter execute and deliver
such further instruments, provide all information, and take or forbear such further acts and things
as may be reasonably required or useful to carry out the intent and purpose of this Agreement
and as are not inconsistent with the provisions of this Agreement
19.11 Entire Agreement. This Agreement, including the Attachments hereto, set forth
the entire agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.
19.12 Good Faith Efforts. Each Party agrees that it shall in good faith take all reasonable
actions necessary to permit it and other signatories to fulfill their obligations under this
Agreement. Where the consent, agreement, or approval of any Party must be obtained hereunder,
such consent, agreement, or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or
delayed. Where any Party is required or permitted to act, or omit to act, based on its opinion or
judgment, such opinion or judgment shall not be unreasonably exercised. To the extent that the
jurisdiction of any federal or state regulatory authority applies to any part of this Agreement or
the transactions or actions covered by this Agreement, each Party shall cooperate with all other
signatories to secure any necessary or desirable approval or acceptance of such regulatory
authorities of such part of this Agreement or such transactions or actions.
19.13 Time of the Essence. With respect to all duties, obligations and rights of the
Parties, time shall be of the essence of this Agreement.
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19.14 Interpretation. Unless the context of this Agreement otherwise clearly requires, (a)
the terms “include,” “includes” and “including” are not limiting and shall be deemed to be
followed by the phrase “without limitation,” and (b) the term “or” has the inclusive meaning
represented by the phrase “and/or.” All Section and Attachment references herein are to
Sections and Attachments of this Agreement, unless otherwise specified. This Agreement shall
not be construed as if prepared by one Party, but rather according to its fair meaning as a whole,
as if all Parties had prepared it.
19.15 Counterparts; Headings. This Agreement may be executed in any number of
counterparts, each of which shall be deemed to be an original, but all of which together shall
constitute one and the same instrument, binding upon Entergy and Contractor, notwithstanding
that Entergy and Contractor may not have executed the same counterpart. The Section headings
are inserted for convenience only and are not to be construed as part of this Agreement.
19.16 Exclusive Obligors. ESI and the Entergy Operating Companies shall be severally,
and not jointly, liable for its respective acts, omissions and obligations under this Agreement.
THUS DONE AND EXECUTED by the following duly authorized representatives of the
Parties on the day and year above written.
ENTERGY SERVICES INC., on behalf of the Entergy Operating Companies, Entergy
Arkansas, Inc., Entergy Gulf States, Inc., Entergy Louisiana, Inc., Entergy Mississippi,
Inc., and Entergy New Orleans, Inc.
_____________________________________________________
Name of Authorized Representative
_____________________________________________________
Title of Authorized Representative
_____________________________________________________
Signature of Authorized Representative
_____________________________________________________
Date of Execution
Contractor
_____________________________________________________
Name of Authorized Representative
_____________________________________________________
Title of Authorized Representative
_____________________________________________________
Signature of Authorized Representative
_____________________________________________________
Date of Execution
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ATTACHMENT A [to the ICT Agreement]
[TO BE DEVELOPED BY THE PARTIES]

Pursuant to Section 1.1 of the Agreement, Entergy and Contractor hereby agree that the
Contractor will perform the following Services, such Services being further described and
defined in Attachment S of Entergy's Open Access Transmission Tariff ("OATT"):
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Acting as Reliability Coordinator for Entergy's transmission system
Calculating AFC and granting and denying requests for transmission service under
Entergy's OATT
[Granting and denying requests for interconnection service under Entergy's Large
Generator Interconnection Procedures ("LGIP") and Large Generator Interconnection
Agreement ("LGIA")]
Operating Entergy's Open Access Same Time Information System ("OASIS")
Performing a regional planning function
Implementing Entergy's transmission expansion pricing proposal, including preparation
of the Base Plan
Overseeing the planning and operation of Entergy's transmission, as well as Entergy's
Weekly Procurement Process ("WPP")
Filing such reports as may be required by this Agreement, Attachment S of Entergy's
OATT or as otherwise required by the FERC or Entergy's Retail Regulators
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ATTACHMENT B [to the ICT Agreement]

Pursuant to Section 1.2 of the Agreement, Entergy and Contractor hereby agree that
Contractor will assign to the performance of the Services under this Agreement the following
key personnel:
[list]
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ATTACHMENT 3
Proposed Master Services Agreement
MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT
This agreement (“Agreement”) will confirm the arrangement with Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
(“Contractor”) regarding the engagement of Contractor to perform certain services, from time to time, in
connection with ________________________________
(“Project”) for Entergy Services, Inc.
(“Entergy”).
1) Contractor will provide services (“Services”) for Entergy from time to time in connection with the
Project, the scope of services, term, and compensation for which shall be memorialized in an
engagement letter (“Contract Order”). Invoices of Contractor will be in such form, and accompanied
with such documentation as may be requested.
2) Contractor will at all times act as an independent contractor, and nothing stated or implied in this
Agreement or in any Contract Order shall be construed to make Contractor, nor shall Contractor
represent Contractor to be, an employee or agent of Entergy or any of its affiliates. Further,
notwithstanding anything in this Subsection to the contrary, the parties mutually agree that it is their
intention to recognize Entergy as the statutory employer of the Contractor’s and its subcontractors’
employees, whether direct employees or statutory employees of the Contractor or any subcontractor,
in accordance with Louisiana Revised Statute 23:1061, while Contractor’s and any subcontractors’
employees are providing Services hereunder within the State of Louisiana.
3) Unless otherwise provided in a Contract Order, all specifications, drawings or other data, software,
materials or other business or technical information (collectively the “Information”) disclosed or
made available to Contractor or obtained by the Contractor, directly or indirectly, from Entergy or
one or more of its affiliates, or developed or obtained by the Contractor (or others under its direction
or supervision) in connection with the performance of this Agreement as well as any deliverables
resulting from the Services shall be deemed confidential information belonging to Entergy or its
affiliate. During the term of this Agreement and thereafter, the Contractor shall not use or otherwise
disclose such Information for any purpose (nor permit its use or disclosure by others who are under
the Contractor’s supervision or direction) without Entergy having given its prior written consent,
except (i) to the extent necessary in connection with the performance of the Services hereunder for
the benefit of the party owning such Information, or (ii) where such Information was publicly
available, or (iii) the Contractor otherwise demonstrates to the satisfaction of the applicable owner of
such Information that such Information was either actually known to the Contractor prior to this
Agreement, or was independently and properly obtained or developed by the Contractor apart from
this Agreement or any connection with Entergy or any of its affiliates (directly or indirectly), and
without breach of any confidential relationships.
4) All deliverables, whether software or otherwise, to the extent prepared, produced or first developed
by Contractor for Entergy shall be and will remain the exclusive property of Entergy, and all right,
title and interest therein (including, without limitation, copyright and patent rights) shall vest in
Entergy, and shall, to the fullest extent permitted by Law, constitute “work made for hire” under
United States copyright law. Contractor shall retain all right, title and interest in its know-how,
concepts, materials and information that were or are developed entirely independently of Services
performed pursuant to this Agreement (the “Retained Rights”), whether or not such Retained Rights
are embodied in a deliverable. With respect to Contractor’s Retained Rights embodied in any
deliverable, Entergy is hereby granted a nonexclusive, perpetual, worldwide, royalty-free, fully paidup license under Contractor’s Retained Rights to use the deliverables for its business operations. The
license granted shall extend to Entergy’s affiliates’ use of deliverables for their business operations
and to all successors or assignees of the business function for which the deliverables were acquired or
created or of the system to which the deliverables relate.
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5) Contractor warrants that deliverables made pursuant to this Agreement shall not infringe on any thirdparty patent, copyright or trade secret. Contractor shall defend, hold harmless and indemnify Entergy
and its affiliates against all claims or lawsuits based upon the actual or alleged infringement of any
third-party right. The indemnity shall include, without limitation, all penalties, awards and judgments;
all court and arbitration costs; attorneys’ fees; and other reasonable out-of-pocket costs incurred in
connection with such claims or lawsuits. If any action results in an injunction against Entergy or one
or more of its affiliates with respect to the Services or materials provided under this Agreement, or in
the event the use of the Services or materials furnished by the Contractor hereunder, or any part
thereof, is, in such suit, held to constitute infringement, Contractor agrees that it shall, at its option
and sole expense, either (1) procure for Entergy or the affected affiliate the right to continue using the
infringing subject matter, or (2) replace the infringing Services or materials with non-infringing items
of equivalent value and functionality or modify the same so that it becomes non-infringing and retains
its full value and functionality.
6) Contractor represents and warrants that it has the competence to perform the Services contemplated
hereunder, and that personnel of Contractor shall use their best efforts to perform the Services in the
most expeditious, professional and economical manner. Contractor warrants that it will perform the
Services provided for in this Agreement in conformance with the highest standards of care and
practice appropriate to the nature of the Services and exercise the highest degree of thoroughness,
competence and care that is customary in the utility and consulting industries. Contractor shall either
have or shall obtain, at its expense, before performing any Services all the necessary certificates,
permits, licenses and authorizations to perform Services and conduct business, shall perform all
Services in accordance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and ordinances and shall perform all
Services in good faith, promptly and with due diligence and competence. The Contractor further
warrants that the Services performed hereunder will be of the kind and quality described in this
Agreement and will be free of defects in design (except where Entergy has furnished the design), title,
workmanship, and materials.
7) Contractor shall, to the fullest extent allowed by applicable law, indemnify, protect and hold harmless
Entergy, its affiliates and each of their officers, directors, control persons, employees, agents and
representatives (the “Indemnitees”) from and against any and all losses, damages, including
consequential, incidental and punitive damages, claims, liabilities, costs and expenses (including,
without limitation, demands, fines, remediation costs, penalties, attorneys’ fees, court costs, legal,
accounting, consulting, engineering and other expenses) that may be imposed on, incurred by, or
asserted against the Indemnitees or any of them by any third party or parties (including, without
limitation, any governmental entity, any subcontractors and any employees of Contractor or any
subcontractor), caused by, arising from, relating to or in connection with, in whole or in part, directly
or indirectly: (a) Contractor’s or subcontractor’s breach of any provision of this Agreement, (b)
Contractor’s negligence, wrongful act or omission, breach of implied warranties, or strict liability of
whatsoever nature in connection with the performance of the Services by the Contractor or
subcontractor or (c) any violation of law by Contractor. Indemnitees may require Contractor to defend
all suits or claims concerning the foregoing.
8) Insurance. Contractor shall provide and maintain for the term of this Agreement unless otherwise
specified, at its own expense, insurance coverages in forms and amounts that Contractor believes will
adequately protect.
i)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, in no case shall such coverages be less than:
(a) Workers’ Compensation Insurance in accordance with all applicable state, federal, and
maritime laws, including Employer’s Liability Insurance in the amount of $100,000 per
accident and a waiver of subrogation in favor of Entergy and its affiliates. In states that
permit exemptions or rejection of Workers’ Compensation insurance, Contractor may, for
purposes of this Agreement, elect not to maintain Workers’ Compensation Insurance, but
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only to the extent Contractor remains in compliance with applicable state law. Contractor
hereby agrees that in the event a claim or suit is asserted by any self-insurer, medical
insurer, medical service provider, employee of Contractor or employee’s spouse,
children, dependents, survivors, or any other person or entity making a claim on behalf of
or through such employee resulting from or in any manner arising out of such employee
injury (including death) or occupational disease, under any statutory or common law right
or theory of recovery, lien or subrogation against Entergy and its affiliates, the Contractor
will defend, indemnify, hold harmless, and make whole Entergy and its affiliates for any
and all losses, settlements, and judgments resulting from such claim or suit. Contractor
further agrees that the foregoing provision shall also apply in the event a claim or suit is
asserted against Entergy and its affiliates by any subcontractor performing services under
this Agreement.
(b) Commercial General Liability Insurance including Contractual Liability Coverage
covering liability assumed under this Agreement, and Personal Injury Coverage, with a
combined single limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence for Bodily Injury and Property
Damage.
(c) Automobile Liability Insurance covering any vehicle used in connection with the
performance of this Agreement, with a combined single limit of $300,000 per accident.
(d) Errors and Omissions Liability Insurance in the amount of $1,000,000 per claim,
covering claims or damages because of injury or damages arising out of any act, error or
omission of the Contractor in the rendering of professional services. Such coverage shall
remain in effect for one year from the expiration or termination of this Agreement.
ii) Contractor’s insurance policies required by sections 8.i(b) and 8.i(c) above, shall include Entergy
and its affiliates as additional insureds with respect to Contractor’s performance under and
liability arising from this Agreement. Contractor hereby waives all rights of recourse, including
any right to which another may be subrogated, against Entergy and its affiliates for personal
injury, including death, and property damage. All of Contractor’s policies of insurance shall be
primary insurance and noncontributing with any other insurance maintained by Entergy and its
affiliates. Policies are to provide Entergy with thirty (30) days’ prior written notice of
cancellation or any material adverse change in conditions or limit of liability. Contractor shall
provide Entergy with Certificates of Insurance issued to Entergy and its affiliates evidencing
coverage currently in effect upon execution of this Agreement and annually thereafter pursuant to
the requirements of these insurance provisions.
iii) Contractor shall not commence to perform Services until all of the insurance required of
Contractor is in force, and the necessary documents have been received by Entergy. Compliance
with these insurance provisions is hereby expressly made a condition precedent to the obligation
of Entergy to make payment for any Services performed. The minimum insurance requirements
set forth above shall not vary, limit or waive Contractor’s legal or contractual responsibilities or
liabilities to any party.
9) Assignment and Subcontracting. Contractor may neither assign nor subcontract this Agreement in
whole or in part without the express written permission of Entergy, which permission may be
withheld in Entergy’s sole discretion. In the absence of such permission, any such assignment or
subcontracting shall be void, and at the option of Entergy, any such assignment or subcontracting will
constitute a material breach of this Agreement.

THUS DONE AND EXECUTED by the following duly authorized representatives of the parties:
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SOUTHWEST POWER POOL, INC.

ENTERGY SERVICES, INC.

By:

By:

Name:

Name:

Title:

Title:

Date:

Date:
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Southwest Power Pool, Inc.
Staff Recommendation to the Board of Directors/Members Committee
July 26, 2005
Board of Directors/Members Committee Meetings

Background
The new Strategic Plan for the organization includes two additional meetings for the Board of
Directors/Members Committee (BOD/MC). These meetings are to focus on education/training for the
Board members, and a review of organizational effectiveness.
Analysis
The meeting schedule for the BOD/MC for 2006 has been previously established. The MOPC, SPC and
other working groups have set their meeting schedules to accommodate these meetings. Rather than
reset the current schedule, and since the additional meetings are not “business” meetings, staff
recommends the new meetings be added in early June (education) and early December (organizational
review).
The recommended schedule of meetings and locations for 2005, 2006 and 2007:
2005
October 24-25, 2005
(Annual Meeting of Members)

Santa Fe, NM

December 5-6, 2005

Dallas, TX

2006
January 30-31, 2006

New Orleans, LA

April 24-25, 2006

Oklahoma City, OK

June 5-6, 2006

Little Rock, AR

July 24-25, 2006

Kansas City, KS

October 23-24, 2006
(Annual Meeting of Members)

Tulsa, OK

December 4-5, 2006

Dallas, TX

2007
January 29-30, 2007

New Orleans, LA

April 23-24, 2007

Oklahoma City, OK

June 4-5, 2007

Little Rock, AR

July 23-24, 2007

Kansas City, KS

October 29-30, 2007
(Annual Meeting of Members)

Tulsa, OK

December 3-4, 2007

Dallas, TX

Recommendation
Staff recommends that the meeting schedules for 2006 and 2007 be accepted.
Action Requested:

Approval

